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Financial Highlights
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HE —TTNF+ - H=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2006

| 65,437 53,891 47,078
Turnover

BREE AT A 3,969 3,175 2,056
Profit before taxation

/NS Y S et 2,776 2,220 1,480
Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company

FREARF (BT $1.19 $1.02 $0.70

Basic earnings per share' (HK$)

BRARE (BET)
Dividend per share (HK$)

AR EA $0.14 $0.13 $0.11
Interim
REA $0.26 $0.25 $0.16
Final

$0.40 $0.38 $0.27
R AR $1.00 — —

Special interim

ANR B R B R 19,141 18,196 15,125
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company

DEIR RS 5,824 4,747 4,811
Minority interests

BT 24,965 22,943 19,936
Total equity

SFAER R 1,781 3,283 4,925
Consolidated net borrowings

B &R 7.1% 14.3% 24.7%
Gearing ratio’

BN 1.08 1.12 1.27
Current ratio

SREEFE  REE (BT $8.12 $8.15 $7.12

Net assets per share: book value (HK$)

witt
Notes

1.

N

@

BRE BT 35 R B E N 58 FIR X SF R B B TIR (7 89 I I 21 & -

Basic earnings per share have been calculated by dividing the profit attributable to shareholders by the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year.

B EH F 5 A E X FRE R LB

Gearing ratio represents the ratio of consolidated net borrowings to total equity.

I B — TENE— [ — H A B BT R I E R A B AR BRI OIE VD% « FTEFTREIEWEESI - —FEMER —TLRFME TR T FES

Al EXEHBETEHER —FENF A=+ —AR—FEAF T A=+ — AN EREFERBE —FENF+ —A=1+—AR=FEAF - A=1—HILFEH
AREAF] -

The Group has changed its accounting policy on jointly controlled entities to proportionate consolidation for the financial period commencing from 1 January 2006.
The new accounting policy has been applied retrospectively and certain 2004 and 2005 comparative figures are restated accordingly. However, the change in accounting
policy would not have any impact on the consolidated net assets as at 31 December 2004 and 31 December 2005 and the consolidated net profit for the year ended
31 December 2004 and 31 December 2005.

SIYBIYBIH [eroueuly 7 Y %l e
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Analysis of Turnover and EBITDA

HE-ZTXNE+-A=1+—HBILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2006

BERBZEER

Turnover by segment

38% 38%

1% 1%

FEEBZRFAFE - BE - MEREBHNAT
EBITDA by segment
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Beverage Food Processing and Distribution Textile

| REME | ot R AEREE A 8 | B REMER
Investment Property Petroleum and Related Products Distribution Investments and Others
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EERNARRTAE -« BB - ITE RE R AT DT Analysis of Turnover and EBITDA

HEZZTRF+ZA=1+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2006

—ZTETREF
—BERE (&751)°
BEEET BEEET /O
2006 2005 Increased/
(Restated)”  (Decreased)
BHEBZEER Turnover by segment HK$ million HK$ million %
BEH Core Businesses
% Retail 20,418 16,202 26.0%
5 Beverage 9,455 6,855 37.9%
R INLI kA Food Processing and Distribution 6,092 5,624 8.3%
B, Textile 4,453 4,291 3.8%
KEYE Investment Property 349 299 16.7%
NEE Subtotal 40,767 33,271 22.5%
Bftt#% Other Businesses
oM N AR B EE SR A5 Petroleum and Related Products Distribution 25,100 20,847 20.4%
BB R H M Investments and Others — _ _
MR Subtotal 25,100 20,847 20.4%
65,867 54,118 21.7%
HIEEBR RS Elimination of inter-segment transactions (430) (227) 89.4%
w Total 65,437 53,891 21.4%
FEEBZRFAFE » BIE -
E RESE & F EBITDA by segment
BEH Core Businesses
5 Retail 1,044 756 38.1%
5 Beverage 1,306 1,056 23.7%
BEAINT K AE8H Food Processing and Distribution 703 630 11.6%
k% Textile 346 343 0.9%
KEYE Investment Property 783 815 (3.9%)
NEF Subtotal 4,182 3,600 16.2%
Hit¥H Other Businesses
A M ARREE AR Petroleum and Related Products Distribution 1,273 961 32.5%
WERHMER Investments and Others® 253 279 (9.3%)
MR Subtotal 1,526 1,240 23.1%
ok Total 5,708 4,840 17.9%
Hiat
Notes

1.

2.

EBITDARBAREIFIE. ~ BIE - #78 REEHFIZET -
EBITDA represents earnings before interests, taxation, depreciation and amortization.

AEE dy — FENF— [ — HEEH B A I B R & AT R E A B OIEGI% » FE st MR EIEWEES|F » —FFRFMETHRUFIITES) -

Rl EREIBRTEHER —EEAF A=+ AGEE BEFERBEE —TERF+ - A=1—HIL FEGZEAT
The Group has changed its accounting policy on jointly controlled entities to proportionate consolidation for the financial period commencing from 1 January
2006. The new accounting policy has been applied retrospectively and certain 2005 comparative figures are restated accordingly. However, the change in
accounting policy would not have any impact on the consolidated net assets as at 31 December 2005 and the consolidated net profit for the year ended
31 December 2005.

3. RERAMFEHOZEITHEL R EFRERIBAEEE -
Investments and Others include share of net result of associates less corporate overheads.

A2 AR A T China Resources Enterprise, Limited ® Annual Report 2006 3§ 3
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Analysis of Profit Attributable to Shareholders

HE-ZTNE+-A=1+—HILFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2006

BEEEHZIRREG DT

Profit attributable to shareholders by segment

EEEBIRREVEESHERUETERRUEE REVEZBEEGGERN
Profit attributable to shareholders excluding the effect of investment property revaluation and major disposal of
non-core assets/investments by segment

=5 - K - BT KA - Bk
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| REME | ot R AEREE AL 8 | & REMED
Investment Property Petroleum and Related Products Distribution Investments and Others
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% 28 FE (3% M > TR Analysis of Profit Attributable to Shareholders

HEZZTRF+ZA=1+—HIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2006

—BERE —ZTTREF
BEEET BEEET /O
Increased/
2006 2005 (Decreased)
BEEH ZBREELGER Profit attributable to shareholders by segment HK$ million HK$ million %
BiER Core Businesses
TE Retail 217 107 102.8%
Rem Beverage 174 136 27.9%
RN T R AE8H Food Processing and Distribution 435 414 51%
A Textile 61 81 (24.7%)
BEME Investment Property 647 690 6.2%)
MEE Subtotal 1,534 1,428 7.4%
HtpE% Other Businesses
Fm MR R A S Petroleum and Related Products Distribution 1,002 624 60.6%
RE R HAM T Investments and Others 421 356 18.3%
NEE Subtotal 1,423 980 45.2%
2,957 2,408 22.8%
NEARAEIFERER Net corporate interest and expenses (181) (188) B8.7%)
e Total 2,776 2,220 25.0%
Profit attributable to shareholders excluding
RIEEHIRBEEWEEMHR  the effect of investment property revaluation
HEFEEZUEE ®ES and major disposal of non-core assets/
22 By R (G i F investments by segment
BiER Core Businesses
TE Retail 203 90 125.6%
R Beverage 174 136 27.9%
BT RAEs Food Processing and Distribution ' 435 355 22.5%
Sk Textile 59 78 (24.4%)
-t/ Investment Property ® 215 182 18.1%
NaEE Subtotal 1,086 841 29.1%
HE% Other Businesses
o AR E AR Petroleum and Related Products Distribution ® 519 411 26.3%
REREMER Investments and Others 421 356 18.3%
NEF Subtotal 940 767 22.6%
2,026 1,608 26.0%
NEEIHN B FE N E R Net corporate interest and expenses (181) (188) 8.7%)
HE Total 1,845 1,420 29.9%
Bt
Notes

1.

Rip ML RASHEHH = FEERFERETOREMLERE L RAEFF#EM 59,000,000 7T

Net gain on disposal of an associated company amounting to approximately HK$59 million has been excluded in the 2005 results of the Food Processing and
Distribution division.

REY R AT S E 2 3515432,000,000 T (ZEZFAHF : 7EM508,000,0007T ) B FIEEE R M EE TIHEZELOIKREYEATIZDFF o

Net valuation surplus and disposal gains of certain non-core investment properties with an aggregate amount of HK$432 million (2005: HK$508 million) have
been excluded in the results of the Investment Property division.

1 RAGBEE AT SR TR AT 175 & B A 5/ 483,000,000 7T (ZEFH4F : JEH 213,000,000) 8 41 & —IHIR B AT FFI R FIS1EE B ©

Net gain on disposal of an investment and net valuation surplus with an aggregrate amount of HK$483 million (2005: HK$213 million) have been excluded in the
results of the Petroleum and Related Products Distribution division.

A1 AR /A T China Resources Enterprise, Limited ® Annual Report 2006 &%
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Company Profile

SEARAMAR ((EWAUK]) AEBHARIFLTNAT - ¥
BEOETEARRESOHEET - AEBLUK AT BRARILY
HBDERER - AEIULEE  ARESEMS S AR - £
HREEE® A% KENSHIERLEBHEEN  RUTHES
bl o £ ENBRMEBEEE CERSEBRBE - EFAR - &K
GEGBERATEEHHERG 0 RAREBNEREER
FHE -

e

China Resources Enterprise, Limited (CRE) is a listed company
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, with business emphasis on
the consumer sector of the Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong. Our
mission is to become the largest consumer company in China. To
achieve this, the Group has already established leading presence in
our business domains, in particular, the four core businesses namely
retail, food, beverage and textile. There are operational synergies
among these consumer-related businesses. Notably, food, beverage
as well as textile form part of the supply chain for the retail business,

and they grow together driving the Group’s overall development.

6 ZFEMAIEAR QT China Resources Enterprise, Limited © Annual Report 2006 4k



EERE
Corporate Structure

EHRIXARAT

China Resources Enterprise, Limited

BminT Ak EE
P&t o E iR eH BER
B Food g S Petroleum H b
. . Investment
Beverage Processing Textile Propert and Related Investments
and perty Products and Others

Distribution Distribution

R

Foodstuff
BRI R Distribution
Supermarket . JN . HIT
permar EPTRE - G4 B
and Logistics _ RmNIRk o Investments
BRATF Spinning and o
LEE Y Gk i Limited
= - (51%) : Weaving
o RO 150 7 , Food Processing - (10%)
Y China &Y
485 and Stock
; Resources . (3453 Investment ;
Brand-fashion Raising . Hutchison
o Snow Garment Properties :
Distribution 5 i Ports Yantian
reweries
A EBE @&k st Investments
imite H
HEthZTEE Hith Limited
; (51%) : Others
Other Retail Abattoir (10%)
Stores Operation,
Transportation
and Others
Wit
Note

ZEELFEZAFIA - REEGHE IR BB F BT TR G o B LRSI IREIER G T E - 1T 8B 5 (8 R E mAS i # i # e o
On 14 March 2007, the Group entered into a framework agreement regarding the disposal of its petroleum operation in Hong Kong. If the Group eventually succeeds
in completing the disposal considered under the framework agreement, it will no longer have any interest in the petroleum and related products distribution business.

B AIZ AR A T China Resources Enterprise, Limited ® Annual Report 2006 £3§ 7



— =T \ES‘%EEE
Milestones in 2006

o EARUIERMNEIRE BB R AR o EFBHIVETH AFHREEREE/
85% 3 - RAKEIEREH — @ SRR B < o) @
R E R o A five-year revolving credit/term
The acquisition of an 85% 7(5/\/‘ . syndicated loan facility agreement Mé'\g/
interest in Quanzhou Qingyuan of HK$3 billion was signed.

Brewery Company Limited,
being the first brewery
purchased in Fujian Province,
was completed.
o SEACU BT ER AR A B R A Al

The acquisition of Zhejiang Yinyan ,b @
Brewery Company Limited
o ETTIRIREGE - BEMENETEBM &W @ was completed. j\/ l
MRS ©

A global roadshow highlighting

our supermarket and beverage [ \ Vv .

businesses was conducted.

/\@
Ay

o REENRETH) & B REERK i

1B - c0ld
Our first greenfield brewery, Ml e
located in Dongguan,

e E(TMEE ) RIE RPN K
ETEAZECERE|PETR
HEE-—RTERE -

The Group was selected as the
largest retail organization for
China in Retail Asia Pacific Top
500 Awards organized by Retail
Asia Publishing.

commenced its operation.

8 #BHAI¥AMR 2T China Resources Enterprise, Limited ® Annual Report 2006 %



ZETNF B2 Milestones in 2006

o FECBUNE ) HFETH 2B EMIB S EE A RSB EAL - _{/ @
The Group was ranked overall number one in a corporate
governance survey published by Euromoney on global O (Z"

emerging markets.

CEXEGRBBEZDERE(_TTREF

EHHESE] - + _ @
The Board was named an Awardee

for the “Directors Of The Year Awards N 9/\/

2006” organized by the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors.

%

T

PISNEW

REBHENMBEMETLLEZTAESENXE -
R TERARRESA - o 1748 8 525,300,000 7 + EEMAR KT
The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan and Mr. B 52 E&AEHER -

Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon were appointed With a beer sales volume of 5.3 million

Board members, increasing the number of kiloliters, our beverage business became

Independent Non-Executive Director to six. the largest brewer on the mainland.

e TRRHEFRHEBME R THEIEEBN 2
Bam o YREEN—EAREFIREER
PEEE1TT ©
The disposal of our entire interests in piped
gas and chemical distribution businesses in
China was completed and a special dividend
of HK$1 per share was paid in the following
month.

B AIZE AR A T China Resources Enterprise, Limited ® Annual Report 2006 3§ 9
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Letter to Investors e
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In my letter to you last year, | described our business was a tree of energy and life, and it
was my belief that our best days were ahead. | am extremely pleased to report that 2006
was a year of significant accomplishment. Once again, we posted record financial results,
further increasing our turnover and earnings. In particular, there was strong underlying
profit growth of 307% led by the core consumer-related businesses, including retail, beverage
and food.

On the other hand, we realized considerable shareholder value from the disposal of the piped
gas and chemical distribution businesses in the Chinese Mainland and had returned over
807% of the proceeds by way of a special dividend payment of HK$1 per share. Including this
special dividend, we were able to return a record of HK$1.4 per share, or about HK$3.3 billion,
to you. Our share price aleo rose &1% in 2006 and reached its highest level since 1998, the
year after the outbreak of the Asian financial crisie. It outperformed the Hang Seng Index
by 20%.

Our dedication to corporate governance is gaining recognition from the investment
community. Among the many prestigious accolades we received last year, it is noteworthy
that we were ranked overall number one in a corporate governance survey published by
Euromoney on global emerging markets. Our Board was also awarded the “Directors Of
The Year Awards 2006” organized by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. We are highly
dedicated to acting in shareholders’ best interest.

We have made significant strides towards our goal “to become the largest consumer
company in China”. Last year, we were named the largest retail organization for China by
Retail Asia, and our brewery business also became the largest on the mainland in terms
of sales volume. These were the results of many years of hardworking. In spite of highly
competitive consumer markets, CRE is committed to delivering excellence through concerted
efforts of a team of talent.

Song Lin

Chairman

4 April 2007
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Chairman’s Statement

REAEE

BERBSKEEDER MEAEEEIA
BROHEBEBARBERIIERLEEEE "
AEBE-ZE A AFNEEHEFR - #HE
TEEXNE+_A=+-BUHEENES
BEER_ZETRF LA21% BITEE
65,437,000,000 70 K ¥ & © IR R FE (5% 7 A
75 1 2,776,000,000 7T + 8 _F FE 18 125%
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Final Results

With the flourishing economy in the Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong,
reinforced by the Group’s parallel efforts to expand core consumer businesses
and realize the value of non-core assets, the Group reported another record year
in 2006. Consolidated turnover for the year ended 31 December 2006 rose 21%
over 2005 to a new high of HK$65,437 million. Profit attributable to shareholders
was HK$2,776 million, a 25% increase from the previous year, the highest it has
been since our listing. Earnings per share, on a weighted average basis, was
HK$1.19 compared to HK$1.02 in 2005.

Excluding the after-tax effect of revaluation of investment properties and major
disposals, which led to aggregate gains of HK$931 million in 2006 and HK$800
million in 2005, the Group’s underlying consolidated profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders would have increased by 30% for the year ended
31 December 2006. There was strong organic growth across most of our
operations.

Dividends

The Board recommends a final dividend of HK$0.26 per share for 2006 (2005:
HKS$0.25 per share) payable on or about 15 June 2007 to shareholders whose
names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on 28 May 2007.
Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.14 per share and the special dividend
of HK$1 per share paid in December 2006 in respect of the disposal of the
Group’s piped gas and chemical distribution businesses, the total distribution
for 2006 will amount to HK$1.4 per share (2005: HK$0.38 per share). This
represents a 268% increase over 2005.

Closure of Register

The Register of Members will be closed from 28 May 2007 to 31 May 2007,
both days inclusive. In order to be eligible for the final dividend, all completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the share registrars of the Company, Standard Registrars Limited of 26th
Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later
than 4:30 p.m. on 25 May 2007.

Strategy Implementation

Corporate Strategy

With an objective of becoming the largest consumer company in China, the
Group has been investing in the core consumer businesses to enhance market
position, improve competitiveness and develop platform for future growth. For
the year ended 31 December 2006, the Group incurred nearly HK$4 billion on
capital expenditure, with a majority on beverage and retail businesses. Major
acquisitions during the year included the five breweries in Fujian Province,

12 #EBAIZAEMR A7 China Resources Enterprise, Limited ¢ Annual Report 2006 4}
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T JE % Chairman’s Statement

Zhejiang Province, Anhui Province, Shanxi Province and the Inner Mongolia
Autonomous Region. In addition, there were investments in the greenfield
breweries under construction and existing breweries under renovation for
capacity upgrade. The capital expenditure on our supermarket operation last
year was mainly for new store opening and purchase of store properties. A
total of 122 supermarket stores were opened and 25 supermarket stores were
acquired during the year.

Concurrently, the Group has been divesting businesses or assets which are
outside our core portfolio or which lacked critical mass. In 2006, our entire
interests in piped gas and chemical distribution businesses in the Chinese
Mainland were sold to China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, the
Company’s immediate holding company, for HK$2,780 million. In view of our low
gearing at the time of disposal, the Group returned over 80% of the proceeds to
shareholders by way of a special dividend.

The Group is also making satisfactory progress in the implementation of our
retail-led distribution strategy. The Group’s food, beverage and textile operations
have started to form part of the supply chain for our supermarket business. In
particular, the food operation, which has a long history of supplying fresh meat,
vegetables, rice and other food products to our supermarkets in Hong Kong, is
currently one of their largest suppliers. Their cooperation has recently extended
to Guangdong and Zhejiang provinces. “SNOW”, our national brand for beer, is
also sold extensively in our mainland supermarkets. Our property division, which
is very experienced in operating the Group’s retail properties in Hong Kong, will
develop shopping malls in the Chinese Mainland, with our supermarket stores as
anchor tenants.

The Group has also been accelerating its investments in the Chinese Mainland.
For the year under review, about 59.3% of turnover and 41.4% of profit before
tax was from the mainland, compared with 55.9% and 40.6% respectively in the
year ended 31 December 2005.

B AR A E S
Profit before tax by geographic region

BRBEHED G
Turnover by geographic region
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¥ F#H4< Chairman’s Statement
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Business Strategy

The mainland consumer market is highly fragmented with low efficiency while
competition is focused on pricing. In addition, there is considerable dissimilarity
in the economics, demographics and customer preference of each province
and municipality. The Group will analyze in detail the targeted district before
entry. Once decided to enter, it will adopt a district dominance strategy in
expansion so that economies of scale can be achieved. Both acquisitive and
organic growth will be pursued depending on the nature of the business and
market opportunities. For acquisitions, the Group has a strong cost discipline
while benefits against alternative options are always thoroughly reviewed. Apart
from building scale, a culture on cost efficiency in daily operation, looking for
concurrent cost control and productivity enhancement, has been promulgated
internally to deliver shareholder value.

The Group puts heavy emphasis on branding strategy to differentiate itself
from competitors. Our brewery operation has a national branding strategy for
“SNOW” complemented by the district and local brands. “SNOW” targets the
younger generation, and the brand has been associated with “life’s progression”.
In 20086, the brand was marketed as “the official partner of beer-lovers 1#;E
FHTERIEDNSVEKEE”. On the other hand, our supermarket operation is
developing its image as a distinguished retailing chain via enhanced service and
store format innovation. Its new format, “Olé”, a high-end international food hall
targeting upscale consumers, has positively received tremendous response in
Shenzhen and Beijing. The “Ng Fung” brand of high quality fresh meat has been
well established by our food business. It has recently launched more general
food products under this brand which can be broadly classified into eight
categories of rice, rice noodles, fruits, wine, eggs, frozen food, canned food and
preserved meat.

Other business strategies have also been implemented at different levels. The
hypermarket of our supermarket operation has adopted a trade up strategy by
improving its merchandise mix and layout. More fashionable apparel products
are introduced, and the proportion of self-operated counters is rising, especially
in the fresh food and soft line sections. Our beverage business has been
reforming its distribution channel to exercise better control over distributors and
enhance supply chain efficiency. Our food distribution business is exploiting
the mainland fresh meat market for growth with two projects in Shanghai
and Shenzhen already in operation. Our textile business focuses on the niche
products in production, including MAKO yarns, denim casual wears and nylon
textured yarns. The proportion of high-end products has increased following its
technology upgrade program.

Operating Environment

The mainland consumer market is undergoing rapid development but still
very fragmented. Retail sales in the Chinese Mainland grew 13.7% to about
RMB7,641 billion in 2006 with continuous market consolidation. According to
the Ministry of Commerce, sales of the top 100 retailers increased by 25% to
RMB855 billion and constituted approximately 11.2% of total retail sales.
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¥ F#R4E Chairman’s Statement

Growth of the mainland brewery market accelerated last year with total
production volume increased by an estimated 14.7%, compared to 10.4%
in 2005, to 35.2 million kiloliters. In 2006, the Group’s brewery operation
enjoyed a market share of about 15% whereas the top three players accounted
for approximately 38% of the market, compared with 36% in 2005 and 19%
in 2000.

In 2006, the production of cotton yarns and fabrics in the Chinese Mainland
increased by 22% and 20% over the previous year respectively. Our focus on
technology upgrade and rationalizing products with the intention to produce
more upmarket products remains unchanged. Quality high-end products are
gradually replacing low-end mass products in our product mix. During this
adjustment process, our yarns and fabrics production decreased by 1.8% and
6.9% respectively over 2005.

As disposable incomes rise and living standards improve, the proportion of
household expenditure on food will increase. There has been a stable growth
in the mainland pork industry, the major food of Chinese, with an increase of
approximately 4% in consumption last year. Meat consumption per capita in
China, however, is still low on international scale.

The Hong Kong economy further improved last year. Retail sales increased by
7.3% alongside rising domestic consumer confidence and buoyant tourism.
Supermarket sales and department store sales increased by 4.2% and 8.1%
respectively in 2006 over the previous year. For fresh meat consumption,
imported and locally produced live pigs and cattle amounted to about 1,988,100
heads and 46,500 heads respectively in 2006. This represents a decline of 3%
and 4% respectively when compared to 2005. Import of chilled pork from the
Chinese Mainland was allowed in August 2006 but this marginally impacted on
the fresh meat consumption.

Corporate Governance

The Board strongly believes in upholding the highest ethical standards in the
course of conducting its business. It is well aware that corporate governance
embodies a discipline that builds trust, in the absence of which the Group can
hardly achieve economic success.

The Board recognizes that having acquired the listing status, the Group’s
shareholders and other stakeholders would understandably want to know
its practices, systems, controls, standards and values. Transparency and
information disclosure are central to well-informed investment decisions and
minority shareholders; it follows that they are also the key components of the
Group’s corporate governance framework. Since November 2002, the Group
has been producing quarterly financial and operational review on a voluntary
basis. It is the first and also the only conglomerate company among the
constituent stocks in the Hang Seng Index to initiate such a move, well before
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange made it a recommended best practice for main
board listed issuers.

The Company’s Corporate Governance Practice Manual has laid down the

Board’s objective to increase the proportion of Independent Non-Executive
Directors to at least one-third over time. We are glad to see that this was fulfilled
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during the year under review. The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan and Mr. Siu
Kwing Chue, Gordon joined the Board as Independent Non-Executive Directors
in November last year; and after their appointment, the Board consists of six
Independent Non-Executive Directors out of a total of 17 members.

The Group has a proven track record of enforcing good corporate governance
practices. Its efforts to implement a sound and effective corporate governance
framework have been well received by the investment community, and the
following accolades attest to the recognition gained by the Group in 2006:

e it was ranked overall number one in the 2006 Euromoney “Best Corporate
Governance” survey on global emerging markets;

e it was honored as an Awardee in the Board Category for “Listed Companies
(SEHK — Hang Seng Index Constituents)” in the “Directors Of The Year
Awards 2006” organized by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors;

e jt was rated one of the companies with the best corporate governance in
China and also one of the best managed companies in China by FinanceAsia;

e it was selected as one of the recipients of the “Recognition Awards 2006 -
The Best of Asia” by Corporate Governance Asia; and

e it was named one of the outstanding enterprises among blue-chip
companies in Hong Kong by the Economic Digest.

The standard of good corporate governance practices is always changing. In
order to keep up with this dynamic environment, the Group will continue to
monitor the adequacy of its existing practices.
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal control and its
effectiveness to ensure the accomplishment of corporate goals, smooth running
of the operations, assets and stakeholders’ interest are safeguarded as well
as reliability of financial statements. The Group adopts the control framework
consistent with the frameworks recommended by both the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSQO”) in the United
States and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as our
standards in establishing control systems and the best practice among our
group companies.

The Board conducts regular review of the Group’s internal control system. For
the year ended 31 December 2006, the Board has reviewed and is satisfied
with the effectiveness of the Group’s current internal control system in place. A
detailed elaboration of the Group’s internal control system is set out in full in the
Corporate Governance Report of this Annual Report.

Social Responsibility

How corporations should deal with the ethical, environmental and social
impacts of their business operations has drawn much attention from the
public in recent years. Stakeholders, including not only shareholders but also
customers, suppliers, employees and the society at large, increasingly expect
the Group to conduct its business more responsibly and be more accountable
to the environment and community. The Board is aware that the absence
of appropriate responses to such expectation would hold back the Group’s
sustainable development.

Our guiding principles are to adopt open and transparent business practices that
are based on ethical values and respect for the community, the environment,
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employees, shareholders and other stakeholders so as to deliver sustainable
value, and to incorporate such values into our business decisions and processes.

Environmental protection is one of the focal areas that we address. The
Group endeavors to conduct business in ways that protect and preserve the
environment. There are policies to guide us in this regard, which stipulate
that the Group should, among other things, evaluate the environmental and
ecological impact from its operations, and assess the potential environmental
risks before any proposed business acquisition should be proceeded. One of the
examples of our corporate culture to protect and preserve natural resources is
the pledge by our supermarket division in Hong Kong to reduce the distribution
of plastic bags and the participation in the “No Plastic Bag Day” event. The result
was encouraging. Also, our mainland supermarket division has been looking
for ways to improve its energy system’s efficiency. Initiatives included raising in-
store air-conditioner temperature and installing energy saving lighting system.
In addition, the Group promotes public awareness of the need to protect our
environment. For the second consecutive year, our beverage operation launched
the campaign called “The Great Expedition with SNOW (Z7EH - BEKIE)”.
The 2006 campaign produced a documentary program on adventures to trace
the origin of the Yangtze River, with an aim to encourage the public to protect
our water sources.

The Group also cares for the community and constantly works for the good of
the underprivileged. During the year, our beverage division organized different
activities the purpose of which was to provide financial assistance to poverty-
stricken students in the Chinese Mainland, and at least 600 students benefited
as a result. Our supermarket division helped raise money for charity through
in-store donation collection boxes, and sponsored the establishment of the
third primary school in the Chinese Mainland since 2004. Like the year before,
Chinese Arts & Crafts put up an exquisite art item for auction and donated the
entire proceeds to a charitable fund.

The Group’s community involvement goes beyond donations to charitable
organizations. Our supermarket division in Hong Kong obtained the Caring
Company Logo Award from the Hong Kong Council of Social Service in February
2006. This logo was awarded to companies which satisfied the six criteria of the
Caring Company Scheme and demonstrated good corporate citizenship.
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“SNOW” offered financial assistance to poverty-
stricken students in China.
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Posters of charity events supported by our
supermarket division.
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A monument was erected to mark the origin of the
Yangtze River in Qinghai Province in a campaign
sponsored by “SNOW”.
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The Group conducted a large-scale customer satisfaction survey on our
businesses in both the Chinese Mainland and Hong Kong together with
consultancy firms last year. This regular exercise enables us to identify our
strengths and weaknesses in the marketplace, so as to improve our products
and services from customer perspective. We respect the opinions of our
customers and view their satisfaction as an attribute in fulfilling our social
responsibility as well as a tool to enhance our competitive edge.

In view of the diversity of the Group’s businesses, the issues of corporate social
responsibility can be tackled from many angles. We will continuously explore
new initiatives to fuffill our duty as a good corporate citizen.

Investor Relations

Our ultimate goal is to create a steady, long term growth in shareholder value.
The Group has been encouraging a tripartite communication system among
investors, senior management and operational management to reach high
standards of corporate governance. Understanding the unique features and
specific needs of a conglomerate enterprise of different businesses, we strive
to go beyond merely improving investor relations, but also promoting effective
communication among investment community, senior management and various
business units.

The Group maintains an open dialogue with the investment community. Our
practice for conducting a three-week global roadshow annually around April
to visit institutional investors in Europe, the United States and Asia has highly
been appreciated by the investment community. The focus in the 2006 global
roadshow was on our supermarket and beverage operations and detailed
analysis on our niche, strategies and the competitive environment was presented.
Chief executives of the two operations also participated in the roadshow together
with senior management from the headquarters. The Corporate Day held in July
for analysts and fund managers was also well received. During the three-day
tour, the syndicate visited our meat processing centre in Shanghai, supermarket
and brewery operations in Zhejiang Province. In 2006, top management along
with senior management of different business units met with about 630 analysts
and fund managers in over 230 meetings including one-on-one meetings, site
visits, luncheons as well as conferences arranged by financial institutions.
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Deputy Managing Director Kwong Man Him led the analyst and

fund manager syndicate to visit the brewery plant at Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province.
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Share Performance

CRE’s share price rose 61.4% to HK$22.35 in 2006, outperforming the Hang
Seng Index by 20.2%. During the year, its daily closing share price hit a post-
Asian financial crisis high of HK$23.70 on 13 December 2006. The lowest
closing price was HK$13.80. CRE’s market capitalization also grew 70.4% to
HK$52,711 million in the year.
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Year-end closing price and market capitalization of CRE for 2002-2006
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The Group has long had a goal of gradually improving its basic cash dividend
payout ratio and has continuously delivered upon this goal. We plan to pay
basic cash dividends that balance the cash generated from the growth of the
company’s earnings with the cash needed to fuel future profit growth. In addition,
special dividends would be considered for exceptional events, subject to the
prevailing financial position, funding needs and market environment. In 2006, a
special cash dividend of HK$1 per share was paid following the disposal of the
Group’s piped gas and chemical distribution businesses. Special dividends were
also distributed in 2002 and 2003 during which the non-core assets in banking
and building materials were divested.

TEFIETFEEAEERENRERERE

Earnings and dividend per share for 2002-2006
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A special distribution in specie of one share in
China Resources Cement Holdings Limited for
0.00 every ten shares of the Company was distributed

in 2003.
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ZEEIZFENEEAEERESIRIEE  Basic cash dividend payout ratio for 2002-2006
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The chart has excluded the distribution of special dividends of HK$0.25
per share in cash in 2002, one share in China Resources Cement Holdings
Limited for every ten shares of the Company in 2003 in specie and HK$1 per

share in cash in 2006.
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Calculation is based on profit attributable to shareholders as reported in the
annual report of 2004. Taken into account of prior year adjustments with the
profit attributable to shareholders of 2004 restated, the payout ratio shall be
restated to 38.8%.
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Calculation is based on profit attributable to shareholders less the disposal
gain of the piped gas and chemical distribution businesses.
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Total Shareholder Return

With the gradual re-alignment of our business focus on the consumer sector,
robust operating performance and rising corporate governance standard, CRE’s
shares achieved a total return for shareholders of 291.5% over the past five
years, as measured by share price appreciation and reinvested dividend. This

TS HEEHNEE - — S NFEMNRREMD is considerably higher than that of the Hang Seng Index and the Hang Seng
MABTERT25% - MBEEBREETESE Commerce & Industry Index. For the year 2006, the total return for shareholders
BT HEE RS R 39.0% K& 53.1% ° was 72.5%, compared to the average 39.0% of the Hang Seng Index and
53.1% of the Hang Seng Commerce & Industry Index.
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Total shareholder return of CRE relative to market indices for 2002-2006
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2006 was a remarkable year for our core consumer businesses. There was
encouraging profit increase in our retail business led by our supermarket
operation. With a 34% rise in beer sales volume to 5.3 million kiloliters, our
beverage business became the largest brewer on the mainland. The tremendous
growth of the national brand, “SNOW?”, also reinforced its position as the
country’s largest beer brand. Underlying net profit growth of our food business
was the strongest in recent years while its mainland meat processing projects
progressed well. For our textile business, despite a profit decline amidst
challenging operating environment, there was a strong demand for its high-end
yarn products, MAKO, after technology upgrade and our future focus will be on
producing niche products and product mix enhancements.
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The mainland supermarket business is highly competitive as global players are
increasingly attracted by China’s robust private consumption growth and the
liberalized retail market. Market consolidation will accelerate and the Group’s
supermarket operation needs to continually enhance its core competence and
market niche. Future expansion will be very focused in terms of location and
store format to establish dominance within the target district in the most efficient
way. We will open mainly hypermarket and standard supermarket depending
on the local demographics and economies. To improve shopping environment
and alleviate the impact of rising retail rentals, we are leasing out some of the
hypermarket space to complementary tenants. We are also buying some of
the store properties on stringent requirements and have started to integrate the
procurement and logistics networks in Eastern China.

Our beverage business will continue to spread its brewery network along the
coastal line and Yangtze River into the neighboring areas. Although the start
up cost is high for new districts, this is essential in order to develop an efficient
national distribution network. At the same time, we aim to attain profitable
expansion via operational improvements. A three-pronged approach will be
adopted to grow production capacity through acquisition, greenfield investment
and capacity upgrade. The reduced reliance on acquisition is made possible with
the rapid development of “SNOW” as a national brand. The popularity of “SNOW”
is the result of our success in brand positioning, marketing strategies and market
consolidation. We will step up our sales efforts for “SNOW” this year in the major
cities including Beijing, Guangzhou and Shanghai as there is rising demand for
quality beer.

Import of chilled pork from the Chinese Mainland was allowed in the second
half of last year but there has been little impact on our food business, which
imports livestock from the mainland. We have successfully developed “Ng Fung”
brand as high quality fresh meat, creating a strong premium brand image amidst
growing concerns over food safety. Supply of fresh pork from the local farms,
the only other source of live pigs in Hong Kong, will be further reduced by the
introduction of a pig farm license surrender scheme in middle 2006 to control
Hong Kong’s pollution problems. The shortfall will be satisfied by imports. Our
mainland meat processing projects in Shenzhen and Shanghai are progressing
well. We have developed a competent supply chain from pig sourcing,
slaughtering, meat production to retailing in the two cities. Our experience
and reputation put us in a favorable position to capture further investment
opportunities in the mainland meat market.

Following a slack result last year, which was partly due to the restrictive quotas
on mainland textile products, our textile business will concentrate on products
with better competitiveness and margins. We have established our comparative
advantage in higher end yarn and nylon products to match strong overseas
demand for high quality shirts and stockings. We are also targeting denim casual
wears to lead our garment export.
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¥ F#R4E Chairman’s Statement

The economic environment of the markets we operate is positive. China’s
economy continued to churn ahead in 2006. To ensure balanced and sustainable
economic development, the central government has set stable economic
growth and low inflation targets for this year. It has made boosting domestic
consumption a priority for driving economic growth and introduced measures
to narrow the income gap. The recent measures to slow down the mainland
economy are only specific to certain over-invested sectors. In Hong Kong, the
economy is strong with falling unemployment rate, increased salaries, rising
tourist arrivals and steadily improving property market.

Looking ahead into 2007 and beyond, our focus is on the execution of our plan
to build the Group into the largest consumer company in China. Divestment
of the non-core assets will also continue. After the sale of our piped gas and
chemical distribution operations in the Chinese Mainland last year, a framework
agreement has been signed recently relating the disposal of our petroleum
distribution operation in Hong Kong, the only remaining business in our
petroleum division. These parallel efforts have a commmon goal — to improve
shareholder return. We are optimistic that the earnings gap created after the
disposal of our non-core assets will be gradually filled by our core businesses
and new contributions from re-investment of the disposal proceeds. As the
mainland consumer market is huge and growing fast, we are excited about the
opportunities in the years ahead and are confident in our ability to capitalize on
them and deliver superior results to our shareholders.

Appreciation

We have considerably strengthened our Board in recent years to promote
corporate governance practices. In late 2006, two Independent Non-Executive
Directors joined our Board, namely The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan and
Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon, whose knowledge and expertise will surely be
invaluable to the Group. | would like to extend a warm welcome to Mr. Chan and
Mr. Siu.

With a team approach in our operation, our success highly depends on the
full dedication from our hardworking employees. Their innovation as well as
commitment to excellence have helped us build a unique result-oriented culture,
and | take this opportunity to thank them. | also wish to express my gratitude to
our shareholders, customers, business partners and other stakeholders for their
support of the Group.

SONG LIN

Chairman

Hong Kong, 4 April 2007
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and logistics distribution stores

The Group’s retail division mainly comprises three business segments:
(1) supermarket and logistics; (2) brand-fashion distribution in the Chinese
Mainland and (3) other retail stores operation.

In 2006, the Group’s retail division showed improved performance, underpinned
by sustained organic growth in the supermarket operation and further boosted
by China Resources Cikelong (Zhejiang) Supermarket Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang
Cikelong”) #TEMZEREBM AR A A acquired in late 2005. Turnover
and attributable profit amounted to HK$20,418 million and HK$217 million
respectively, representing an increase of 26.0% and 102.8% over 2005.

At the same time, the economy of the Chinese Mainland sustained considerable
growth. Foreign trade continued to grow fast with an increase in foreign direct
investment. Improvement in job market has raised individual income levels in
both the urban and suburban areas. Increasing domestic consumption drove up
local consumer goods retail sales, and the Group’s consumer businesses have
thus benefited as a whole.

In Hong Kong, overall market sentiment remained positive due to buoyant
export trade in 2006. The general increase in household income, continuous
improvement in the local job market and steadily improving property market gave
rise to a distinct pick up of local consumption expenditure. Market outlook of
the local retail industry is encouraging with steady growth.

Supermarket and Logistics

Turnover of the supermarket and logistics operation for 2006 was HK$18,187
million, representing an increase of 28.7% over 2005. Attributable profit for 2006
amounted to HK$152 million, an increase of 1.8 times.

The division’s regional development strategies delivered promising results
in 2006. Through new store openings, acquisitions, line-up with franchised
stores and continuous expansion in retail networks, the Group increased its
market share in target regions. As at the end of December 2006, the Group
altogether operated a total of approximately 2,100 stores in Hong Kong and the
Chinese Mainland, of which approximately 48% were self-operated and the rest
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were franchised stores. Major store formats are hypermarkets, superstores,
supermarkets and convenience stores. In terms of geographical contribution,
Eastern and Central China, Southern China, Hong Kong and Northern China
respectively accounted for 55.2%, 26.6%, 12.6% and 5.6% of the division’s
turnover for the year under review.

Turnover growth in 2006 was mainly driven by store openings as well as a
remarkable same store growth. Overall same store growth for the year was
8.2%, in particular a 9.6% increase was achieved for the Chinese Mainland. The
increase in payments from suppliers, which included incentives, store display
and promotion income, further boosted the turnover growth and improved the
overall operating results. The increasingly centralized purchase system from
improved retail networks strengthened the bargaining power in negotiations with
suppliers. In addition, optimization of operational logistics and rationalization of
management structure helped improve efficiency and achieve cost effectiveness.
Consolidated earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization
(“EBITDA”) for 2006 amounted to HK$773 million, representing a 34.2% growth
over that of 2005.

The Eastern and Central China operation recorded a satisfactory same store
growth of 10.0%. Suguo succeeded in maintaining its market share and
optimizing its distribution network through the adoption of a multi-format
approach with mass coverage, active business promotion in the media as well as
consolidation of franchised stores during the year, which have achieved a same
store growth of 10.1%. However, Suguo’s newly opened hypermarkets, a new
store format adopted in 2005, still need adjustments to drive shoppers flow. To
improve the profitability of new stores and non-performing stores, key processes
and administration setups were modified and incentive schemes were refined.
Zhejiang Cikelong, acquired in late 2005, reported satisfactory profit contribution
for the year. To further enhance store clusters and market share in Zhejiang
Province, the Group also started a joint venture with a local supermarket chain in
Ningbo during the year.

In Southern China, store facelifts, better supply chain management and
innovative marketing initiatives delivered satisfactory results. Same store growth
of hypermarkets and superstores reached 11.2% and 13.4% respectively.
Streamline and optimization of management structure also helped rationalize key
processes and drive down cost. Whilst the performance of stores in Zhongshan
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Geographical distribution of the Group’s supermarkets as at 31 December 2006
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and certain hypermarkets and supermarkets, which include the lifestyle store in
Dongguan, were still slack for the year under review, the Group will concentrate
its efforts in product mix enrichment as well as supply chain and store operation
reinforcement to drive the overall profitability of the segment.

The 26.3% turnover increase in Northern China was mainly attributable to
the acquisition of stores in Tianjin and new store openings. In spite of this,
the operation recorded net loss for the year owing to head-on competition
from foreign retail operators in same areas and withdrawal of certain in-store
consignment counters. Certain redevelopment works in the areas also affected
customer traffic. The Group is slowing its pace of expansion in the region,
putting in more efforts to rationalize existing stores and its related supply chains,
and adjusting the product mix to improve store profitability. Meanwhile, the
Group has entered into an agreement in October 2006 to set up a distribution
centre in Beijing for the integration of procurement and logistics network in
Northern China.

The Hong Kong operation faced strong competition from major local market
players. The Group cautiously monitored the concessions offered to customers
while securing its market share at the same time. With solid revival in domestic
consumption expenditure, sustainable retail sales growth and growing demand
for quality warehouse space, it is believed that the Hong Kong operation will
benefit in medium to long term.

To cope with prevailing keen competition in the retail market, the Group will focus
on new acquisitions and development of hypermarkets and superstores through
new store openings and moving into second and third tier cities in order to raise
market presence in the target regions.

Brand-fashion Distribution

The brand-fashion distribution segment reported turnover and attributable profit
for 2006 of HK$1,553 million and HK$26 million respectively, representing an
increase of 11.1% and 85.7% over 2005.
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The “Esprit” brand delivered strong growth in turnover and attributable profit of
34.4% and 50.0% respectively for the year under review. The growth of retail
and wholesale business was largely the result of existing stores facelifts, new
store openings, active business promotion for higher brand recognition, together
with enhanced product design. Self-operated stores recorded a same store
growth of 19.7% while satisfactory sales growth of franchised stores also helped
improve the performance of wholesale business. The distribution network of the
“Esprit” brand as at the end of December 2006 comprised approximately 730
self-operated and franchised stores in the Chinese Mainland.

The continuous brand portfolio review since the last quarter of 2005 has showed
effect; distribution of certain brands ceased upon expiry of the distribution
contracts, while certain brands considered to have limited development potential
have been pulled out. Clearance sales and successive store closures in 2006
impacted the overall profitability of the segment.

Other Retail Stores
Other retail stores segment reported turnover and attributable profit for 2006

of HK$678 million and HK$39 million, which remained relatively comparable to
last year. The Group’s chain of retail stores as at the end of December 2006
consisted of 5 Chinese Arts & Crafts i Z: stores in Hong Kong and 37 CR Care
# B & stores in Hong Kong and the Chinese Mainland.

Owing to an increase in turnover during the second half of the year largely from
business promotion associated with re-opening of a relocated store at Pacific
Place in June 2006 and another store in Central in August 2006, Chinese Arts &
Crafts FAZ% reported improvement in profitability.

Ongoing product mix enrichment to capture increasing demand for health food
and traditional Chinese medicine, amidst rising health awareness amongst local
community, contributed to improved gross profit for CR Care ZEE & stores
in 2006. However, cost pressure from increased store rentals resulting from
tenancy renewal upon expiry or stores relocations have caused the operation
to report a small loss for the year under review. Through enhancement of store
layout, resources alignment and the development of its own branded products,
improvement in overall profitability of CR Care )& stores is anticipated.
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The beverage division reported turnover and attributable profit for 2006 of
HK$9,455 million and HK$174 million respectively, representing a corresponding
increase of 37.9% and 27.9% over 2005.

Sales volume of beer rose by 34.4% to approximately 5,305,000 kiloliters
for 2006. In particular, our national brand “SNOW” achieved remarkable
performance, with sales volume reached 3,037,000 kiloliters, representing
57.2% of the total sales volume and an impressive growth of 91.9%. The
increase in turnover and sales volume was mainly contributed by organic growth
with a notable sales volume increase in Sichuan, Liaoning, Auhui, Heilongjiang/
Jilin and Beijing/Tianjin regions. This was mainly attributable to the successful
brand name integration through initiatives in the “SNOW” brand promotion and
in market distribution. Market demand was further driven by the hotter than
expected weather in typical peak season and the warmer weather in winter.

For the year under review, the Group put in continuous efforts for product mix
enrichment in most of the regions so as to cater for the lifting of consumer’s
taste. The slight increase in average selling price per kiloliter compensated for the
increase in production cost; overall gross profit margin remained comparable.
However, considerable investment was expended on building sales distribution
channels and consumer popularity of the “SNOW” brand during preliminary
market expansion in certain regions. As a result, the increase in average selling
and distribution expenses per kiloliter offset the contribution of sales volume
increment to profitability.

As at the end of 2006, the Group operated approximately 50 breweries in the
Chinese Mainland with an annual production capacity of approximately 7.6 million
kiloliters. The Group successfully completed several new acquisitions during
the year. With a strategic move to reinforce the Group’s market position and to
supplement the operations in existing and target regions, the Group acquired an
85% interest in RMEREVEATR A A (Quanzhou Qingyuan Brewery Company
Limited) and a 100% interest in 347/ T R F%MEE AR A 7] (Zhejiang Yinyan Brewery
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Company Limited), and the related brewing assets in ZZ#EIL I EE AR &
f£A 8] (Anhui Huaibei Xiangwang Brewery Company Limited), & B8 5 5< &
#ER S E2AF (Wulanhaote Mengyuan Brewery Company Limited) and LI 7§
A 11258 A R A 7] (Shanxi Yueshan Brewery Company Limited). Additionally,
the new brewery in Harbin, Heilongjiang, which is also for the production of
the “SNOW” brand beer, commenced trial operation in January 2007. In the
same month, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire the remaining
38% interest in the brewery companies in Sichuan and a 100% interest in a
brewery company in the Guizhou Province of the Chinese Mainland through the
acquisition of the entire interests in 5% (2@ ) R EE2A 7 (Blue Sword (Group)
Company Limited).

Production expansion is driven by market expansion. To consolidate its position
as the largest beer producer in the Chinese Mainland in terms of sales volume,
the Group has concrete plans to enlarge the production capacity of certain
breweries that have currently reached maximum beer production capacity, in
order to support the growth of our national brand “SNOW”.

Moving forward, intensified competition in the China beer market is anticipated.
To strengthen its competitive advantage, the Group will keep on putting

emphasis on branded product mix enrichment, operational improvement for cost
saving, continuous market integration and expansion to capitalize on the growing
momentum in the beer consumption in the Chinese Mainland.
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Geographical distribution of the Group’s breweries as at 31 December 2006
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414 5%

630 12%

235 -37%

The food processing and distribution division reported turnover and attributable profit for
2006 of HK$6,092 million and HK$435 million respectively, representing an increase of
8.3% and 5.1% over 2005. Excluding a HK$59 million gain on disposal of an associated
company in 2005, attributable profit of the division for 2006 increased by 22.5%.

Foodstuff distribution operation reported a notable growth in profitability. In light of growing
concerns over food safety and quality, together with determined efforts in distribution
channel rationalization, the “Ng Fung” brand of high quality fresh meat continued to be
highly appreciated. Ongoing enrichment in product mix, introduction of new products to
meet customer demand trends, coupled with vigilant expansion of sales and distribution
network for frozen meat and other assorted foodstuff distribution business also contributed
to the business growth of the division.

Despite the record high fuel prices impacting on the profitability, the marine fishing and
aquatic products processing operation reported satisfactory growth in turnover and
attributable profit. For the year under review, sales volume rose by about 2% through
effective branding and marketing in the overseas markets. Regular on-site monitoring
of fishing fleet fuel utilization and cost saving measures were carried out to keep the
production costs under control, leading to a substantial profitability improvement.

The Shenzhen operation reported a marked growth in profit contribution in 2006, which
was mainly achieved through proactive expansion of fresh meat sales network and
effective operating cost control initiatives in pig sourcing, slaughtering and fresh meat
production. The encouraging performance of its meat processing division was attributable
to the effective launch of promotional campaigns and enhancement in distribution network.
Its brand “Z =" was recognized as the well-known brand in Shenzhen.

The Shanghai meat processing centre, which commenced operation at the end of 2005,
has increased its slaughtering volume and reported profit contribution for the year under
review. The effective launch of promotional activities has raised the popularity of its brand
“HZ FR” in local market. Initial sales network was established in the Shanghai market
with nearly 1,000 sales outlets, including group procurement customers and those in
supermarkets and specialty shops. Stringent cost control initiative drove down costs in
the course of procurement, production as well as selling and administration, which in turn
increased profitability.

The Group’s expertise in slaughtering techniques and management in Hong Kong will pose
core competence in lifting the slaughtering quality and management level in light of hygiene
awareness of both Shenzhen and Shanghai operations.
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Turnover of the textile division for 2006 was HK$4,453 million, representing an
increase of 3.8% over 2005. Attributable profit for 2006 amounted to HK$61
million, representing a decrease of 24.7% from 2005.

Turnover growth was mainly driven by a boost in export sales of high-end
products, namely MAKO yarns and nylon HOY, and FDY yarns under robust
market demand. Product mix enhancement, a result of technology upgrade,
contributed to a 15.8% increase in average selling price of yarns. The more
economic usage of cotton mix and the gradual shift in the use of imported
cotton has reduced the raw material costs for production. However, a material
worker’s compensation incurred for workforce redundancies of two factories, the
continuing underperformance of the dyeing business as well as the rising cost
pressure from the increase in electricity price in July 2006, altogether lowered the
profitability of the textile division for the year under review. The reduction of VAT
refund on export of textile products from 13% to 11% effective in the last quarter
of 2006 brought further cost pressure to the division and will pose a challenge to
the profitability in the coming year.

Moving forward, in view of the continuous change in the trend of the textile
market, our focus will be primarily on the production of high-end products.
Scheduled technology upgrade of certain production facilities in 2007 will further
improve the production efficiency and in turn will help drive the overall turnover
and profitability of the division in the long run.
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The property division, which comprises rental property segments of retail,
office and industrial premises, reported turnover for 2006 of HK$349 million,
representing an increase of 16.7% over 2005. Attributable profit for 2006
amounted to HK$647 million. Excluding net-of-tax valuation surplus and disposal
gains of certain non-core investment properties with an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$432 million (2005: approximately HK$508 million), attributable
profit of the division for 2006 increased by 18.1%.

Retail rentals during 2006 regained its momentum after a period of market
consolidation in the second half of 2005. Against expected further economic
growth and increasing consumption expenditure of the local households, retail
sales are expected to benefit and provide further growth impetus to retail rentals.

Satisfactory rental increases were attained for both new and renewed tenancies.
Capitalizing on the favorable retail market opportunities, the newly redeveloped
multi-storey retail property on the Hennessy Road, Wanchai has been fully let out
since September 2006 and made steady rental income contribution. This led to
an overall increase in effective rent per square foot and satisfactory occupancy
rates of the Group’s retail properties portfolio.

The mall JTF9#r DL at Jiangmen, with our supermarket as its anchor tenant,
commenced operation in April 2006 with its latest occupancy rate having reached
about 82%. Specific measures and events were launched to further drive up
rentals and shoppers flow during the initial stage of the operation. The shopping
mall at Xinhui is currently under renovation. Both malls, being the property
division’s initial market entries to the Chinese Mainland, will bring in new revenue
streams as well as experience to capture further investment opportunities in the
mainland market.
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Turnover and attributable profit of the petroleum and related products distribution
division for 2006 amounted to HK$25,100 million and HK$1,002 million
respectively, representing an increase of 20.4% and 60.6% over 2005. Excluding
a gain from the disposal of the 100% equity interest in China Resources
Petrochems Holdings Limited in 2006 and the gains from the disposal of certain
non-core assets in 2005, attributable profits for 2006 increased by 25.0%
over 2005.

Turnaround in profitability of filling stations operation in Hong Kong was primarily
attributable to the reduced intermission of price-fixing mechanism effective from
March 2006. Volatility in oil prices during the year under review had a slight
impact on the gross margin of the petroleum distribution. The improved profit
contribution from the piped gas and chemical operations in the Chinese Mainland
also contributed to the increase in overall profitability.

Consistent with the Group’s focus on the core consumer businesses, the Group
disposed of its interests in the piped gas, chemicals distribution and other
petroleum related businesses in the Chinese Mainland during the year. On 14
March 2007, the Group has entered into a framework agreement to dispose of its
100% equity interest in China Resources Petrochems Investments Limited, which
is the holding company of all the Group’s petroleum distribution business in Hong
Kong, including the wholesaling of petroleum products and the operation of petrol
stations. The formal agreement is expected to be signed in mid April, 2007.
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Attributable profit for 2006 amounted to
HK$421 million (2005: HK$356 million).

Container Terminal
The Group has a 10% interest in HIT

Investments Limited and Hutchison
Ports Yantian Investments Limited. The
Hong Kong and Yantian deepwater

port operations continued to maintain a
stable profit performance in 2006.

Capital and Funding

As at 31 December 2006, the Group’s consolidated cash and cash equivalents
amounted to HK$7,056 million. The Group’s borrowings as at 31 December
2006 were HK$8,837 million with HK$4,997 million repayable within 1 year,
HK$3,836 million repayable after 1 year but within 5 years and HK$4 million
repayable after 5 years. Committed borrowing facilities available to the Group,
but not drawn as at 31 December 2006 amounted to HK$1,300 million. All the
borrowings were subject to floating rates. On 15 May 2006, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, together with 16 other banks, signed a 5-year revolving
credit/term syndicated loan facility of HK$3 billion, interest bearing at 0.28% p.a.
over HIBOR. The proceeds are for general corporate funding and the refinancing
of the redemption of US$230 million convertible guaranteed bonds upon maturity
in May 2006.

On the basis of the Group’s net borrowings relative to the shareholders’ funds
and minority interests, the Group’s gearing was approximately at 7.1% as at
31 December 2006 (31 December 2005: 14.3%). The decrease in net debt of
the Group was mainly resulted from the cash inflow from operating activities
particularly the beverage business and the consideration received from exercise
of share options.

The Group’s principal assets, liabilities, revenue and payments are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. As at 31 December 2006,
22.2% of the Group’s cash deposit balances was held in Hong Kong dollars,
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36.7% in Renminbi and 40.0% in US dollars; whereas 61.1% of the Group’s
borrowings was denominated in Hong Kong dollars and 26.2% in Renminbi with
12.6% in US dollars. Moreover, to mitigate foreign currency and interest rate
exposure, the Group entered into certain forward contracts and interest rate
swaps to hedge against part of its borrowings.

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2006, assets with a carrying value of HK$153 million (31

December 2005: HK$228 million) were pledged for total borrowings of HK$214
million (31 December 2005: pledged for total borrowings of HK$248 million).

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2006.

Employees

As at 31 December 2006, the Group, excluding its associated companies, has a
staff size of around 113,000, amongst which more than 93% were employed in
the Chinese Mainland, whilst the rest were mainly in Hong Kong and overseas.
Remuneration packages are assessed in accordance to the nature of jobs
duties, individual performance and market trends with built-in merit components,
paid in the form of cash bonuses and share options.

By order of the Board

CHEN SHULIN
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 4 April 2007
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Mr. SONG LIN, aged 44

was appointed Chairman of the Group in December 2004. He is concurrently Vice
Chairman and President of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China
Resources National Corporation, Chairman of China Resources Power Holdings
Company Limited as well as China Resources Land Limited. Mr. Song is an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Geely Automobile Holdings Limited. He is also the Deputy
Chairman of China Vanke Co., Ltd., which is a listed company in China. Mr. Song has
extensive experience in corporate management and is currently responsible for the
overall business development and strategic planning of the Group’s business. Mr. Song
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Mechanics from the University of Tong Ji in Shanghai,
China. He joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1985.

Mr. CHEN SHULIN, aged 53

has been an Executive Director of the Group since December 1998 and was appointed
Managing Director in March 2005. He is also the Director and Vice President of China
Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources National Corporation as
well as Chairman of Ng Fung Hong Limited and China Resources Vanguard Company
Limited. Prior to joining China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, Mr. Chen was
a senior official with the MOFTEC (Ministry of Commerce) and a commercial attaché
in Australia and New Zealand. He obtained his Bachelor's degree from Beijing Foreign
Languages Institute, China and MBA degree from Victoria University, New Zealand.

Mr. KEUNG CHI WANG, RALPH, aged 51

has been an Executive Director of the Group since 1996 and was appointed Deputy
Managing Director in May 2000. He is also a Director of HIT Investments Limited. He
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) and is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has
over 20 years of experience in auditing, accounting and corporate finance. Mr. Keung
oversees the Group’s finance and treasury function, legal and secretarial function as
well as corporate merger and acquisition and investment activities. Mr. Keung joined the
Group in September 1994.

Mr. WANG QUN, aged 50

has been an Executive Director of the Group since January 2000 and was appointed
Deputy Managing Director in March 2006. Mr. Wang is a Director of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources National Corporation. He is also
an Executive Director of China Resources Snow Breweries Limited and is responsible
for the entire operation of the Group’s brewery business. Mr. Wang has a Bachelor of
Finance degree from the People’s University of China. He has previously worked in the
China National Economic Committee and held key management position in a Shenzhen
based conglomerate. Mr. Wang joined the Group in 1994.

Mr. LAU PAK SHING, aged 57

has been an Executive Director of the Group since 1997 and was appointed Deputy
Managing Director in March 2006. He graduated from the Hong Kong Baptist
University (formerly known as Hong Kong Baptist College) and is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lau represented the Executive Committee
of Hong Kong Cold Storage Merchants Association Limited as Chairman for many years.
Mr. Lau has around 30 years of experience in auditing, accounting, corporate finance,
property, godown and cold storage businesses and he is currently in charge of the
Group’s Hong Kong property division and logistics business. Mr. Lau joined the Group in
January 1994.
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Mr. KWONG MAN HIM, aged 42

joined the Group as an Executive Director in February 2002 and was appointed Deputy
Managing Director in March 2006. Mr. Kwong has a Bachelor of Science degree from
the University of Hong Kong and an MBA degree from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong. He is a fellow member of the CPA Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is also a member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute.
Mr. Kwong has extensive experience in corporate planning, equity research, merchant
banking and financial analysis. He is in charge of the Group’s corporate planning and
development. He also manages investor relations, promotes corporate governance and
participates in merger and acquisition activities.
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Mr. QIAO SHIBO, aged 52

was appointed Executive Director of the Group in July 2001 and had been a Deputy
Managing Director since November 2001 until his re-designation as a Non-Executive
Director in March 2006. He is also the Director and Vice President of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources National Corporation, and is
responsible for the operational management and strategic restructuring of China
Worldbest Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Qiao holds a Bachelor’s degree in Chinese Language
from the Jilin University, China.

Mr. YAN BIAO, aged 45

was appointed Executive Director of the Group in 1994 and was a Deputy Managing
Director before his re-designation as a Non-Executive Director in March 2006. Mr. Yan
is a Director of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources
National Corporation and is the Director of Legal Affairs of the China Resources Group.
He is also a Non-Executive Director of China Resources Land Limited. Mr. Yan is
currently responsible for the operational management and strategic restructuring of
China Worldbest Group Co., Ltd. He has a Bachelor of Laws degree from the Peking
University, China and an MBA degree from the University of San Francisco, USA.

Mr. JIANG WEI, aged 44

has been a Director of the Group since 1995. He is currently the Director and Chief
Financial Officer of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources
National Corporation. Mr. Jiang is a Non-Executive Director of China Resources Power
Holdings Company Limited, China Resources Land Limited, China Resources Logic
Limited, China Assets (Holdings) Limited and also an Independent Non-Executive
Director of Greentown China Holdings Limited. He is also a Director of China Vanke Co.,
Ltd., which is a listed company in China. Mr. Jiang obtained both his Bachelor's degree
in International Trade and Master's degree in International Business and Finance from
the University of International Business and Economics in Beijing, China.
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Mr. WANG SHUAITING, aged 51

was appointed Director of the Group in March 2006. He is the Director and Vice
President of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources
National Corporation. Mr. Wang is currently the Chairman of China Resources Textiles
(Holdings) Company Limited. He is also an Executive Director, Vice Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited. Mr.
Wang has extensive experience in the electricity industry in the PRC. Prior to joining
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited, he worked for the General Office of the
Government of Jiangsu Province from 1985 to 1987 and was subsequently the Head
of the Industrial Office as well as the Deputy Secretary-General of the Government of
Xuzhou City. Mr. Wang holds an EMBA degree in business administration from China
Europe International Business School.

Mr. XIE SHENGXI, aged 45

has been a Director of the Group since August 2001. Mr. Xie is a Non-Executive Director
of China Resources Land Limited. He is also a Director of Shan Dong Dong-E E-Jiao
Co., Ltd., which is a listed company in China. Mr. Xie graduated with a Bachelor’s
degree in Economics from Shanxi University of Finance and Economics, an MBA degree
from the University of South Australia. He is also a qualified accountant in China with
extensive experience in the field of internal audit and financial management.
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Dr. CHAN PO FUN, PETER (BBS, MBE, JP, FCPA(Aust)), aged 85

has been a Director of the Group since 1973. He practiced accountancy in Hong Kong
for 59 years. He has a doctorate in Offshore Petroleum Technology and Modern Chinese
Law and is an honorary fellow of the Society for Underwater Technology. Dr. Chan is
a trustee of the Hong Kong Shue Yan University (also as its Research Professor) and
the United College of Chinese University of Hong Kong. He was the Chairman of The
Kowloon Stock Exchange, a founding Director of The Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Limited and has served three terms as the Chairman of the former Hong Kong
Federation of Stock Exchanges.

Mr. HOUANG TAI NINH, aged 53

has been a Director for the Group since 1988. He is also a Director of Forcon
Investments Limited. Mr. Houang obtained his Bachelor of Business Studies degree
from the Polytechnic of North Staffordshire, United Kingdom.
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Dr. LI KA CHEUNG, ERIC (FCPA(Practising), GBS, OBE, JP), aged 53

has been a Director of the Group since March 2003. He is Senior Partner of Li, Tang,
Chen & Co., Certified Public Accountants (Practising), member of the Tenth National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and former
member of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong SAR. He holds directorship in a
number of listed companies including Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, Hang Seng
Bank Limited, SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, Transport International
Holdings Limited, Wong’s International (Holdings) Limited, CATIC International Holdings
Limited, RoadShow Holdings Limited, Sinofert Holdings Limited, Meadville Holdings
Limited, Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

Mr. CHENG MO CHlI (GBS, OBE, JP), aged 57

has been a Director of the Group since November 2005. He qualified as a solicitor
in Hong Kong, United Kingdom, Victoria Australia and Singapore and is the Senior
Partner of Messrs. P.C. Woo & Co., a firm of solicitors. He is currently Director of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and had served as a member of the Legislative
Council from 1991 to 1995. Mr. Cheng is the Hon. President and Founding Chairman
of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Presently, he holds directorship in a number of
listed companies in Hong Kong, including Beijing Capital International Airport Company
Limited, China COSCO Holdings Company Limited, China Mobile Limited, City Telecom
(HK) Limited, Guangdong Investment Limited, Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited
(formerly known as K. Wah Construction Materials Limited), Kader Holdings Company
Limited, Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited, Shui On Construction and Materials Limited
as well as Tian An China Investments Company Limited.

The Hon. BERNARD CHARNWUT CHAN (GBS, JP), aged 42

was appointed a Director of the Group in November 2006. He is the Executive Director
and President of Asia Financial Holdings Limited and Asia Insurance Company Limited.
He also acts as an Advisor of Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited, Hong Kong
Branch. Apart from the roles in the business community, Mr. Chan also serves as a
member of the Legislative Council representing the insurance industry and a non-official
member of the Executive Council of the Hong Kong SAR. In addition, Mr. Chan holds
directorship in a number of listed companies in Hong Kong, including Chen Hsong
Holdings Limited, City e-Solutions Limited, New Heritage Holdings Limited, Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited and Yau Lee Holdings Limited.

Mr. SIU KWING CHUE, GORDON (GBS, CBE, JP), aged 61

was appointed a Director of the Group in November 2006. He had been a government
official for over 36 years before his retirement from the civil service in 2002. Mr. Siu rose
to the rank of Secretary, Government Secretariat in 1993 and served a number of high-
ranking government positions, namely the Secretary for Economic Services, Secretary
for Transport, Head of Central Policy Unit and eventually retired from his last posting as
Secretary for Planning, Environment & Lands. Mr. Siu now serves as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Transport International Holdings Limited and two of its
subsidiaries, as well as ICEA Finance Holdings Limited.
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Vice Presidents

Mr. LAU KIN SHING, CHARLES, aged 51
was appointed Vice President of the Group in March 2006. He heads the Group’s

Internal Audit Department. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor’s degree in Accounting and Master’s
degree in Business Administration as well as in Information System Management. He
is a chartered accountant, New Zealand, Australian FCPA, a Canadian certified general
accountant and U.S. certified internal auditor. He has extensive experience in internal
auditing, financial management and operations review. Mr. Lau joined the Group in
February 2000.

Mr. ZHU DAN, aged 45
was appointed Vice President of the Group in March 2006. He is also the President

of China Resources Petrochems (Group) Company Limited since July 2001. He holds
a Bachelor of Economics degree from the University of International Business and
Economics, China and has more than 20 years of corporate management experience
in the area of petroleum and related products trading and distribution. Mr. Zhu joined
China Resources Petrochems (Group) Company Limited since 1984 and was previously
the General Manager of China Resources Petroleum Company Limited and China
Resources Chemicals Company Limited.

Corporate & Operational Management

Mr. CHEN LANG, aged 41
is currently the Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of China Resources Vanguard

Company Limited and the Chairman of Suguo Supermarket Company Limited. He is
also a Director of China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and China Resources
National Corporation. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor of Economics degree from Anhui
University, China and a Master of Business Administration degree from the University
of San Francisco, USA. Mr. Chen joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited
in 1989. He was previously the Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of China
Resources Logic Limited. Prior to that, he was the Chairman and General Manager of
China Resources Development and Investment Company Limited and was in charge
of a number of substantial investments in Canada and Thailand of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited.

Miss CHEUNG SIU LING, aged 44
is the Group Financial Controller. She holds a Master of Business Administration degree

from the University of Newcastle, United Kingdom. Miss Cheung is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Certified General Accountants
Association of Canada. She worked for an international accounting firm for over 13
years. Miss Cheung joined the Group in January 2001.
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Ms. GUO JINQING, aged 41
has been the Managing Director of Ng Fung Hong Limited since 2001. She joined Ng

Fung Hong Limited in 1991 and assumed the role of Deputy Managing Director in 1996.
Ms. Guo holds a Bachelor of Economic degree from the University of International
Business and Economics, China and a Master of Business Administration degree from
Murdoch University, Australia. She has substantial experience in trading and corporate
management.

Miss HUI LEUNG CHING, PATRICIA, aged 39

is the Head Legal Advisor overseeing the Group’s Legal and Secretarial Department.
Miss Hui holds a Bachelor of Laws degree from King’s College, University of London,
and is qualified to practice law in Hong Kong as well as England and Wales. Prior to
joining the Group, Miss Hui has worked in private practice and with a listed company
and has substantial experience in corporate and commercial legal work, regulatory
compliance and company secretarial matters. She joined the Group in October 2006.

Mr. SHI SHANBO, aged 41

was appointed Managing Director of China Resources Textiles (Holdings) Company
Limited in 2006. Mr. Shi holds a Master's degree in Economics from Dongbei University
of Finance and Economics, China. He joined China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited in 1991 and has been the Vice Chairman and General Manager of China
Resources Cement Holdings Limited since June 2003. He has over a decade of
experience in corporate finance, human resources management and strategic planning.

Mr. TANG XU DONG, aged 47

is currently the General Manager of China Resources Retail (Group) Company Limited
as well as the Chief Executive Officer of Tactical Solutions Incorporated, a joint venture
between the Group and Esprit Holdings Limited, specialising in the distribution of
apparel, fashion accessories and cosmetics. Mr. Tang holds a Bachelor of Business
degree from the Liaoning University, China and a Master of Economics degree from the
People’s University of China. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tang worked for the CITIC
Group. He is also a member of the Shanghai Changning District’s Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Committee. Mr. Tang joined the Group in November 1997.
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It is the firm belief of the Company that a good and solid corporate governance
framework is essential to the successful growth of the Company and the
enhancement of shareholders’ value. The Company is committed to attaining
and maintaining high standards of corporate governance and adopts principles
of corporate governance emphasising a quality board, accountability to all
stakeholders, open communication and fair disclosure.

Code on Corporate Governance Practices
On 8 April 2005, the Company adopted the Corporate Governance Practice

Manual (“CG Manual”). The CG Manual incorporates almost all the Code
Provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and includes the
implementation details for the Code Provisions and, where appropriate, the
Recommended Best Practices. The CG Manual can be downloaded from our
website and copies are available on request to the Company Secretary.

The Company has complied with all the Code Provisions in the CG Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2006, with deviations from Code
Provisions A.4.1 and E.1.2 of the CG Code as summarised below. The Company
has also exceeded the requirements under the Listing Rules and the CG Code in
various areas of its corporate governance practices.

In addition to meeting the requirements of the Listing Rules, the inclusion of the
Corporate Governance Report in this Annual Report is intended to keep our
shareholders abreast of the corporate governance practices of the Company and
their development throughout the reporting year and to invite our shareholders’
views thereon.

The Board
The Board represents shareholders in managing the Company’s affairs. The

Directors recognise their responsibilities to enhance shareholder value and to
conduct themselves in accordance with their duty of care and loyalty.

The major issues which are brought before the Board for their decisions include:

1. Direction of the operational strategies of the Group;

2. Setting the policies relating to key business and financial objectives of
the Company;

3. Monitoring the performance of the management;

4. Approval of material acquisitions, investments, divestments, disposal of
assets or any significant capital expenditure of the Group;

5. Ensuring a prudent and effective internal control system;

6. Review of the financial performance and results of the Company; and

7. Recommendation to shareholders of the Company on final dividend and the
declaration of any interim dividends.
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{PEEAIRE Corporate Governance Report

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the accounts of each financial
period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flows for that period. Since November 2002, to enable
the shareholders to appraise the operations and performance of the Group, the
Group has been releasing quarterly financial highlights and operating review. The
financial statements are prepared and presented to enable a clear and balanced
assessment of the financial position of the Group. Regular management reports
on the financial position and prospects of each business unit of the Group are
reviewed by the Executive Committee to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the performance of the Company.

In the financial year ended 31 December 20086, there were the following changes

to the membership of the Board:

(1) Mr. Qiao Shibo and Mr. Yan Biao were re-designated as Non-Executive
Directors on 10 March 2006.

(2) Mr. Wang Qun, Mr. Lau Pak Shing and Mr. Kwong Man Him were appointed
as Deputy Managing Directors on 10 March 2006.

(8) Mr. Wang Shuaiting was appointed as Non-Executive Director on 10 March 2006.

(4) The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan and Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon were
appointed as Independent Non-Executive Directors on 30 November 2006.

As at the date of this Report, the Board comprises 17 Directors, including
the Chairman, the Managing Director, four Deputy Managing Directors, five
Non-Executive Directors and six Independent Non-Executive Directors. The
biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 44 to 47 of this Annual
Report and can also be found on our website. The relationships (including
financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships) if any, among
members of the Board are disclosed. There is no such relationship as between
the Chairman and the Managing Director.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company has received
written confirmation from each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors
confirming his independence from the Company, and considers all of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

The experience and views of our Independent Non-Executive Directors are
held in high regard and contribute to the effective direction of the Group. The
Company exceeded the minimum requirements under the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-Executive Directors with
the appointment of its fourth Independent Non-Executive Director, Mr. Cheng
Mo Chi, in November 2005 and the fifth and sixth Independent Non-Executive
Directors, The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan and Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon,
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both in November 2006. Two of our Independent Non-Executive Directors have
appropriate accounting qualifications, which also exceeds the requirement of the
Listing Rules. With the appointment of The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan and
Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon, the Company has achieved its long term goal of
maintaining the proportion of its Independent Non-Executive Directors to at least
one third of the total members of the Board.

The Company has put in place a tailored induction programme for its newly
appointed directors. Continuing development and information are provided to the
Directors to keep them abreast of the latest developments involving the Group’s
businesses and operations.

The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed from time
to time to ensure that the Board has a balanced composition of skills and
expertise appropriate for the requirements of the businesses of the Company.
Appointments are first considered by the Nomination Committee. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee are then put to the full Board
for decision.

All Directors (including Executive and Non-Executive Directors) are not appointed
for a fixed term. The Board does not believe in any arbitrary term of office
and would like to retain sufficient flexibility to organise the composition of the
Board to serve the needs of the Group. All Directors are subject to re-election
by shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting following their
appointment and at least every three years on a rotation basis. The Articles of
Association of the Company require that one-third of the Directors (including
Executive and Non-Executive Directors) shall retire each year. The Directors who
are required to retire each year shall be those appointed by the Board during the
year and those who have been longest in office since their election or re-election.
A retiring Director is eligible for re-election.

The positions of the Chairman and the Managing Director are held separately
by Mr. Song Lin and Mr. Chen Shulin respectively. The segregation of duties
of the Chairman and the Managing Director ensures a clear distinction in the
Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board and the Managing Director’s
responsibility to manage the Company’s business. The respective responsibilities
of the Chairman and the Managing Director are more fully set out in the
CG Manual.

Due to an overseas engagement, Mr. Song Lin was not in Hong Kong on
2 June 2006 and therefore could not attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on that day. The Managing Director and either the chairman or
at least one member of the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and
Nomination Committee attended the annual general meeting to ensure effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company.

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals to review the financial performance of the Group. Between

52 #FEMAI¥AR D F China Resources Enterprise, Limited  Annual Report 2006 4 ¥R



g EFS LS AMEMEE  UENR
EEEAHE ( TR LmRNEEHRE ) BE
hWEEEESELRAENEE - FHEZEEN
EHeR EFHE4RIREEANSHA
o RRERAMAIEL = RERXGHRAR
AR SR - AHAREMERE  TRT
BRETRIBEVBAE « ILoh - EFERHAR
HERABERRNEARAEEERNIBEE

> EE AR Corporate Governance Report

these regular meetings, the Board meets to discuss and consider major issues
(whether or not required by the Listing Rules) and also on other occasions
when board decisions are required. With respect to regular meetings of the
Board, Directors receive at least 14 days prior written notice of the meeting and
an agenda with supporting Board papers no less than three days prior to the
meeting. With respect to other meetings called, Directors are given as much
notice as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances. The Directors have
full access to information on the Group and independent professional advice
whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.

EFEN_TTRFHABFABREE - EFN The Board met on 13 occasions during 2006. The attendance of the Directors at
—EERFHRESFEERMTEZEE SR Board meetings and principal Board committee meetings held in 2006 is set out
HEFIBEN TR in the table below:
5T | BpZE® | HMWEE® 97ZE% | MHZE® | REZE®
Board Audit Compensation | Executive Finance | Nomination
R s | Committee | Committee | Committee | Committee | Committee
FE#1TEE Non-Executive Directors
BiHEEED | Mr. Qiao Shibo 1
B E Mr. Yan Biao 2 1 1
BEEE Mr. Jiang Wei 1 1
FEIFESRE? | Mr. Wang Shuaiting @ 1 2
HBELE Mr. Xie Shengxi 1 1

B IEFITEE Independent Non-Executive Directors

BREZFEL Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter 4 8 4 3 2
BERELE Mr. Houang Tai Ninh 4 7 4 3 2
R Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 2 7 4

BB 4 Mr. Cheng Mo Chi 3 2 2

FBREZEFEE® | The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan @ 1

BMAESLE® | Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon @ 1

#{TE S Executive Directors

RMFEE Mr. Song Lin 2 1 1 19
BRI SEE Mr. Chen Shulin 4 4 1 24 1
EBEERE Mr. Keung Chi Wang, Ralph 4 8 2 10 24 1
FREE@ Mr. Wang Qun @ 1 1 9 18
ZIFMEE | Mr. Lau Pak Shing @ 3 3 9 18
BGREE® | Mr. Kwong Man Him @ 4 8 1 1

CEEREENRERE

Total no. of meetings held in 2006 :

Bt
Notes
R: FHjE# Regular Meeting
S: ##5IE# Special Meeting

(1) BRAEFEBE LR = FENF=F+ HBERBHERTEE -
Mr. Qiao Shibo and Mr. Yan Biao were re-designated as Non-Executive Directors on 10 March 2006.
(2) TAVEAER -ZETNF=F+AEZTAINTES -
Mr. Wang Shuaiting was appointed as Non-Executive Director on 10 March 2006.
(3) BEBHZBNBNEALER ZFEENFF— A= AREERELHNTEE
The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan and Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon were appointed as Independent Non-Executive Directors on 30 November 2006.
(4) FFEFEE - BB LEFBXH LR ZEENE=F 1 AEZ(FREEFEIE
Mr. Wang Qun, Mr. Lau Pak Shing and Mr. Kwong Man Him were appointed as Deputy Managing Directors on 10 March 2006.
(5) B+ RIBE R & RFAZE ARG 88
There were 18 times where the resolutions were passed by the Finance Committee by way of written resolutions.
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ExeRE Delegation by the Board
BRAEEGNEMNRHEEEBEESI RER While the Board retains at all times full responsibility for guiding and monitoring

RARMEE  BRrRO T AR EEFEE the Company, certain responsibilities of the Board are delegated as follows:
TR (@) Committees — various committees have been established by the Board to

() 2B — EFEN LT TAMENEZES administer certain specified functions of the Company’s affairs. The main
ABARRETHERE - TENEES committees include: the Executive Committee, the Finance Committee,
BREHUTZES WKEZEE LS8 the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Compensation
B REEZEGRFWNEES - JIAHNT Committee. The terms of reference of the Executive Committee, the Audit
LT BRZES REZESREH Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Compensation Committee

CEEEENEE - et RAEK K BES which set out, among other things, the duties, functions and composition
EH RN EESF M - i L of these committees are set out in the CG Manual and available on the
AT, - DAEER] Company’s website;

(b) BEFHELIE — AARIEBNEBERTE (o) Managing Director — the day-to-day management of the Company’s
RHEBEBEELIBRIE  MESQLIBAA business is delegated to the Managing Director who is accountable to the
MEEFERE R Board; and

() BEERAR — ETHROEREE

BB (c) Senior Management — certain responsibilities of corporate and operating
WIEEEFERBERATERE TRBELR

management are delegated to senior management of the Company within

ANEEEEABAE - the parameters as specified by the Board.
REZE® Nomination Committee
RZBERFE+__A=1+—0 EBELEEEEK As at 31 December 2006, the Nomination Committee comprised three

ERE=HBEIFNTES (AERELE Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Houang Tai Ninh (chairman),
(XFE) BMEFBLLRERESLT ) B Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter and Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, and one Non-Executive
EMITESE (AMLE ) - RERZESHHE Director, Mr. Yan Biao. The duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
BERNESSNER - ABURANK - T the structure, size and composition of the Board and to make recommendation
BigRI B EHER  URFIHREESZNERE after such review and to assess the suitability and qualification of any proposed
MELSEEIR REZESNERHRIE director candidate. The recommendations of the Nomination Committee are then
SGEEREFERATARR - JIAREEE put forward for consideration and adoption, where appropriate, by the Board.
FRALIFERFNBESED FHNARQE The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee which set out its duties and

Puh - LAER - procedures are available on the Company’s website.
HEZZZAF+A=+—HILEFE ' E4 During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Nomination Committee held
ZESELARMARERE REZEENIHEER two meetings. The work of the Nomination Committee included the following
ERAESSEL T2 recommendations to the Board:
o BRI EREMEERATAIERITES e the re-designation of Mr. Qiao Shibo and Mr. Yan Biao as Non-Executive
o TEEAE - BFNEERBIGFRAEERE Directors;

EREIEEBLIE e the appointment of Mr. Wang Qun, Mr. Lau Pak Shing and Mr. Kwong Man
o TRIEALAESTARIENITES Him as Deputy Managing Directors;
o ZIEKTERKRMEERZTRBIRKIE e the appointment of Mr. Wang Shuaiting as a Non-Executive Director;
o BRETHERZARBIUINTES K e the appointment of Mr. Lau Kin Shing, Charles and Mr. Zhu Dan as
o FBNMELEEZTABIIENITES - vice presidents;

e the appointment of The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan as Independent
Non-Executive Director; and

e the appointment of Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon as Independent
Non-Executive Director.
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Compensation Committee
As at 31 December 2006, the Compensation Committee comprised three

Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter (chairman),
Mr. Houang Tai Ninh and Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, and one Executive Director, Mr.
Keung Chi Wang, Ralph. The duties of the Compensation Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
of remuneration of Directors and senior management, establishing a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on remuneration and determining
the specific remuneration packages for all directors and senior management.
The terms of reference of the Compensation Committee which set out its duties
and procedures are available on the Company’s website.

The remuneration of the Directors and senior executives is determined
with reference to the performance and responsibilities of the individual, the
performance of the Group, prevailing market conditions and remuneration
benchmarks from comparable companies. Directors and employees also
participate in bonus arrangements based on the performance of the Group and
the individual.

During the year under review, the Compensation Committee met two times and

passed written resolutions once on matters including:

e approval of the remuneration packages for 2006 for Directors and senior
executives of the Company;

e review and consideration of the fees payable to Directors (other than the
Independent Non-Executive Directors) for 2006;

e approval of the remuneration packages for 2006 and discretionary bonuses
for directors and senior management of the Group.

Audit Committee
As at 31 December 2006, the Audit Committee comprised four Independent

Non-Executive Directors, namely, Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric (chairman), Dr. Chan
Po Fun, Peter, Mr. Houang Tai Ninh and Mr. Cheng Mo Chi. Two of its members
have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. No member of this Committee is a member of the former
or existing auditors of the Company. The membership of the Audit Committee
has exceeded the Listing Rules requirement that the majority of its members
must be independent and one of whom must have appropriate professional
qualification. The existing terms of reference of the Audit Committee are modeled
on “A Guide for Effective Audit Committee” issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and have also adopted the principles set out in the
CG Code.
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The duties of the Audit Committee include considering and making

recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal

of external auditors, review of the Company'’s financial information and oversight

of the Company’s financial report system and internal control procedures. During

the year under review, the Audit Committee met on four occasions. The work of

the Audit Committee in 2006 included reviews of:

e the external auditors’ report to the Audit Committee in respect of 2005 audit;

e the 2005 annual report and annual results announcement;

e the external auditors’ internal control memorandum in respect of the
2005 audit;

e connected party transactions;

e the quarterly results for the three months ended 31 March 2006 and the
related results announcement;

e the 2006 interim report and interim results announcement;

e the quarterly results for the nine months ended 30 September 2006 and the
related results announcement; and

e the quarterly reports of internal audit activities.

During the reporting year, the Audit Committee met with the external auditors on
three occasions without the presence of any Executive Directors.

The Audit Committee has considered the performance and independence
of the external auditors of the Company. The Audit Committee concludes
that the independence of the external auditors of the Company has not been
compromised by non-audit services performed for the Group. During the year
under review, audit fees paid and payable to the Company’s external auditors
amount to approximately HK$21 million (2005: approximately HK$16.2 million);
fees related to non-audit services paid and payable amount to approximately
HKS$0.6 million (2005: approximately HK$0.5 million).

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
The interests held by the Directors in the Company’s securities as at

31 December 2006 are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on pages 66 to 72
of this Annual Report. On 8 April 2005, the Company has adopted a Code of
Ethics and Securities Transactions (“Code of Ethics”) which incorporates the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The prohibitions on securities
dealing and disclosure requirements in the Code of Ethics also apply to specified
individuals who include the Group’s senior management and persons who are
privy to price sensitive information of the Group. The Code of Ethics is on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code. Having
made specific enquiry with the Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year
ended 31 December 2006.
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Internal Control
The Board recognizes that it has the overall responsibility to establish and

maintain a sound and effective internal control system to ensure the smooth
running of the operations, safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholder’s
interest as well as ensure the reliability of financial statements.

The Group adopts the control framework consistent with the frameworks
recommended by the Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway
Commission in the United States and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants as the standards in establishing control systems and
the best practice among our Group companies. The Group’s internal control
system includes five key elements, namely the existence of an effective control
environment, risk management, communication and information system, cost
effective control process and proper monitoring mechanism.

Every business unit is required to identify and assess the risks and impact on the
respective business unit at least once every year. The executive management
team of each business unit is accountable for the conduct and performance
of each operation in the business unit within the agreed strategies and
similarly the management of each operation is accountable for its conduct and
performance. Policies and procedures are designed for safeguarding corporate
assets, maintaining proper accounting records and ensuring transactions are
executed in accordance with management authorisation. Monthly management
reports on the financial results and key operation indicators are reviewed by the
Executive Committee of the Board. Regular meetings are held with the executive
management team of each business unit to review the actual performance
against budget.

The Internal Audit Department is responsible for assessing the Group’s internal
control system, formulating an impartial opinion on the system, and reporting its
findings to the Executive Committee and the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit
Department conducts independent reviews on the Group’s internal control on an
on-going basis.

Depending on the nature of businesses and risk exposure of individual business
units, the scope of work performed by the internal audit function covers all
material controls including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions.

Key control findings are reported to the Audit Committee at least once every
quarter and the corrective actions are taken by the relevant business units. The
Board conducts regular reviews of the Group’s internal control system through
monitoring the activities of the Group’s Internal Audit Department and the Audit
Committee.
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Based on the assessment for the year ended 31 December 2006, the Board
and the Audit Committee believe that the system of internal controls provides
reasonable assurance that the Group’s assets are safeguarded and there is no
significant area of concerns that may affect shareholders.

Investor Relations

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular communication and
fair disclosure of information to its shareholders. Accurate and fair disclosure is
necessary for shareholders to form their own judgment on the operation and
performance of the Group.

Based on this policy, legitimate questions arising from generally disclosed
information deserve a reasonable reply. The Corporate Planning and
Development Department is responsible for investor relationship functions and
will respond to such shareholders’ and analysts’ enquiries.

The Company’s website provides shareholders, investors, existing and
prospective partners and counterparties with information on the Company’s
corporate governance practices. Copies of such information can be obtained
from the Company Secretary upon written request.

For and on behalf of the Board

CHEN SHULIN
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 4 April 2007
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The directors have pleasure in presenting to the shareholders their report
and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2006.

The Group is principally engaged in retail, beverage, food processing and
distribution, textile, property investment and petroleum and related
products distribution businesses. The principal activities of the Company
are property investment and investment holding. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries and associates are shown on pages 161 to 169. An
analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business segments is
set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

The consolidated profit and loss account is set out on page 85 and shows
the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2006.

An interim dividend of HK14 cents per ordinary share amounting to HK$328
million was paid to shareholders during the year.

A special dividend of HK$1 per ordinary share amounting to HK$2,356
million was paid to shareholders in December 2006.

The directors recommend a final dividend of HK26 cents per ordinary
share amounting to approximately HK$616 million payable on or about
15 June 2007 to all persons registered as holders of ordinary shares on
28 May 2007.

Movements in the fixed assets of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

A schedule of the principal properties of the Group is set out on pages
170to 173.

Movements in the share capital during the year are set out in note 31 to
the financial statements.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
note 32 to the financial statements respectively.
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Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to approximately
HK$1 million.

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Chairman
Mr. Song Lin

Managing Director
Mr. Chen Shulin

Deputy Managing Directors
Mr. Keung Chi Wang, Ralph
Mr. Wang Qun (Re-designated as Deputy Managing
Director on 10 March 2006)
(Re-designated as Deputy Managing
Director on 10 March 2006)
(Re-designated as Deputy Managing

Director on 10 March 2006)

Mr. Lau Pak Shing

Mr. Kwong Man Him

Directors

Mr. Qiao Shibo (Re-designated as non-executive director
(Non-executive Director) on 10 March 2006)

Mr. Yan Biao (Re-designated as non-executive director
(Non-executive Director) on 10 March 2006)

Mr. Jiang Wei

(Non-executive Director)

Mr. Wang Shuaiting
(Non-executive Director)

Mr. Xie Shengxi
(Non-executive Director)

Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter
(Independent Non-executive
Director)

Mr. Houang Tai Ninh
(Independent Non-executive
Director)

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric
(Independent Non-executive
Director)

Mr. Cheng Mo Chi
(Independent Non-executive
Director)

The Hon. Bernard Charmwut Chan (Appointed on 30 November 2006)
(Independent Non-executive
Director)

Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon
(Independent Non-executive
Director)

(Appointed on 10 March 2006)

(Appointed on 30 November 2006)
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EE 2R E Report of the Directors

In accordance with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Wang Qun, Mr. Lau Pak Shing, Mr. Qiao Shibo, Mr. Yan Biao, Mr.
Jiang Wei and Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter shall retire by rotation and are
eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Article 115 of the Company’s Article of Association,
The Hon. Bernard Charnwut Chan and Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon shall
retire and are eligible for re-election.

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its
holding companies or its fellow subsidiaries were a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Biographical details of directors and senior management are set out on
pages 44 to 49.

During the year, the Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of promoting additional commitment and dedication to the
objectives of the Company by the participants (the “New Scheme”). In
addition, certain outstanding share options were still held under a share
option scheme which subsisted until 31 January 2002 and was terminated
on 31 January 2002 (the “Old Scheme”).
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The New Scheme was approved by the shareholders in general meeting
on 31 January 2002, which is subsequently amended on 20 August 2004
by ordinary resolution passed by shareholders, and shall expire on 31
January 2012. The board of directors of the Company may grant options
to eligible participants including employees, executive or non-executive
directors of the Group (or persons proposed to be appointed as such),
any discretionary object of a discretionary trust established by any
employee, executive or non-executive directors of the Group (or persons
proposed to be appointed as such), any executives and employees of
and consultants, professional and other advisors to the Group (or persons
proposed to be appointed as such), chief executive, substantial shareholder
of the Company, associated companies of the Group, associates of
directors, chief executive and substantial shareholder of the Company,
and employees of substantial shareholder and where a substantial
shareholder is a company, employees of subsidiaries of a substantial
shareholder.

Subject to the requirements of the prevailing Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”), the exercise price shall be such price determined by the board of
directors at its absolute discretion. The maximum entitlement of each
participant under the scheme (including options to be granted to the
directors, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or
any of their respective associates) is equivalent to the maximum limit
permitted under the prevailing Listing Rules. The scheme mandate limit
under the New Scheme was refreshed and renewed by ordinary resolution
passed by the shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting held on
20 August 2004 which enabled the grant of further share options to
subscribe up to 210,462,321 shares representing 10% of the shares in
issue as at the said date. As at the date of this report, the total number of
shares available for issue upon exercise of all options which may be granted
under the New Scheme is 159,686,321 shares which represent 6.77% of
the issued share capital of the Company.

Share options are generally either fully vested and exercisable within a
period of 10 years immediately after the date of grant or are vested over a
period of time up to a maximum of four years after the acceptance of a
grant.

Save as disclosed below, no share options have been granted (or granted
in excess of individual limit), exercised, cancelled or lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the relevant share option scheme during the year in
relation to each of the directors or their respective associates, employees,
and other participants of the share option scheme.

62 HHAIZARR 2 China Resources Enterprise, Limited ® Annual Report 2006 45 %



() ERHEBBA

RoBEX

= =</\

F+-A=+—R0 TIEEHEHE

RIBEARARIER 8 R EIR L Al sREE A0 19
BRERER - RIBZMIERS - EEHENE

AxiEMT -

EERE Name of director

BITRFHRTEE  Executiveand
Non-Executive
Directors

KA Song Lin

BRI Chen Shulin

EZ VN Keung Chi Wang, Ralph

TE# Wang Qun

EER Lau Pak Shing

B3R Kwong Man Him

B Qiao Shibo

B Yan Biao

& Jiang Wei

A= Xie Shengxi

i Sub-total

BuFnqTES Independent
Non-executive
Directors

RER Chan Po Fun, Peter

BRE Houang Tai Ninh

E¥ ¢ Li Ka Cheung, Eric

Nt Sub-total

Bif Total

RHBH

Date of grant

20/06/2000
07/02/2002
14/01/2004
21/11/2000
07/02/2002
14/01/2004
02/06/2004
20/06/2000
07/02/2002
14/01/2004
02/06/2004
20/06/2000
07/02/2002
20/06/2000
14/01/2004
02/06/2004
07/02/2002
14/01/2004
02/06/2004
07/02/2002
14/01/2004
20/06/2000
07/02/2002
08/03/2002
08/03/2002

02/06/2004
02/06/2004
02/06/2004

fTfE®
AR
Exercise
Price

HK$

719
717
9.72
7.08
717
9.72
9.55
719
747
9.72
9.55
719
717
719
9.72
9.55
717
9.72
9.55
717
9.72
719
717
7.50
7.50

9.56
9.55
9.56

BIE GEH R BEEOD =B+ - R
SR AR AR ER T EELB,2200,000
% AR B AR 2 fE s o

EE 2R E Report of the Directors

(a) Directors or their associates
As at 31 December 20086, the following directors had interests in
respect of options to subscribe for shares granted under the Old
Scheme and the New Scheme of the Company. Share options held
by directors granted under such schemes are set out below:

RRERE" FAERGER
Number of share options' Price of Company’s shares?
R-FERE
R-BERE +ZF ERHiz Effffz
-B-B REEE REEE REEE  REEE =1+-H fRlE R
i RATE 0] Ly i3 K% HERTR BT BRI
Outstanding Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed Outstanding For options  For options
at duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  during the at granted exercised
1/1/2006 year year year year  31/12/2006 HK$ HK$
200,000* - 200,000* - - - - 16.298
2,000,000 - 2,000,000 - - - - 16.228
2,500,000 - 2,500,000 - - - - 16.241
1,186,000 - 1,186,000 - - - - 15.991
1,326,000 - 1,326,000 - - - - 16.228
2,000,000 - 2,000,000 - - - - 16.241
1,500,000 - 1,500,000 - - - - 16.250
1,400,000 - 1,400,000 - - - - 16.194
500,000 - 500,000 - - - - 16.228
216,000 - 216,000 - - - - 16.241
850,000 - 850,000 - - - - 16.250
400,000 - 400,000 - - - - 16.194
400,000 - 400,000 - - - - 16.228
1,000,000 - 1,000,000 - - - - 16.194
500,000 - 500,000 - - - - 16.241
1,000,000 - 1,000,000 - - - - 16.250
2,000,000 - 2,000,000 - - - - 16.228
222,000 - 222,000 B = = B 16.241
772,000 - 772,000 - - - - 16.250
1,800,000 - 1,800,000 - - - - 16.228
2,000,000 - 2,000,000 - - - - 16.241
3,000,000 - 3,000,000 - - - - 16.194
1,000,000 - 1,000,000 - - - - 16.228
600,000 - 600,000 - - - - 16.308
180,000 - 180,000 - - - - 16.308
28,552,000 - 28,552,000 - - - - -
200,000 - - - - 200,000 - N/AS
200,000 - - - - 200,000 - N/A®
200,000 - - - - 200,000 - N/AS
600,000 - - - - 600,000 - -
29,152,000 - 28,552,000 - - 600,000 - -

*

By virtue of Section 344 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFQ”), Mr. Song Lin is deemed to be interested in the share option
for 200,000 ordinary shares granted by the Company to his spouse.
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(b) Employees and other participants

Except for all non-executive directors, all directors of the Company

are employees of the Group and details of share options held by

them are disclosed in paragraph (a) above. Summary of share options

granted to employees of the Group (other than directors of the

Company) and other participants are set out below.

(i)

ERERE

Number of share options'

() REREWMSHEE
BRITAIEITESIN  ARRZFAEEEER
REEZRE  REREZBREEHEN L
X () BRI%KEE - U T EAEEEE (TREAR
NAEE) REMBEEREERENTER -
() EE(TEELLAFES)
RZBERE
TEE —A—H REERE
BT e RATIE B
Exercise  Outstanding Granted
B BAH Price at during the
Date of grant HK$ 1/1/2006 year
el
Old Scheme
20/06/2000 7.19 2,145,000 N/A3
21/11/2000 7.08 2,213,000 N/A®
/N5t Sub-total 4,358,000 N/A®
ikt 8l
New Scheme
07/02/2002 7.17 5,488,000 -
19/04/2002 7.40 3,650,000 -
23/05/2002 8.90 14,000 -
02/08/2002 8.32 3,834,000 -
07/11/2002 7.70 1,752,000 -
24/01/2003 7.25 578,000 -
14/04/2003 6.29 3,968,000 -
01/08/2003 7.10 660,000 -
08/10/2003 8.90 1,661,000 -
02/12/2003 9.00 1,070,000 -
14/01/2004 9.72 31,525,000 -
20/04/2004 9.89 5,216,000 -
25/05/2004 9.15 24,443,000 -
02/06/2004 9.55 300,000 -
22/07/2004 9.80 1,590,000 -
04/10/2004 10.35 45,464,000 -
17/01/2005 11.40 1,580,000 -
22/07/2005 12.50 960,000 -
/&t Sub-total 133,753,000 -
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REERE
Cpaid
Exercised
during the
year

1,670,000
1,268,000

2,938,000

4,854,000
3,366,000
14,000
2,454,000
1,752,000
528,000
3,694,000
580,000
1,220,000
1,070,000
13,430,000
2,296,000
20,289,000
300,000
1,252,000
27,514,000
580,000
240,000

85,433,000

REEE
Cancelled
during the

year

REEE
ES
Lapsed
during the
year

660,000

89,000
2,982,000
28,000

178,000
328,000
880,000

5,145,000

R-FER
+=A
=+-—H
ERITE
Outstanding
at
31/12/2006

475,000
945,000

1,420,000

634,000
284,000

720,000
50,000
274,000
80,000
352,000
15,113,000
2,892,000
4,154,000
160,000
17,622,000
120,000
720,000

43,175,000

Employees (other than directors of the Company)

FAERMBER

Price of Company’s shares?

(555,
10
BT

For options
granted
HK$

EfTfEZ
RERRiE
BT

For options
exercised
HK$

16.551
16.006

16.420
17.259
19.877
16.455
17.335
17.414
15.992
17.872
16.646
16.327
16.737
16.008
17.422
16.250
19.034
16.607
16.760
17.510
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(Z) REREMSHE @) (b) Employees and other participants (continued)
(i) EHpBHEE (i) Other Participants
BiEn e A AT G ERE?
Number of share options' Price of Company’s shares?
RZBER
RIBERE +=A (553, )4 2fTEZ
TEE —A—H REEE REEE REEE REEE =t+-d FRRRE RERRtE
BT e RATIE B 7€ 3] K% B RITE BT HBERT
Exercise  Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed  Outstanding For options For options
BB Price at during the during the during the during the at granted exercised
Date of grant HK$ 1/1/2006 year year year year 31/12/2006 HK$ HK$
Hetal
New Scheme
05/03/2002 7.35 11,486,000 - 8,121,000 - - 3,365,000 - 17.452
23/05/2002 8.90 30,000 - 30,000 - - - - 19.877
14/04/2003 6.29 248,000 - 128,000 - - 120,000 - 15.992
/ET Sub-total 11,764,000 - 8,279,000 - - 3,485,000

RS B BB RE PSR 2 AR RIAEREAR D

Number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares in the
Company covered by the share options.

PRERDEREMEE 2 AR RIRNER - ARER 2. The price of the Company’s shares disclosed for options granted is the closing
BESEREAH—EXSA  BRNEEEHER price quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
SMBERAR ([BAFT]) Rz mE - RFEAD Exchange”) on the trading day immediately before the date of the grant of
TTERBARAE T 2 R A RIRIDENR - AEEBERE the respective options. The price of the Company’s shares disclosed for the
1118 B EART - R A BE S FTFT Rz W (B 2 hn i options exercised during the year is the weighted average of the closing
g - prices quoted on the Stock Exchange immediately before the date of exercise
of options.
BB T IE AR M ERAN A & 5 TR TSR B 765 25 B The accounting policy adopted for the share options granted is set out in
A note 2Q to the financial statements.
EfBER=ETF—A=+—ATFUKILE " Bt 3. The Old Scheme was terminated on 31 January 2002, and therefore no
A% - RARIBIEBRBRE SR E I REARE - options have been granted under the Old Scheme since then.
EXFrE R 2 BRE RSN L B RER T F 4. All the share options granted as mentioned above will expire on the date
Z BEm - MEREHERE s RER/BEIT - falling ten years from the date of grant and consideration for each grant is
HK$1.00.
BRI 2 BRABAREN R FE NI EITE - HUR 5. As the relevant share options granted have not been exercised during the
BERRELTER - year under review, no price disclosure is applicable.
BRE—RA—XZHHBE - NEHAHRAIAT 6.  Share options are generally either fully vested and exercisable immediately

RO BOHLEE -
18 -

AmEE AR NER

after the date of grant or vested in five tranches and exercisable over a
period of 4 years from date of grant.
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(F) RAQRAEBITLERRERBHGFEEH
e
¥a %A
EEns Long position/

Name of Directors Short position

EN R
Song Lin Long position
PR A& HE
Chen Shulin Long position

=P S}
Keung Chi Wang, Ralph Long position

As at 31 December 2006, the interests and short positions of the directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO, which have been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO, including interests and short positions which the directors and chief
executive of the Company are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO, or which are required to be and are recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

(@) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company
AL L2
HEER B Aggregate
iav 4= Number of percentage of

Number of shares underlying shares’ interest? (%)

TE "R
Wang Qun Long position
2B "R

Lau Pak Shing

e
Kwong Man Him

Long position

FA
Long position

BK HE
Qiao Shibo Long position
i HE
Yan Biao Long position

1,800,000 - 0.08
2,412,000 - 0.10
1,166,000 - 0.05

360,000 0.02

1,000,000 0.04
1,194,000 0.05
1,400,000 0.06
2,600,000 0.1
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Name of Directors

R

Jiang Wei

ThbE
Wang Shuaiting

il
Xie Shengxi

BR 3 25
Chan Po Fun, Peter

BARE

Houang Tai Ninh

FRE
Li Ka Cheung, Eric

B RARRM P RERAR

¥R e
Long position/
Short position

wE

Long position

ey}
Long position

ey}
Long position

ey}
Long position

Long position

EE 2R E Report of the Directors

(@) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of

the Company (continued)

G E DL
tHEAR BB Aggregate
iavg =] Number of percentage of

Number of shares

underlying shares'

interest? (%)

5 EX TRt 8] —EiRF il B R BB BHE P K fY
ARFERERD - ZEBRERBNIF LTAEYR
WHI B APTAET A -

EARBA RAABRO TR ABIERRARR=
ZERFT A=+ HEBTRALHENAD L -
FHERHRE S B LEF8.25%C BITRAZ AR
BA -

BHESSAMIEEIN ARENRBZEEHRE
ENBEHBEEAZENEER -

240,000 - 0.01
30,000 - 0.001
180,000 - 0.01
336,000 200,000 0.08
170,0008
- 200,000 0.01
- 200,000 0.01
1. This refer to underlying shares of the Company covered by share options

granted as detailed above under the section headed “Share Option
Schemes”, such options being unlisted physically settled equity derivatives.

2. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
and underlying shares of the Company to the total issued share capital of

the Company as at 31 December 2006.

3. Such interest is held by a company of which Dr. Chan Po Fun, Peter is
interested in 88.25% of its issued share capital.

4. Save as otherwise specified under note 3, interests disclosed hereunder are
being held by each director in his capacity as beneficial owner.
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(Z) REfzEEETEaERRERBRG PHEFAN (b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of

B associated corporations

AB - EFUESHEEEBER (ERRGEH As at the same date, certain directors had interests in the issued

RHABEN)) B2 31T MR RAR R T ordinary shares and underlying shares covered by options granted

BIPTR I RER D < BREP AR - % under the share option schemes of associated corporations (within

EHREBERLBNIE LMUBYRWHIRARLTE the meaning of SFO), such options being unlisted physically settled

THA: equity derivatives:

i) R—EEEEE-ZBEHWERARQA ()  Interests in issued ordinary shares and options outstanding
([FEEEM]) EBITEBREREBEHR under the share option schemes of an associated corporation,
BEERESS S RITEERE 2 China Resources Land Limited (“CR Land”):

T

bR

) AR AT E R & EklA

MR ERE BT Aggregate

3a/ %A e ¢E] Number of Exercise Percentage

EENE Long position/ Number of  share options Price R B of interest®

Name of Directors Short position shares outstanding’ HK$ Date of grant (%)

R HE - 900,000 1.230 01/06/20052 0.03
Song Lin Long position

PRABIIR HE - 700,000 1.230 01/06/20052 0.02
Chen Shulin Long position

EIE] Y HE - 500,000 1.270 02/06/2005° 0.02
Lau Pak Shing Long position

B 5= - 700,000 1.230 01/06/20052 0.02
Qiao Shibo Long position

B 5= 2,400,000 - - - 0.07
Yan Biao Long position

BiE 5= 892,000 - - - 0.03
Jiang Wei Long position

TR HE - 540,000 1.590 04/03/20025% 0.02
Wang Shuaiting Long position

HEBE=E HE 80,000 500,000 1.230 01/06/2005* 0.02
Xie Shengxi Long position
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(b)

EE 2R E Report of the Directors

Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of

associated corporations (continued)
The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares of
CR Land covered by the share options.

Except for options granted by CR Land on 4 March 2002, 1 June 2005 and
2 June 2005 which are exercisable within a period of 10 years from the date
of grant, the expiry date for all other share options mentioned above is 27
May 2007. Consideration for each of the grants mentioned above is HK$1.00.

Options are vested in four tranches and exercisable on 2 June 2006, 2007,
2008 and 2009 to 1 June 2015. Consideration for the grant is HK$1.00.

Options are vested in four tranches and exercisable on 1 June 2006, 2007,
2008 and 2009 to 31 May 2015. Consideration for the grant is HK$1.00.

Options are exercisable from 4 March 2002 to 31 January 2012.
Consideration for the grant is HK$1.00.

This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
and underlying shares of CR Land to the total issued share capital of CR
Land as at 31 December 2006.

All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his capacity
as beneficial owner.
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() RERZECRITLERRARBY PHEEN
i

(i) BE-HEBEE - EHBSER AR

([FEEBE) BT ERR RREER

BB R EST B MR ITEERE

N

M

138/ %A
Long position/

Esnz

Name of Directors Short position

R e
Song Lin Long position
e
Long position
HRe A
Yan Biao Long position
BE e
Jiang Wei Long position
FHIEE e
Wang Shuaiting Long position
Eill= e
Xie Shengxi Long position

1. BRUEBE BTSN EE B BRI )
B -

2. EEEMERMNFEBRBRG KA BRBISER
BER —ETRE T A=+ HEBTRAEHD
Bk e

3. BhEIRRLEBBREADES TFHBEA
1 -

4, B 2 R P R — ST —FANAES
—ZT——FPANBIEEETE - S ALBET
AR-_ET-_FWNANR  —TT=F  —TTEF
;r—EERF-A—HEZZ—_FWNA/)\H M
7 - EiltEAEENREREBREIT -

5.  EXHBEZEGREHREEENEREEAZTN
A e

(b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of
associated corporations (continued)

(i) Interests in issued ordinary shares and options outstanding
under the share option schemes of an associated corporation,
China Resources Logic Limited (“CR Logic”):

bR
je) K 17 (R 1TiEE EhlA
MBI ER R BT Aggregate
RRi3&E Number of Exercise Percentage
Number of  share options Price BHAH of interest?
shares outstanding’ HK$ Date of grant (%)
3,600,000 6,900,000 0.590 21/09/2000° 0.45

2,000,000 0.906 13/01/2004°
- 6,000,000 0.790 04/12/2001° 0.22
- 720,000 0.820 09/04/20024 0.03
- 540,000 0.820 09/04/2002° 0.02
- 450,000 0.820 09/04/20024 0.02

1. The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares of
CR Logic covered by the share options.

2. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
and underlying shares of CR Logic to the total issued share capital of CR
Logic as at 31 December 2006.

3. Options are exercisable within a period of 10 years from the date of grant of
the relevant options.

4, Options are either vested immediately and exercisable from 9 April 2002 to
8 April 2012 or vested in four tranches and exercisable on 9 April 2002, 1
January 2003, 2004 and 2005 to 8 April 2012. Consideration for each of the
grants mentioned above is HK$1.00.

5. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his capacity

as beneficial owner.
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Esns Long position/
Name of Directors Short position
AR e

Song Lin Long position
BRAGI AR e

Chen Shulin Long position
TE e

Wang Qun Long position
G e

Lau Pak Shing Long position
SR e

Qiao Shibo Long position
g e

Yan Biao Long position
BE e

Jiang Wei Long position
FanE e

Wang Shuaiting Long position
HBE e

Xie Shengxi Long position
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(b) Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of
associated corporations (continued)

(i)  Interests in issued ordinary shares and options outstanding

under the share option scheme of an associated corporation,

China Resources Power Holdings Company Limited (“CR

Power”):
HiGHER
B AR AT E RS & Ek A
MR EYR" BT Aggregate
BirEE Number of Exercise Percentage
Number of  share options Price EHaH of interest*

shares outstanding’ HK$ Date of grant (%)

- 2,000,000 2.80 12/11/2003? 0.08
900,000 3.99 18/03/2005°

- 600,000 2.80 12/11/2003? 0.03
500,000 3.99 18/03/2005°

- 500,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.01

- 500,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.01

- 600,000 2.80 12/11/20032 0.03
500,000 3.99 18/03/2005°
- 30,000° 2.80 12/11/2003?

- 600,000 2.80 12/11/2003? 0.03
400,000 3.99 18/03/2005°

- 1,000,000 2.80 12/11/2003? 0.04
600,000 3.99 18/03/2005°

2,000,000 2,350,000 2.80 06/10/2003* 0.14
900,000 3.99 18/03/2005*

- 400,000 2.80 12/11/2003? 0.02
300,000 3.99 18/03/2005°
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(b)

Interests in issued ordinary shares and underlying shares of

associated corporations (continued)
The number of share options refers to the number of underlying shares of
CR Power covered by the share options.

Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary of the
date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of grant. All
options expire on 6 October 2013. Consideration for each of the grants
mentioned above is HK$1.00.

Options are vested in 5 tranches of 20% each on each anniversary of the
date of grant commencing from the first anniversary of the date of grant. All
options expire on 18 March 2015. Consideration for each of the grants
mentioned above is HK$1.00.

Options are exercisable within a period of 10 years from date of grant of the
relevant period.

This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in shares
and underlying shares of CR Power to the total issued share capital of CR
Power as at 31 December 2006.

Mr. Qiao Shibo was deemed to be interested in the 30,000 underlying shares
through interests of his spouse.

Save as otherwise specified in note 6, all other interests disclosed above are
being held by each director in his capacity as beneficial owner.
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Name of interested party

China Resources National Corporation

China Resources Co., Limited (Note 1)

CRC Bluesky Limited (Note 1)

China Resources (Holdings) Company
Limited (“CRH”) (Note 1)

Commonwealth Bank of Australia (Note 2)

J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. (Note 3)
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As at 31 December 2006, other than the interests and short positions as

disclosed above, the following persons have interests or short positions

in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as fall to be disclosed

to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company:

HERSABRB
BHESNRBHE
Number of

shares in which
the interested
party is deemed
to have interests

1,227,862,380
1,227,862,380
1,227,862,380

1,227,862,380

211,723,767
140,440,757

Notes:

RREESLL
Percentage of
shareholding (%)

52.06
52.06
52.06

52.06

8.98
5.95

1. CRH is a 100% subsidiary of CRC Bluesky Limited, which is in turn owned
as to 100% by China Resources Co., Limited, which is in turn held as to

99.98% by CRNC.

2. According to the information disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, these shares were held by corporations
controlled directly or indirectly as to 100% by Commonwealth Bank of

Australia.

3. Accordingly to the information disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, these shares were held by J.P. Morgan Chase
& Co. and corporations controlled by it (Note 4) in the respective following

capacity:

Capacity

Beneficial owner
Investment manager
Approved lending agent
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EEEH

J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.
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Notes: (continued)

4.

Name of corporation

J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.

According to the information disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, other than the following corporations which
were held by J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. in the manner described below, all
these corporations were controlled directly or indirectly as to 100% by J.P.
Morgan Chase & Co.

J.P. Morgan Chase & Co.
EEEE

FEESES
Percentage interest
(direct or indirect) held by
J.P. Morgan Chase & Co.

98.95%

According to certain loan agreements, CRH is required to remain as a

beneficial owner of at least 35% of the voting shares of the Company or

remain as a single largest shareholder (whether directly or indirectly through
its subsidiaries) of the Company. As at 31 December 2006, the aggregate
amount of the facilities subject to such obligation were HK$5,700 million.

Such facilities will expire before May 2011.

On 6 March 2006, Worldfaith Properties Limited, a subsidiary in which
the Company has an indirect interest of approximately 88.6%,
entered into a contract with China Resources Construction Company
Limited (“CR Construction”), a subsidiary in which China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited (“CRH”), the controlling shareholder of
the Company, has an approximately 99.6% interest, engaging it as
the main contractor for the construction works of the superstructure
of a twelve-storey commercial building at 233-239 Nathan Road,
Kowloon for a consideration of HK$97,912,000. Monthly payments
will be made according to the amount of works performed and
certified by the architect. 10% of the certified amount attributable to
CR Construction will be retained, subject to a maximum amount of
HK$2,511,000, as retention money which will be released after
completion of the construction.
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With an objective of becoming the largest consumer company in
China, the Group has been restructuring its non-core businesses so
as to shift its focus to the core consumer business and to divest the
non-core businesses. On 18 October 2006, Preparis Limtied, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with
China Resources Petrochems Gas Group Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of CRH (the controlling shareholder of the Company), for
the disposal of its 100% equity interest in China Resources
Petrochems Holdings Limited (“CRPH”) for a cash consideration of
HK$2,780 million. CRPH was then a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and the holding company of the Company’s piped gas
businesses, chemicals distribution businesses and other petroleum
related businesses in Chinese Mainland.

On 3 January 2007, China Resources Snow Breweries Limited (“CR
Snow”), a 51% owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement with all the holders of equity interest in B2 % (5£[&) AR
FEAF] (“Blue Sword”) for the acquisition of the entire equity interest
in Blue Sword at a cash consideration of RMB2,500 million. Under
the agreement, Blue Sword would undergo a restructuring so that
the assets of Blue Sword upon completion would mainly consist of
the 38% interest in 14 brewery companies in Sichuan Province and
a 100% interest in a brewery company in Guizhou Province. The
remaining 62% interest in the 14 Sichuan brewery companies was
owned by CR Snow. The acquisition enabled the Group to
consolidate its interest in the 14 Sichuan brewery companies and to
further enhance the operational efficiency of, and the control of the
Group in, these breweries. As two of the vendors, who together had
an approximately 10.65% interest in Blue Sword, were also directors
of the 14 Sichuan brewery companies, which were subsidiaries of
CR Snow, that part of the acquisition attributable to these two
connected persons constituted a connected transaction of the
Company.
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During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions with

connected parties which constituted “continuing connected

transactions” under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Details of those continuing connected transactions which are subject

to the reporting requirements under Rule 14A.46 of the Listing Rules

are summarised as follows:

(@

Tank storage agreements and facilities management
agreements

On 1 January 2000, China Resources Petroleum Company
Limited (“CRPC”), which became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company after being acquired in late 2000, entered
into a tank storage agreement with each of CRH, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, and Art Bill Investment Limited
(“ABIL”), a subsidiary of CRH, for the usage of storage capacity
at the Chai Wan and Tsing Yi oil depots, respectively. As the
oil depots are crucial to the operation of CRPC, the tank storage
agreements were entered for a term of 21 years commencing
on 1 January 2000. The aggregate storage fee payable by
CRPC to CRH and ABIL was HK$141,600,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2006.

On 1 January 2000, each of CRH and ABIL entered into a
facilities management agreement with China Resources
Petrochems (Group) Company Limited (“CRPG”), which
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company after being
acquired in late 2000, in respect of the provision of
management services by CRPG for the Chai Wan and Tsing Vi
oil depots, respectively. The facilities management agreements
also have a term of 21 years. For the year ended 31 December
2006, the aggregate management fee payable by CRH and
ABIL to CRPG was HK$19,992,000.
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Facilities management agreement and godown
management agreement

On 31 December 2002, Yuen Fat Wharf & Godown Company
Limited (“Yuen Fat”), which became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company after being acquired in July 2003, entered
into a facilities management agreement (subsequently
amended pursuant to a supplemental agreement dated 15
April 2003) with CRH, the controlling shareholder of the
Company, for the provision of management services by Yuen
Fat on the port premises and facilities developed on a site
owned by CRH in Sham Shui Po, Kowloon. Under the
agreement, Yuen Fat had paid CRH a monthly fee of
HK$800,000 (from 1 July 2003 to 30 June 2005) and
HK$1,000,000 (from 1 July 2005 to 30 June 2006) in
consideration for the right to keep, as the service fee payable
by CRH to Yuen Fat for that relevant month, all cargo handling
fees, service charges and other payments collected by Yuen
Fat at its own expenses from independent third parties. This
agreement was for a term of 3 years and 6 months
commencing on 1 January 2003 and was renewable at the
option of Yuen Fat for a further 3 years. On 28 June 2006, this
agreement was renewed by Yuen Fat for a further term of three
years commencing on 1 July 2006. The monthly fee payable
is HK$1,000,000 throughout the term and all the other terms
and conditions remained unchanged.

On 31 December 2002, Yuen Fat also entered into a godown
management agreement (as amended on 15 April 2003) with
Dragon Rider Development Limited (“DRDL”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CRH, for the management, by Yuen Fat, of a
godown owned by DRDL in Sham Shui Po, Kowloon. Under
the agreement, Yuen Fat had paid DRDL a monthly fee of
HK$1,700,000 (from 1 July 2003 to 30 June 2005) and
HK$2,000,000 (from 1 July 2005 to 30 June 20086) in
consideration for the right to keep, as the service fee payable
by DRDL to Yuen Fat for that relevant month, all licence fees
and other payments collected by Yuen Fat at its own expenses
from independent third parties. This agreement has the same
term as the above facilities management agreement. On 28
June 2006, this agreement was renewed by Yuen Fat for a
further term of three years commencing on 1 July 2006. The
monthly fee payable is HK$2,000,000 throughout the term and
all the other terms and conditions remained unchanged.

For the year ended 31 December 2006, the aggregate receipt
of service fees payable by CRH and DRDL to Yuen Fat
amounted to HK$258,496,000 while the aggregate payment
of monthly fees by Yuen Fat to CRH and DRDL amounted to
HK$36,000,000.
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(c)

FENZHFHE -

FEAL
Connected party

EETmRMAELOAT
Shanghai Foodstuff
Import & Export Corp.

HIEERBERAR
Ceroilfood Development
Company Limited

P EIKEB QT
China National Fisheries Corp.

FAf%
Relationship

FELET—RME AT

4990 g HI R

49% shareholder of

a subsidiary of NFH

KERLET—RMBAR

20% A2 s OB SR HOBEEE A

an associate of a 20%
shareholder of a subsidiary

of NFH

FEDLET—RMBAR

49% 1 2 AR R

49% shareholder of

a subsidiary of NFH

Foodstuff agreements

On 3 June 2005, Ng Fung Hong Limited (“NFH”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the foodstuff
agreements for a term ending on 31 December 2007 with each
of the connected parties below in relation to the sale and/or
purchase of foodstuff products with these parties. Under the
foodstuff agreements, NFH and each of these connected
parties have agreed that in the event that any member of the
NFH group and any of these connected parties or any of its
associates enter into a foodstuff transaction, such transaction
will be conducted on normal commercial terms. The prices
paid or received by any member of the NFH group to or from
the above parties or their associates will either be at market
prices or at prices no less favourable to the NFH group than
those available to or from independent third parties. Details of
these transactions for the year ended 31 December 2006 are
summarised below.

BE-SFTRE
+=A=+-H
IEEENRSEHE

Amount of transactions

Z5HE for the year ended
Nature of transactions 31 December 2006
(7E¥&5T)
(HKS)
HBERM 52,466,000
Purchase of foodstuff
BERM 70,401,000
Purchase of foodstuff
HERM 62,202,000
Sale of foodstuff
BERM 1,950,000

Purchase of foodstuff
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Textile agreement

On 3 June 2005, China Resources Textiles (Holdings) Company
Limited (“CRT”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the textile agreement with China Resources
National Corporation (“CRNC”), the ultimate holding company
of the Company, for a term ending on 31 December 2007.
Under the textile agreement, CRT and CRNC have agreed that
in the event that any member of the CRT group and any
member of the CRNC group (other than the Group) enter into
a transaction of textile related merchandises, such transaction
will be conducted on normal commercial terms. The prices
received by any member of the CRT group from any member
of the CRNC group will be either at market prices or at prices
no less favourable to CRT or its subsidiaries than those
available from independent third parties. For the year ended
31 December 2006, the aggregate amount of sale of textile
related merchandises to the CRNC group amounted to
HK$1,195,000.

Tenancy agreement

On 3 June 2005, the Company entered into the tenancy
agreement with CRNC, the ultimate holding company of the
Company, for a term ending on 31 December 2007. The CRNC
group is a conglomerate with significant property investments
including residential, commercial and industrial premises in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Under the tenancy agreement, the
Company and CRNC have agreed that in the event that any
member of the Company enters into a lease arrangement with
any member of the CRNC group (other than the Group), the
terms of the lease will be on normal commercial terms and the
lease term will not exceed 31 December 2007. The rent,
management fees and other charges set by any member of
the CRNC group to any member of the Group will be either at
market prices or at prices no less favourable to the Group
than those available from independent third parties.

For the year ended 31 December 2006, the aggregate amount
of rental, management fees and other related charges payable
by the Group to the CRNC group was HK$56,384,000.
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Decoration agreement

On 3 June 2005, the Company entered into the decoration
agreement with Uconia Company Limited (“Uconia”), an
approximately 100% owned subsidiary of CRNC which in turn
is the ultimate holding company of the Company, for a term
ending on 31 December 2007. Under the decoration
agreement, the Company and Uconia have agreed that in the
event that any member of the Company grants a contract to
any member of the Uconia group or any of its associates for
the design, decoration and furnishing of the Group’s offices,
retail outlets and investment properties, the services rendered
will be charged on normal commercial terms as described in
the decoration agreement. The prices charged by Uconia or
its subsidiaries or any of their associates to any member of
the Group will either be at market prices or at prices no less
favourable to the Group than those available from independent
third parties. For the year ended 31 December 20086, the
aggregate amount charged by the Uconia group or any of its
associates totalled HK$5,412,000.

The directors engaged the auditors of the Company/subsidiary to

perform certain agreed upon procedures in respect of continuing

connected transactions of the Group. The procedures were

performed solely to assist the directors of the Company to evaluate

in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules whether, the

above continuing connected transactions:

(@)

(b)

had received the approval of the directors of the Company;

had been entered into in accordance with the terms of the
relevant agreements governing such transactions;

had been entered into in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group if the transactions involve provision of goods or
services by the Group; and

had not exceeded the relevant cap amounts for the financial
year ended 31 December 2006.
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The auditors of the Company/subsidiary have reported their factual
findings on these procedures to the directors that the samples the
auditors selected were in agreement in respect of items (a) and (b)
above. In respect of item (c), the samples selected were, where
applicable, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group. In
respect of item (d), the auditors compared the aggregate amount
for each type of connected transactions as set out in section 4(a) to
4(f) above and reported that such aggregate amounts had not
exceeded the relevant cap amounts for the year ended 31 December
20086.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these transactions and confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(@ inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions, on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

(c) inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

REZBEREFTA=1T—10 SXEMNBREER Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries and associates as at 31
AL HERTIENE161 BEEE1698 - December 2006 are set out on pages 161 to 169.

RABIRFABLEI TR N BRIE 2 FHIEE NI Details of the share options issued or granted during the year by the
WENF=+—R - Company are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

RABSEMBERTRAFALEIER - HEREE Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
AU ETES © any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares
as required under the Listing Rules.

During the year, the respective percentage of the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and the aggregate turnover
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers was less than 30% of
the Group’s total value of purchases and total turnover.

Details of the significant post balance events of the Group are set out in
note 38 to the financial statements.

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Lee Yip Wah, Peter
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 4 April 2007
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA RESOURCES ENTERPRISE, LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Resources
Enterprise, Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 85 to 169, which comprise the
consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 December 20086,
and the consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2006 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
4 April 2007
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Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution expenses
General and administrative expenses
Finance costs

Share of net results of associates

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company
Minority interests

Earnings per share
Basic

Diluted
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2005
BEEET
HK$ million

(E51)
(Restated)

53,891
(44,698)

9,193
1,673
(5,452)
(2,153)
(440)
354

3,175
(557)

2,618

2,220
398

2,618

HK$1.02

HK$1.00
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Notes

Non-current assets
Fixed assets
— Investment properties 15
— Interests in leasehold land held

for own use under operating leases 15
— Other property, plant and equipment 15
Goodwill 16
Other intangible assets 17
Interests in associates 20
Available for sale investments 21
Prepayments 22
Deferred taxation assets 30
Current assets
Stocks 23
Trade and other receivables 24
Derivative financial instruments 25
Taxation recoverable
Cash and bank balances 26
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 27
Derivative financial instruments 25
Short term loans 29a
Taxation payable
Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Long term liabilities 29b
Deferred taxation liabilities 30
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2005

B EETT BEEETT
HK$ million HK$ million
(&%)

(Restated)

5,402

2,060
13,974
3,084
630
1,070
14

411
140

26,848
6,490
5,616

70

22

6,926

19,124
(11,550)
(85)

(5,169)
(234)

(17,038)
2,086

28,934

(5,040)
(951)

22,943
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B EE BEBRETT BEEET
Notes HK$ million HKS$ million
(2%
(Restated)
AR EHE Capital and reserves

[N Share capital 31 2,233
e Reserves 32 15,963

EATRREIEHEL Equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company 18,196
DERRRES Minority interests 4,747
ERELS Total equity 22,943

FR##Hk Chen Shulin Z4% Keung Chi Wang, Ralph
EF Director Z % Director
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Notes HK$ million
Non-current assets
Fixed assets
— Investment properties 15
— Other property, plant and equipment 15
Interests in subsidiaries 18
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 24
Cash and bank balances 26
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 27
Taxation payable
Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Deferred taxation liabilities 30
Capital and reserves
Share capital 31
Reserves 32
BR#i4k Chen Shulin Z4% Keung Chi Wang, Ralph
E Z Director EZE Director
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2005
BEEETT
HK$ million

51

15,794

15,850

281
1,652

1,933

(238)

(6)

(244)

1,689

17,539

17,531

2,233
15,298

17,531
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—TThEF
2005
M BEBRET BEBEET
Notes HKS$ million HK$ million
(E75))
(Restated)
WETHZRERE Cash flows from operating activities
rEmseRE Cash generated from operations 33A 3,951
ENEEFEH Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (215)
BB A TS Chinese Mainland income tax paid (193)
ERIEINET Overseas profit tax paid (5)
REBRBNEH Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded 4
REREINMPTSH Chinese Mainland income tax refunded -
EEEFHZHRERNFE Net cash from operating activities 3,542
BETBZRERE Cash flows from investing activities
HEBTEEEMEHRIA Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 468
HEAIEHRERKR Proceeds from disposal of and repayment
TETQEZ‘%% from available for sale investments 117
[mRE NG Dividends received from associates 216
EH&ZEJ%&,%HX@ Dividends received from available
for sale investments 5
BEUHILE Interest received 170
BAETEEE Purchase of fixed assets (2,861)
B Prepayment for rental deposit (57)
BEREERMNEERELN Prepayments on purchase of interests in
TR 2 FARTR leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases -
HEMBRAR, %% Chk Disposal of subsidiaries/business (net of
HEZHe RE2EHE) cash and cash equivalent disposed of)  33B 497
HE B N RIS 508 Proceeds from disposal of associates 739
WHEHTB AR, %55 Acquisition of subsidiaries/business
ORISRz RE R (net of cash and cash equivalents
ReEE) acquired) 33C (300)
EEMBAREE Acquisition of additional interests
in subsidiaries (23)
ARBRERESZFRE Net cash used in investing activities (1,029)
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#2184 mE X Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

B 22006 F 12 A 31 HiF%/Z For the year ended 31 December 2006

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid
Dividends paid to minority shareholders
of subsidiaries
Finance lease charges paid
Interest paid
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings
Repayment of bank and other borrowings
Capital elements of finance lease rental
payment
Contribution from minority shareholders

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Effect on foreign exchange rate changes
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Analysis of the balances of cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances
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BEEHETT
HK$ million

—ZThF
2005
BEBET
HKS$ million
(&%)
(Restated)

(640)
(177)
(304)
436
6,880
(6,684)
17
(475)
2,038

34
4,854

6,926

6,926
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DY
g 4]
FATRFEEES Minority Total
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company interests equity
Rakf
TRtk
Employee 2k
Bx  ROEE  BERE shaebased  EREE 0 HRGE 0 ERGE  REEA
Share Share Valuation  compensation Warrant Hedge Exchange Retained At
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total

A%BEr BYBEER  AWEET A%EEn  AMRER  BMBER  A%EEn  ANEER  ABEEn  AMEER  BEEER
HK§ milion ~ HKSmilon ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HK$milion ~ HKSmilion  HKS milion

RIEERE A1 January 2006
A

—A-H 2,233 11,624 4 145 168 3 188 3,831 18,196 4,747 22,943
EX32 Exchange rate adjustments - - - - - - 33 - 33 126 489
ERE Fair value adjustment on

\

AEEBE  avalable for sale investments - - 2 - = s - . ? - 9
BAITEER  Recognition of changes in

TALREE  fairvalue on derivative

28 financialinstruments - = = - . (14) . B (14 B} (1)

BREDEES  Netincome/erpense)

ZWNFE  recognised directly In equity = - 2 = - (14) 33 - 51 1% 47
REZHE2H  Release upon settlement of

TAfER derivative financial

instruments - - - - - 2 - - ?) - ?)

RHENBAE  Release due to disposal of
[ikhe subsidlaries - - - - - - (45) = (#5) = (45)
TREMESER  Profitatirbutable to shareholders = = = = = = = 2,776 2776 549 3325

REEEER  Total recognised income and

e expenses for the year = = 2 = = (16) 318 2776 3080 675 3755
EREERA  Shareissued at premium 125 93 - - - - - - 1,108 - 1,108
EARAER  Shareissue expenses - (1) = = - - . - 0] , i)
REENBAR  Acquisiion of subsidiaries = = = = = = = = = 53 53
BEWENT  Purchase of additional interest

3 in subsicries - - - - - - - = = o) ©)
HEMBAT  Disposal of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - (119) (119)
REEHEASE  Release upon repayment of

TAKEH compound financil

instruments - - - - (168) - - 168 - - -
BRE Dividends - - - - - - - (3,265) (3,265) (156) (3.421)

DEEFEE  Contrbution from minority
shareholders - - - - - - - - - 633 633
EEBRERF  Employee share option benefits = = = 2 = = = = 2 = 2
125 92 2 3 (168) (16) 318 321) o5 1077 202

RZZTRE A3t December 2006

+-A=t-H 2,358 12,606 6 168 = (13) 506 3,510 19,141 5,824 24,965
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ﬂ% Exchange rate adjustments
BRITEER  Recognition of fair value gain
TADABE  ondervative financiel
s instruments

Net income recognised directly
in equity
tributable to shareholders

ZBAFE
BREEEH  Poftat

REEEER  Totalrecognised income and
sEs | expenses for the year

R&E %V'x*ﬁﬁxf/\ Share issued at premium

WENER Acquistion of subsidiaries

ERRER T Purchase of adtional interest
3 in subsidlaries

RHENBAE  Release due to disposal of
[ikhe subsidiaries

k& Dividends

DHRREE  Controution from minority

shareholders

E2BRERF  Employee share option benefits

RZEZHE At 31 December 2005
TZA=1+-H

k&
Share
capital
EBEET
HK$ million

2,233

Rk
Share
premium

EEBET

HKS milion

10,637

987

987

11,624

{ERE
Valuation
reserve

EYBET

HKS million

FATRRESER
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company
EakH
TRtk
Employee 2k
share-based  HEEEGE  HREE
compensation Warrant Hedge
reserve reserve reserve
E¥EET AY¥EET  EMEER
HKSmilion ~ HK§ milion ~ HKS million
92 168 (27
- - 30
- - 30
- - 30
53 - -
53 - 30
145 168 3
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Bk
Exchange
reserve
EBEET
HKS million

179

179

179

179

188

RERA
Retained
profits

EYBET

HKS million

2,246

2,220

2,225

1,585

3,831

Y
ey 5]
Minority
interests
it
Total
A%BET  A¥REL
HK$ milion  HK$ milion
15,250 4,812
7 o
179 74
30 -
216 74
2,200 398
2,436 472
1,097 -
- 2
- (346)
= (33)
(640) (177
- 17
53 -
2,946 (65)
18,196 4,747

)
Total
equity

EYBET

HKS milion

20,062

253

30

290
2,618

2,881

22,943



REERAF
RAR—EREEZEMKLZ ETHAR - B
BN ERBBERBMARAR (B £
e BERARN_ETRNF+_A=1t—HH
RASTEIR A B B AR 2 80 o Bl 52 42
REN([PEER]) - AARZMRERRTE
EE M B E U TN FRA o

AEET2RETE o RmlIEE
B R MERE R A R AR R E m S
o RARZEBEBRUXBERKEE
B iE I E A ] KB R R A 2 FERS T
RE161EEE169E °

AR Em R

BE_TTRF+ A=t RILFENME
BETDRBEEEARGHRARE o BT X
- EZEFTBEREFRERSN - MRS TR
BBERAERIRR -

A - ER A MR E BIRM R RS LR Al
REBRBGPIRENERFESER -

BHHERED
FELMEFTE - AEER SRR E BT
FHESAASR - ERAREEGARERGE
B 1 P B B TR 1 B W MO AT
1B SINGA BERES -

H-EENF—A—H  AEEERERLR
THIE RN RSN IRAEE SR (g4
BIlL) Z8315% [ L A3 il E g w2 | FREUA L
BIEGHE - EFRRERLLOIE AR E AR
R A BN RGBT R AR
KBRE -

RIBLLPIAHHE - NEBE G RIZEH EEEK
BE - ABREXTRE RS EEERALE
MBmEPHRLUAER AHEHE -

Ultimate holding company

The Company is a public company incorporated in Hong Kong and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The directors regard the ultimate holding
company as at 31 December 2006 to be China Resources National
Corporation (“CRNC”), a company established in the Chinese
Mainland. The address of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company is disclosed in the annual report.

The Group is principally engaged in retail, beverage, food processing
and distribution, textile, property investment and petroleum and
related products distribution businesses. The principal activities of
the Company are property investment and investment holding, and
the activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are shown
on pages 161 to 169.

Basic of preparation of the financial statements

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. Save as specified in the principal accounting
policies as set out in note 2, the financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Change in Accounting Policy

In prior years, interests in jointly controlled entities were accounted
for using the equity method, which are stated on the consolidated
balance sheet at the Group’s share of net assets of the entities plus
goodwill arising on acquisitions, less any identified impairment loss.

With effect from 1 January 2006, the Group adopts the proportionate
consolidation method as set out in the Hong Kong Accounting
Standard (“HKAS”) 31 “Interests in Jointly Controlled Entities” for
the recognition of interests in jointly controlled entities. The Directors
of the Company consider that the use of proportionate consolidation
method better reflects the substance and economic reality of the
Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities.

Under the proportionate consolidation method, the Group’s share
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses of joint controlled entities
is combined on a line-by-line basis with similar items in the Group’s
financial statements.
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Change in Accounting Policy (continued)

Although the change in accounting policy does not have any effect
on the Group’s net assets as at 31 December 2005 and the Group’s
consolidated profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended
31 December 2005, it would result in certain changes in individual
line items of the consolidated accounts. The new accounting policy
has been applied retrospectively and the comparatives have been
restated accordingly. Details of the accounting policy are set out in
note 2C.

(i)  Restatement of prior periods and opening balances
(1)  Effect on the consolidated profit and loss account for
the year ended 31 December 2005

RIS
“EBLE EPryE
2005 Effectof Z—BBHE

(MEEH)  changein 2005
(As previously  accounting (&5
reported) policy (As restated)

BEEET A¥EET  AY%EER
HK$ million ~ HK$ million ~ HK$ million

Turnover 53,584 307 53,891
Cost of sales (44,439) (259) (44,698)
Gross profit 9,145 48 9,193
Other income 1,661 12 1,673
Selling and distribution expenses (5,449) 3) (5,452)
General and administrative expenses (2,102) (51) (2,153)
Finance costs (439) (1) (440)
Share of net results of jointly

controlled entities B (5) =
Share of net results of associates 354 - 354
Profit before taxation 3,175 - 3,175
Taxation (557) - (657)
Profit for the year 2,618 - 2,618
Attributable to:

Shareholders of the Company 2,220 - 2,220

Minority interests 398 - 398

2,618 - 2,618
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Change in Accounting Policy (continued)
(i)  Restatement of prior periods and opening balances
(continued)
(2) Effect on the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
December 2005

BEHER
“EREE  ggepeE
2005 Effectof Z—FBTERE

(MEEH)  changein 2005
(As previously  accounting (&%)
reported) policy (As restated)

AEEET AKEEr  BBEER
HK$ million  HKS$ million  HK$ million

Non-current assets
Fixed assets
- Investment properties 5,402 - 5,402
- Interests in leasehold land
held for own use under

operating leases 2,055 5 2,060
— Other property, plant

and equipment 13,398 576 13,974
Goodwill 3,084 - 3,084
Other intangible assets 227 403 630
Interests in jointly controlled entities 896 (896) =
Interests in associates 1,070 - 1,070
Available for sale investments 58 19 77
Prepayments 411 — 41
Deferred taxation assets 140 - 140
26,741 107 26,848

Current assets
Stocks 6,473 17 6,490
Trade and other receivables 5,487 129 5,616
Derivative financial instruments 70 - 70
Taxation recoverable 22 - 22
Cash and bank balances 6,668 258 6,926
18,720 404 19,124
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A ERBREE (B C  Change in Accounting Policy (continued)
()  EZFTEIR A4 () ()  Restatement of prior periods and opening balances
(continued)
@ RZEERF+ZA=1+—H% (2) Effect on the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
GEEABRITE ) December 2005 (continued)

BEHER
“EREE  gEepe
2005 Effectof Z—BFLE

(MEEH)  changein 2005
(As previously  accounting (&%)
reported) policy (As restated)

AEREL A¥EET  A¥EER
HK$ milion  HK$ million  HKS$ million

wEafE Current liabilities
BH REMENTIE Trade and other payables (11,268) (282) (11,550)
fTESBTE Derivative financial instruments (85) - (85)
REER Short term loans (5,169) - (5,169)
FER TR Taxation payable (234) - (234)
(16,756) (282)  (17,038)
RBEEFE Net current assets 1,064 122 2,086
BEERRDER Total assets less current liabilities 28,705 229 28,034
krgatE Non-current liabilities
=3 = Long term liabilities (4,811) (229) (5,040)
ERERIEAR Deferred taxation liabilities 951) - (951)
22,943 - 22,943
BEXRGE Capital and reserves
A Share capital 2,233 = 2,233
i Reserves 15,963 = 15,963
AATRRREGER Equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company 18,196 — 18,196
DYREED Minority interests 4,747 - 4,747
s Total equity 22,943 - 22,943
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Adoption of new and revised Accounting Standards and

Interpretation

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants has issued

a number of new and revised HKAS and Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) that are effective or available for

early adoption for the financial year beginning 1 January 2006. In

the current year, the Group has adopted the following amendments

and interpretation, which are relevant to the Group’s operations for

the financial year ended 31 December 2006.

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Cash Flow Hedges Accounting of
Forecast Intragroup Transactions

The Fair Value Option

Financial Guarantee Contracts

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4
(Amendment)

HKFRS Intrepretation 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease

The adoption of the above amendments and interpretation had no
material effects on the Group’s and the Company’s results and
financial position and did not result in substantial changes to the
Group’s accounting policies. No prior year adjustment has been
made.

D(i) Accounting Standards and Interpretations that are not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new standards,
amendment and interpretations that have been issued but are not
yet effective. The Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these standards, amendment or interpretations will
have no material impact on the financial statements of the Group.

HKAS 1 (Amendment)
HKFRS 7

HKFRS 8

HKFRS Interpretation 7

Capital Disclosures

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Operating Segments

Applying the Restatement Approach
under HKAS 29 “Financial Reporting
in Hyperinflationary Economies”

HKFRS Interpretation 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HKFRS Interpretation 9 Reassessment of Embedded

Derivatives

HKFRS Interpretation 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

HKFRS Interpretation 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

HKFRS Interpretation 12 Service Concession Arrangements
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Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include the
financial statements of the Company and of all its direct and indirect
subsidiaries and also incorporate the Group’s interests in jointly
controlled entities and associates on the basis set out in notes 2C
and 2D below. The results of subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities
and associates acquired or disposed of during the year are included
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate. All material intra-group transactions and
balances have been eliminated on consolidation.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enterprise in which the Company, directly or
indirectly, holds more than half of the issued share capital or controls
more than half of the voting power, or where the Company controls
the composition of its board of directors or equivalent governing
body. In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries
are carried at cost less any impairment loss. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Jointly Controlled Entities

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture held as a long term
investment and a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and
other parties undertake an economic activity which is subject to
joint control. The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements
using proportionate consolidation method. Under the proportionate
consolidation method, the Group combines its share of the jointly
controlled entities’ individual income and expenses, assets and
liabilities and cash flows on a line-by-line basis with similar items in
the consolidated financial statements. The Group recognises the
portion of gains or losses on the sale of assets by the Group to the
jointly controlled entity that it is attributable to the other venturers.
The Group does not recognises its share of profits and losses from
the jointly controlled entity that result from the Group’s purchase of
assets from the jointly controlled entity until it resells the assets to
an independent party. However, a loss on the transaction is
recognised immediately if the loss provides evidence of a reduction
in the net realisable value of current assets, or an impairment loss.

98 #EMAIX AR QT China Resources Enterprise, Limited ® Annual Report 2006 4%



o N
B2 N B TR B 1 B K SRR B BB IASD -
i SEIRIp GEE Al TR TS

RS RERT
REMBEITEERZENZ AT - BERT]
ZEBELEERABINRARRETHEIIAL
BMBRE - RIFEDE - RBERBIZRE
TR AR BEERGR YR AEEE
HREREER 2 28 NS QA &
BIEH AR SRRMEMERE 2 RERIE - 2
REEEE—HBE AR ZBEEENH ST
HRNZHE R A2 e - AEBEATBHERE
1EE1E - SRS 2 BB TG - ARER
SEESIEERHEEHFRERRZBE D
AN RIBZERTHERRAE - NEFA]
ERERA - RBE QAR Z S HIRAEEE
EERBERRZFEESMPBERE (S5
RTXHEE=— R 2 EEBER) 5k -

=
ToOg

FEREMELZRHE @ KB ABER
SEEPTKEEHB AR, FRERIER T
AR THEEEERBENERBRBZAAE
BZEGSERE BERBRERHNBLIRETR
RS M R EE R R ERETT
RERIR - ZIBEBTZRAR R ERIERE
5IRR - BB ZBEBBERGES BaRPHER
BERABTTER - RAKHENBAR - &
RGBS ki S ARl - ERFTERMES
BELIIFEEHERE 2 EERAR -

AEBER _ZTTAF— A ABZEPHEES]
R EHRELRFIRIEEHE] - R-_FFT
—F—A—BZAETRIBREE N EEE
RS —ERERPHIRNIER - B TERA
SEHEZRBEMY K2 2R EHFK
ERES LA SELBUHRRERERS
BERPHER -

8175545 i ¥ Notes to the Financial Statements

Associates

An associate is an enterprise, not being a subsidiary nor a jointly
controlled entity, over which the Group is in a position to exercise
significant influence through participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee. The results and assets
and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the profit or loss and of changes in
equity of the associates, less any identified impairment loss. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate, the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for
and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of that associate. In the consolidated balance sheet, interests in
associates are stated at the Group’s share of net assets of the
associates plus goodwill arising on acquisitions taking into effect
the policy on goodwill in note 2E.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost
of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired
subsidiary/jointly controlled entity/an associate at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting date
and whenever there is an indication that the cash generating unit to
which the goodwill relates may be impaired. Such goodwill is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. An impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account
and is not reversed in a subsequent period. On subsequent disposal
of a subsidiary, a jointly controlled entity or an associate, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group has applied HKFRS 3 - “Business Combinations”
prospectively from 1 January 2005. Goodwill arising on acquisitions
prior to 1 January 2001 continues to be recognised as a deduction
from equity and should not be recognised in the consolidated profit
and loss account when the Group disposes of all or part of the
business to which that goodwill relates or when a cash-generating
unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.
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Goodwill (continued)

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after
1 January 2001 and prior to 1 January 2005, the Group has
discontinued amortisation from 1 January 2005 onwards, and such
goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting date, and whenever
there is an indication that the cash generating unit to which the
goodwill relates may be impaired.

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary, a
jointly controlled entity or an associate represents the excess of the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities of the acquired subsidiary/jointly controlled
entity/an associate at the date of acquisition over the cost of
acquisition. Discount on acquisition of a subsidiary and jointly
controlled entity are recognised immediately in the consolidated profit
and loss account. A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition
of an associate is included as income in the determination of the
Groups’ share of results of associate in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

Financial assets and liabilities
The Group’s financial assets are classified as “financial assets at fair

» oo

value through profit or loss”, “available-for-sale financial assets”,
“loans and receivables” and “held-to-maturity financial assets”
dependent on the purpose for which the assets are acquired.
Financial liabilities are classified as “financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss” and financial liabilities other than financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (other financial liabilities).

Details of classifications and measurements are as follows:

(@)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and have two sub-categories: financial
assets held for trading and those designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition. At each balance
sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised directly in the profit and
loss account in the period in which they arise.
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Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(®)

()
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Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when
an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability
to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are initially
recognised in the balance sheet at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are stated in the balance sheet at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the effective interest rate computed on initial
recognition. If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through the profit
and loss account. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(@)

(€

Available for sale investments

Available for sale investments are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the investment within twelve
months from the balance sheet date.

The Group holds certain investments in equity securities, that
do not have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be measured reliably. These available
for sale investments are stated at cost less impairments. Apart
from this, available for sale investments are initially recognised
at fair value plus transaction costs. At each balance sheet date
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss
being recognised directly in equity, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is
removed from equity and recognised in the profit and loss
account.

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account
when there is objective evidence that the equity investment is
impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the equity
investment and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment losses will not reverse in
subsequent periods. Any subsequent increase in the fair value
of such equity investments is recognised directly in equity.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in the profit and loss account in the period in which
they arise.
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F Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

®)

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds are classified separately into respective
liability and equity components on initial recognition. On initial
recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the proceeds of the
issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to
the liability component, representing the embedded call option
for the holder to convert the bonds into equity, is included in
warrant reserve.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
bonds is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The equity component will remain in warrant reserve
until the embedded option is exercised. Where the option
remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated in
the warrant reserve will be transferred to the retained profits.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit and loss upon conversion
or expiration.

G Fixed Assets

@

(®)

A% AR 2 7 China Resources Enterprise, Limited ® Annual Report 2006 43§ 103

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in
respect of which construction work has been completed and
which are held for long term rental and/or for capital
appreciation. Such properties are carried in the balance sheet
at their fair value. Changes in fair value of investment properties
are recognised directly in the profit and loss account in the
period in which they arise.

Construction in progress

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction
for production, rent or administrative purposes or for purposes
not yet determined, are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all construction
expenditure, professional fees, borrowing costs capitalised and
other relevant expenses directly attributable to such projects.

No provision for depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time when construction work is complete
and the costs of construction are transferred to the appropriate
category of fixed assets when available for use.
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Fixed Assets (continued)

(©

Other property, plant and equipment

Fixed assets other than investment properties and construction
in progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation of other fixed assets is provided to write off the
cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account their estimated residual values, using the
straight line method. The residual values and useful lives are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases are amortised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease term

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over
the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being 20 to 50 years

— Leasehold improvements 3 to 10 years or over the

unexpired term of lease,

whichever is shorter
5to 15 years

10 years

5 to 25 years

3to 10 years

3 to 8 years

- Vessels

- Cold storage facilities

- Plant and machinery

- Furniture and equipment
- Motor vehicles

The gain or loss on the disposal or retirement of an item of
other property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in the profit and loss account.
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Fixed Assets (continued)

(@)

(e)
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Leased assets

(i)  Assets acquired under finance leases
Assets acquired pursuant to finance leases that transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
incident to ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases and are accounted for as if purchased
whereby an amount equivalent to cost is recorded as
fixed assets and as obligations under finance leases.
Depreciation is provided in accordance with the Group’s
depreciation policy. Payments to the lessor are treated
as consisting of capital and interest elements. The interest
element is charged to the profit and loss account.

(i) Operating lease charges
All leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income or expense arising from operating leases
(net of any benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease) is recognised
in the profit and loss account on a straight line basis
over the periods of the respective leases except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of the user’s benefit.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term except where the property is classified as
an investment property.

Impairment of fixed assets

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources
of information are considered to assess whether there is any
indication that fixed assets other than investment properties
are impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the assets is estimated and where relevant, an
impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
recoverable amount. Such impairment losses are recognised
in the profit and loss account.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the assets is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount. Such reversal of impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the profit
and loss account in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.



B 7 ¥7 &5 Bt 7 Notes to the Financial Statements

Hitmp & &

RERHERE  DRBAMREEKHBE 2
EVEEDRIRRAR AR BEER - RE
REERR - FHERAEAFHIEMETLE
ERKARERERZ RERERBEIR - A
PR E AME M 2 A I B IR AT AR
WHRE AR FHRRNABRER - BiHHE
ERMERRFRIGTTE - LT RBREREA
FHzBEMEREE A AIERFS

(&L 10ZE 204
EFIEERE 504

ZEBVEENSEAE BETRER G - 77
ERAEREERE AW ESRHEELE - WA
DRBNFHERE - BEBEBBRERR -
HAREREEREETKE SR o fir H 123
EURERIE  BEZRMEAEEELETZ
At AR E 2R o B ERERRE AR ER A
EFEERRBREBRAEETE EERTE
AR o

BERIR
REERBNIREEEMEREMTEER
ERRE B2 R B 2 R 5| BERLEN IR -
NEERBEREZHEE  REL8IERD
S o IREFRIRE ETILA A BERTR K FE SR B
NELR B 2 FE B R Z I M AR © T EURIE
BB - @AEESERNBEFEMBHRHEE
HiERNHEAE -

MEGFE

MEFETHRFEYME - THRKAE R &R
FEMETREEDE - IRRFEDHKERE
EB2ERITHRIEL ZEFTERE

Other intangible assets

On initial recognition, other intangible assets acquired separately
and from business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair
value respectively. After initial recognition, other intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Other intangible assets with finite
useful lives are stated at cost and are amortised on the straight line
method over their useful lives with amortisation commences when
the asset is available for use. The estimated useful lives of other
intangible assets with definite useful lives are as follows:

Brand names 10 to 20 years
Patent royalty 50 years

These intangible assets are assessed for impairment at each balance
sheet date by comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable
amounts. Where indication of impairment exists, an impairment loss
is charged to profit and loss to reduce the assets to its recoverable
amount. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the assets is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount. Such reversal of impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements, with limited exceptions. Deferred taxation assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary difference can
be utilised. Deferred taxation is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled.

Stock of properties

Stock of properties represents properties held for sale which is stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is
determined by reference to management estimates based on
prevailing market conditions.
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Other stocks

Other stocks which comprise raw materials, consumables and
packing materials, work-in-progress and finished goods are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprise direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads.

Cost is determined on the weighted average method or in the case
of retail business, cost is calculated on the first-in first-out basis.

Net realisable value is determined as the estimated net selling price
less all further costs of production and the related costs of marketing,
selling and distribution.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value at each
balance sheet date and are deemed as held-for-trading financial
assets/liabilities, unless they are designated and qualified as effective
hedging instruments. The Group has entered into two types of hedge
relationships, including fair value hedges and cash flow hedges.

(@) Fair value hedges
Hedges are classified as fair value hedges when hedges are
made to hedge against exposure to changes in fair value of a
recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm
commitment.

For fair value hedges that qualifying for hedge accounting,
changes in the fair values of hedging instruments and hedged
item attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in the profit
and loss in the periods in which fair value changes arise.

(b) Cash flow hedges
Hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when hedges are
made to hedge against exposure to variability in cash flows
that are attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast
transaction.

For cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting, the
effective portion of the gains or losses arising on the changes
in fair value of hedging instruments is initially recognised in
equity and transferred to the profit and loss account when the
hedged item affects the profit and loss account. The ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.
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Derivative financial instruments and hedging (continued)

(b) Cash flow hedges (continued)
For the hedge of a forecast transaction that subsequently
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-
financial liability, the associated gains or losses are removed
from equity and included in the initial cost or other carrying
amount of the asset or liability.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives
that either do not qualify for hedge accounting or are classified as
held-for-trading financial assets/liabilities are taken directly to the
profit and loss account.

Recognition of revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and
services provided in the normal course of business and net of
discounts.

Sales are recognised upon delivery of goods and provision of
services; and interest income is recognised in the profit and loss
account as it accrues.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e. the
guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary
of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in consolidated profit and loss account.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are accounted for on the accrual basis and charged
to the profit and loss account in the year incurred, except for costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of that assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Fees paid for the arrangement of syndicated loan facilities and debt
securities are deferred, and are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Foreign exchange

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the profit
and loss account in the period in which they arise, except for
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of
the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in equity in the
consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company (i.e. Hong
Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet
date, and their income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the Group’s
exchange reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account in the period which the foreign
operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 January
2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the translation
reserve.
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Share-based payment

The Group has granted share options to certain employees and other
participants, for their services rendered, to subscribe for shares of
the Company in accordance with the Company’s share option
scheme. The fair value of services received is determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (employee share-based
compensation reserve).

Investment properties

The fair values of investment properties are determined annually by
independent valuer on market value for existing use basis or
calculated on the net rental income and allowing for reversionary
income potential.

In making the judgement, considerations have been given to
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at
the balance sheet date and appropriate capitalisation rates of the
net rental income. These estimates are regularly compared to actual
market data and transactions entered into by the Group.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note
2E. Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amounts of cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated. The recoverable amounts have been
determined either based on value-in-use calculations or the cash-
generating units’ fair value less costs to sell. Details of the calculation
are disclosed in Note 16.

Deferred taxation assets

As at 31 December 2006, a deferred tax asset of HK$54 million
(2005: HK$76 million) in relation to unused tax losses has been
recognised in the Group’s balance sheet. The recognition of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits
or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the actual future profits generated are less than
expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in the profit and loss account in which such a
reversal takes places.
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The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risk: credit
risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables, amounts due from associates, bank balances and
derivative financial instruments entered into.

For trade and other receivables, the Group has policies in place to
ensure that sales of products are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history. Sales to retail customers are made in cash
or via major credit cards. The Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk; with exposure spread over a number of counterparties
and customers.

In respect of transactions to use derivative financial instruments to
mitigate the Group’s market risk, the Group have procedures and
policies in place to limit the amount of credit exposure to any
counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s ability to fund prospective investment opportunities and
existing debt requirements is achieved by maintaining surplus cash
and the availability of adequate committed funding lines from high
quality financial institutions.

Interest rate risk

To cover interest rate risk, the Group maintains the loan portfolio in
a preferred fixed/floating interest rate mix and review regularly. To
avoid undue concentration of risk, the Group entered into interest
rate swaps to mitigate current and future corporate profitability from
interest rate volatility.

Currency risk
Some subsidiaries of the Group are operating outside Hong Kong
and have their local currencies as their functional currencies.

The Group also had foreign currency exposure arising from the
borrowings denominated in US dollars. Apart from forward foreign
exchange contracts as set out in Note 25 to meet these liabilities,
the Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. The
management will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.
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For the year ended
31 December 2006
TURNOVER
External sales
Inter-segment sales®

Total

Segment result

Unallocated corporate expenses

Interest income

Profit on disposal of subsidiaries/

business
Finance costs

Share of net results of associates

Taxation

Profit for the year

ge
Retail
BRBEET
HKS millon

20,363
55

20,418

467

R
Beverage
BEBET
HKS millon

9,432
23

9,455

753

Turnover represents sales by

the Company and its subsidiaries
and share of jointly controlled
entities to outside customers and

comprises revenue from:

Sales of goods

Rendering of services and others

Rental income
Sales of properties

BEHET
HK$ million

—ZEERE
2005
AEEET
HK$ million
(&)
(Restated)

52,061
1,526
296

53,891

Primary reporting format - business segments

REMT
RiGH
Food
Processing hiang
and 4%  Investment
Distribution Textle  Property
BEEET  AYEET  BMEER
HK$ millon ~ HKS milion ~ HK$ milion
5,769 4453 320
323 - 29
6,002 4,453 349
559 169 779
1 (3) S
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R R R
ERiEH
Petroleum
and Related
Products
Distribution
BRBEET
HKS milion

25,100

25,100

664

k&R

EEH
Investments B it
and Others  Elimination Total
BEEET  BEEET  AMEER
HKS milion ~ HKS millon ~ HK$ million

65,437
= (430) =

- 430) 65437
(M) 3,300

(%)
213

517
(454)
335 333
(644)

3,325
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FTERBRE - REHE S @) Primary reporting format — business segments (continued)
RENI Rl kR
RiEd Enifd
Food Petroleum RER
Processing REYE andRelated  HHEH
gE R and 4% Investment  Products Investments it
Retal  Beverage Distribution Textle ~ Property Distribution  and Others Total

BEEET  E¥EEr  A¥EER  AMEER  BMEEn  AMEER  AMEER  BEEER
HkSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HK$ milion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HK$ million

R-FERE As at 31 December 2006
+ZR=t-H
gE ASSETS
PREE Segment assets 12,207 13,703 3,999 4,703 6,752 3,779 55 45198
REERRIZER Interests in associates - - 186 44 - - 923 1,153
EiEREaE Deferred taxation assets 123
AREHE Taxation recoverable 14
FELBNLAEE Unallocated corporate assets 1,266
GAEENE Consolidated total assets 47754
&f LIABILITIES
PRk Segment liabilities 5,828 5924 1,154 1,605 334 2,190 4 17,039
ERRE Taxation payable 208
ETHBAR Deferred taxation liabilties 1,023
AEAENLAAE Unallocated corporate liabilties 4519
GRERUE Consolidated total liabilities 22,789
EthEH OTHER INFORMATION
BREY Capital expenditure 1,214 1,744 148 452 165 216 1 3,940
TEREH Depreciation and amortisation 547 553 144 182 4 127 1 1558
R ERE Impairment loss recognised 2 19 - 4 - - - 25
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ITEHRHRB - EEXBFED @

BE-FERE1CR
=+-BLEEE (E5)
¥

PERE

REDBIODFR

fTEeRTANAR
B

HERA

HAR

EEBEARNXETE

i

FERRA

For the year ended

31 December 2005 (Restated)
TURNOVER

External sales

Inter-segment sales”

Total

Segment result

Unallocated corporate expenses

Fair value gain on derivates
financial instruments

Interest income

Finance costs

Share of net results of associates

Taxation

Profit for the year

gE
Retail
AERET
HKS million

16,202

348

#a
Beverage
BHEET
HKS millon

6,346

6,855

535

Primary reporting format — business segments (continued)

REMI
R
Food
Processing
and
Distribution
RYERET
HKS milion

5,522
102

5,624

502

A% AR 2 7 China Resources Enterprise, Limited ® Annual Report 2006 %

%8
Textile
AEAET
HKS million

Rih R
ERiH
Petroleum

#EYE  and Related

Investment  Products
Property  Distribution
AERET  BEAER
HK$ milion  HKS milion
274 20,847
25 -
299 20,847
796 813

- ()

RER
Rh%H
Investments
and Others
RYERET
HKS million

(49)

344

W8

Elimination Total
AREET
HKS milion

ABEET
HKS millon

(&)
(Restated)

- 5
(27 -

Q1) 53891

3120

(80)

18
173
(440)

(557)

2,618
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FTERBRE - REHE S @) Primary reporting format — business segments (continued)
RENI Rl kR
RiEd Enifd
Food Petroleum RER
Processing REYE andRelated  HHEH
gE R and 4% Investment  Products Investments it
Retal  Beverage Distribution Textle ~ Property Distribution  and Others Total

BEEET  E¥EEr  A¥EER  AMEER  BMEEn  AMEER  AMEER  BEEER
HkSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HK$ milion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HKSmilion ~ HK$ million

(Z50)
(Restated)
R-FEEE As at 31 December 2005
+ZR=+-H (&%) (Restated)
213 ASSETS
HREE Segment assets 10,466 9,982 3,730 4,462 6,165 7,668 291 42,754
REEAR ER Interests in associates 4 - 213 73 - 19 761 1,070
EEREAE Deferred taxation assets 140
ARERE Taxation recoverable )
AEARNDREE Unallocated corporate assets 1,986
GREENE Consolidated total assets 45972
Bf LIABILITIES
HEafk Segment liabilities 5178 3,989 1,008 1,761 378 4311 4 16,629
ERFE Taxation payable 234
EEREEE Deferred taxation liabilties 951
AEABNDAIAR Unallocated corporate liabilties 5215
GREREE Consolidated total liabilities 23,029
b OTHER INFORMATION
BREY Capital expenditure 1,142 657 234 220 355 252 1 2,861
nEREH Depreciation and amortisation 47 521 128 167 2 150 3 139
fERRERE Impairment loss recognised 5 70 - - - - 48 123
- EBREERERNTISERKE * Inter-segment sales were charged at prevailing market rates
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REBRRHE - RMES S Secondary reporting format - geographical segments

tE Rt HitER
B Chinese Other 3
Hong Kong Mainland ~ Countries Total
BEEET  A¥EEr  A%EEr  A%EEx
HK$ milion  HK$ million  HK$ milion  HK$ million

BLE-FT~ E+-A=+-H Turnover for the year
ILEEME R ended 31 December
2006 23,441 38,786 3,210 65,437
R=¥F E+=-A=+-8 As at 31 December
2006
HPEE Segment assets 13,182 29,888 2,128 45,198
RENHEEE Additions to
segment assets 161 3,676 103 3,940
BLE-¥FHaFt-A=1+-H Turnover for the year
IHEEEMERE (BT ended 31 December
2005 (Restated) 20,961 30,140 2,790 53,891
R=F¥FaE+=-A=+-H As at 31 December
(E51) 2005 (Restated)
NEEE Segment assets 13,154 27,707 1,893 42,754
RENBEE Additions to
segment assets 130 2,623 108 2,861
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HiWABE TSR :
REFETASRENRE

FBHA
PR E BT
RENMEEL RS

THEERTAZ AR BERR

HENBAR, EBMEET

HEBEEEMSEN
HERERE RSN

REBAF S

ARAFANEBHEER 2 RITER
REMEFRME

BEARAFRNBREERZ
HMEHME

BEXH

B AEREERATAZ
BRBEAFRR

* B BEERNEEEREEMEAER
PR AV EBRAS

8175545 i ¥ Notes to the Financial Statements

BEEET
HK$ million

Other income includes the following:

Dividends from unlisted available for
sale investments

Interest income

Discount on acquisition recognised

Valuation gain on investment
properties

Fair value gain on derivative financial
instruments

Profit on disposal of subsidiaries/
business

Profit on disposal of interests
in associates

Profit on disposal of fixed assets

Profit on disposal of available for sale
investments

BEEET
HK$ million

Interest on finance leases

Interest on bank loans and other loans
wholly repayable within five years

Interest on other loans not wholly
repayable within five years

Financing charges

Less: Amount capitalised in cost of
qualifying assets*

*

—ETRE
2005
AEEET
HK$ million
(&)
(Restated)

173
46

489

48

64
316

94

—ETRE
2005
AEAET
HK$ million
(&)
(Restated)

393

12
38

444

)

440

The amount capitalised represents the borrowing cost of loans which

are borrowed specifically for the purpose of obtaining the qualifying

assets.
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FEEBFENRTIEIE

REMM e
BINA (BREZHE)

e

-BEEE

—KREMORENEE
(BRE-RRTBRERAR)

EXEEZ ERRRERRE

AERE ERRRERSE

BV EESRH
(BRE-RRTEERAR)

HERET EEBORA"
EEERAA

BEFA :

GESES

B MR

HEWAFE

* BREIAELEEI16EET(CTELF :

BHE160E B T) °

Profit for the year has been arrived
at after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration

Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments)

Depreciation

- Owned assets

- Assets held under finance leases

(included in general and
administrative expenses)

Impairment loss recognised on
fixed assets

Impairment loss recognised on
available for sale investments

Amortisation of intangible assets
(included in general and
administrative expenses)

Operating leases charges on land
and buildings*

Cost of goods sold

And after crediting:
Gross rental income
Less: Related out-goings

Net rental income

BEEET
HK$ million

“ETHF
2005
BERET
HK$ million
(&)
(Restated)

20

3,114

1,338

74

49

56

1,098
44,190

268

Including contingent rent of HK$196 million (2005: HK$160 million).
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NESHK
ERITEAL

BRI

—EERE
ESiH

R

R
28R
IH

EE]
DG
Bt
BR

o
RES
BAE
FRHE
gRE
RER
A

2006

Name of director

Song Lin

Chen Shulin

Keung Chi Wang, Ralph
Wang Qun

Lau Pak Shing

Kwong Man Him

Qiao Shibo

Yan Biao

Jiang Wei

Wang Shuaiting

Xie Shengxi

Chan Po Fun, Peter
Houang Tai Ninh

Li Ka Cheung, Eric
Cheng Mo Chi

Benard Charnwut Chan
Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon
Zhong Yi

Total

2005

ok
Fees

BEEET
HKS million

0.05
0.05
0.05
0.05
0.05
0.06
0.05
0.05
0.05
0.04
0.05
0.14
0.14
0.14
0.14
0.01
0.01

0.97

1 TEA T2 EMFR 2 KLEE - ERALTTHE
REARFETIERABFHEE

8175545 i ¥ Notes to the Financial Statements

—ETRE
2005
AERET AERET
HK$ million HK$ million
Fees 0.97
Basic salaries and allowances 14.42
Provident fund contributions 1.13
Bonus paid 4.97
21.49
Share-based payment -
Hipdie
Other Emoluments
EXEe
2R AEEER k& %3
Basic Provident &it
Salaries and Fund B4 B 2005
Allowances  Contributions Bonus paid’ Total Total
BEBET BEBET BERET BERET BERET
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
1.81 0.23 0.95 3.04 2.74
1.71 0.10 0.83 2.69 2.32
2.48 0.27 0.46 3.26 3.03
1.07 0.08 0.70 1.90 1.18
2.96 0.33 0.62 3.96 3.84
2.40 0.07 0.45 2.97 2.88
0.38 0.02 - 0.45 2.23
0.38 0.05 - 0.48 2.25
- - - 0.05 0.05
- - - 0.04 -
- - - 0.05 0.05
- - - 0.14 0.14
- - - 0.14 0.14
- - - 0.14 0.14
- - - 0.14 0.02
- - - 0.01 -
- - - 0.01 -
- - - - 0.48
13.19 1.15 4,01 19.47 -
14.42 113 497 - 21.49
1 The bonus payment is determined with reference to the operating

results, individual performance and comparable market statistics
during both years.
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FARUGRRHFEERRNVL (CEETR M
) EE  FHEDHN XM - Her—1{u
(ZZF0F : =) &= #HiEBES N Z M
SFRIFWT

BERGE KR
NEEHEX
BRITEA
AR 20 3%

6 (Z2ZRF : =60 ZReH N F T3
&= -

BT

2,500,001 - 3,000,000
3,000,001 - 3,500,000
3,500,001 - 4,000,000
4,500,001 - 5,000,000

The five highest paid employees during the year included four (2005:
two) directors, details of whose remunerations are set out in note 9
above. The details of the remunerations paid to the other one (2005:
three) highest paid employees are follows:

—TTHEF

2005

BERET AERET
HK$ million HK$ million

Basic salaries and allowances 6.47
Provident fund contributions 0.07
Bonus paid 291
Share-based payment 2.78

12.23

The emoluments of this one (2005: three) highest paid individuals
were within the following bands:

AR
No. of persons
“EERF
HK$ 2005
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 1
3,000,001 - 3,500,000 1
3,500,001 - 4,000,000 -
4,500,001 - 5,000,000 1
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AEERAEZRREELBERESHZERMH
FORIKEHE - ZEFT B2 EERAEEE
F’fﬁEﬁE WHBYEE 2 EESRA - HFKETS
REREEAH S ZHEBMDILTE - MEER
BT EEZ A 2 ERUHR AR R EAR S
Bz 5K

i
m

AEBHBE RS ZH5

S

B3R

BERABERIRZR

i AR B A 2R MR R

R E Py it
AEEETEANEE BN QLA BT
E&JT%“‘%E’JI*“IEL{MEEW PRI E -
BARZAEXMETEREE S LA H
F o AERBHES - AEBEAELFAHEIMME—
BEERIRERRK

BB ARG E M ES S BERT
TR AR AL EBE268EB L (ZEZH
&F : BE206EETT)

8175545 i ¥ Notes to the Financial Statements

Hong Kong

The Group operates various defined contribution retirement schemes
which are available to all Hong Kong employees. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The amount of contributions is
based on a specified percentage of the basic salary of employees
and any forfeited contributions in respect of unvested benefits of
staff leavers are used to reduce the Group’s contributions.

—ZThF
2005
AERET AERET
HKS$ million HK$ million
Group contributions to staff

provident fund 32
Forfeited contributions utilised -

Amount charged to consolidated
profit and loss account 32

Un-utilised forfeited contributions -

Chinese Mainland

The employees of the Group in the Chinese Mainland are members
of state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the
respective local government in the Chinese Mainland. The Group is
required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to these schemes is to make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to the consolidated profit and loss account
in respect of the above-mentioned schemes in the Chinese Mainland
amounted to approximately HK$268 million (2005: HK$206 million).
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FEEHIA
B
F
ezl

REHIE
B
R A

EBFERIBIEANEE 2 (bt ERFREFIE
MEA76% (ZTTREF - 17.5%) 51 E c FE
AT B R B2 FTS R TR IR HL A BRI A 01
RS SHERBOE TS o JGINHIEIR S RlARR
B2 EABERE -

Current taxation
Hong Kong
Chinese Mainland
Overseas

Deferred taxation
Hong Kong
Chinese Mainland

BEEET
HK$ million

“ETHF
2005
BERET
HK$ million
(&)
(Restated)

187
251

440

73
44

557

Hong Kong Profit Tax is calculated at 17.5% (2005: 17.5%) on the
estimated profits for the year. Chinese Mainland income tax has

been provided for based on the estimated assessable profits in

accordance with the relevant tax laws applicable to the subsidiaries

in the Chinese Mainland. Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
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FRMNERHEAE 2R R - 70T

BRIRDE N (T EREEEB AN E
ZEEFE)

RREAT5% (ZCZEZRF - 17.5%)
STE A
HipREEERE TR E
ZRE

e[z S
FEAFAIRBERZHE

REHRZHR
EFEZRBITR

A AT EHRHIR

BB

8175545 i ¥ Notes to the Financial Statements

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong Profits

Tax rate as follows:

Profit before taxation (excluding share
of net results of associates)

Calculated at a taxation rate of 17.5%
(2005: 17.5%)

Effect of different taxation rates
in other jurisdictions

Income not subject to taxation

Expenses not deductible for taxation
purposes

Utilisation of previously unrecognised
tax losses

Tax loss not recognised

Overprovision on taxation in
previous year

Income earning companies exempted
from taxation

Taxation charge

BEEET
HK$ million

ZEERF
2005
BERET
HK$ million
(&)
(Restated)

2,821

494

68
(120)

97

(26)
141

©7)

557
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“EERF
2005
BEEET AEEET
HK$ million HK$ million
EATEERER R S FE I Additional final dividend paid for
REHRREIRE the previous year as a result of
exercise of share options 10
ZETRFREIREPHRE 2006 interim dividend paid for
B BRAE0. 14T HK$0.14 (2005: HK$0.13)
(ZZTZRF : BE0137T) per ordinary share 288
—ZT \EE’]E&%’E‘EP HIR AR S 2006 special interim dividend paid for
SREBRASEIT(CEERE  8) HK$1 (2005: Nil) per ordinary share =
ZETRFHRRERARETR 2006 proposed final dividend of
EIBREE0.267 HK$0.26 (2005: HK$0.25)
(ZZTAHF : B%0.257T) per ordinary share 580
878
EARAR_ZETZ+FMNAMBRITHNEH At the meeting held on 4 April 2007 the directors proposed final
F - EFERERBREERERREE0.267T dividend of HK$0.26 (2005: HK$0.25) per ordinary share. This
(_%E?ﬂii  7B#0.257T) o FRARE TR AR proposed dividend, which is calculated on the Company’s number
NARERTT 2EHE BN T ABRREG of ordinary shares as at the date of the board meeting, is not
N &%Hﬁ%lﬂﬁﬁﬁk#&imﬁﬁu RAE recognised as a liability in these financial statements. The total
NEEMFREMRMEARRIRN AR EBE dividends paid by the Company, including the final dividend for the
EERREZZETAFENRARE - BREABE year 2005, amounting to HK$3,265 million (2005: HK$640 million)

3265HE L (ZEZTRF  B¥640EETT) ° are reflected in the current year financial statements.
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ZEERF
2005
AEEET AEEET
HK$ million HK$ million
BREARREERTIRE The calculation of the basic and diluted
THIBEHE earnings per share is based on
the following data:
& Earnings
R EGRRERBHE Profit attributable to shareholders
AR AR FEME R T of the Company for the purpose of
calculating basic earnings per share 2,220
RATE AR ESMEE Interest saving on exercise of
OpNS) convertible bonds 115
RUAGESREE AT Profit attributable to shareholders
RATIRR MG T of the Company for the purpose of
calculating diluted earnings
per share 2,335
—TTRE
2005
BRHEE Number of shares
LT EGREARNE Weighted average number of ordinary shares
LB METIE for the purpose of calculating basic
earnings per share 2,183,572,648
HERREKOETEEYE - Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
— B IR ~ Share options 42,752,535
— B ES - Convertible bonds 119,595,400
RUGTEBREERTN Weighted average number of ordinary
LB METHE shares for the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share 2,345,920,583
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FEE

KA HE
R=ZZHF-F—AR
ERESE
WEHBAR/$KEEA

HEMBLR,/ ZHEEA

fmh fBh EE
oF 2 oW
e RS
RE ¥

R-ZEXRE-A-R(@E))
ERER
WEHBLR/ EBREA

HEMBLR,/ ZHEEA

RZEE ET-A=1—H

The Group
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2005
Exchange difference
Relating to acquisition of subsidiaries/
business
Relating to disposal of subsidiaries/
business
Additions
Disposals
Reclassifications
Adjustment on valuation

At 1 January 2006 (As restated)

Exchange difference

Relating to acquisition of subsidiaries/
business

Relating to disposal of subsidiaries/
business

Additions

Disposals

Reclassifications

Adjustment on valuation

At 31 December 2006

REnE
Investment
properties
BERET
HK$ million

5,089

(418)

331

97)

489

5,402
23

5,899
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BEER
HEEHEY
iR
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own
use under
operating
leases
BEREL
HKS$ million

2,238
27

59

(32)

83

(19)

9

2,391
46

34

2,320

Hip% « S RRE
Other property, plant and equipment

BRiEF
Buildings
held for
own use
BEREL
HK$ million

4,603
97

227

(14)
592
(110)
285

5,680
196

(153)
470
(66)
400

6,663

-
B
BEEE
Plant,
machinery
and other
fixed
assets
BEEEL
HK$ million

18,375
276

506

(36)
1,856

(305)

(380)

15,291
499

295

(1,238)

2495
(570)
(328)

16,444

It
Sub-total
BERET
HK$ million

17,978
373

733

(60)
2,447

(415)

(95)

20,97
695

431

(1,391)
2,965

(636)
72

23,107

&i

Total
BERET
HKS$ million

25,306
408

792
(500)
2,861

(591)

489

28,764
764

465
(1,589)
3127

(730)

528

31,326



8175545 i ¥ Notes to the Financial Statements

Hibyi%  BBERRE
Other property, plant and equipment
fHEER
MEERY
T e
Interests in iR
leasehold BEdE
land held Plant,

for own BRE#F  machinery
#&Y%  useunder  Buildings  and other

Investment  operating held for fixed INgt &it
properties leases own use assets Sub-total Total

AEEET O AKEEn  A%EEr  A¥EEn  AREEn  A%EER
HK$ milion ~ HK$milion ~ HKS milion ~ HK$ milion ~ HK$ milion ~ HK$ million

ZERAE Accumulated depreciation and impairment
WZZ2HRE—A—-H At 1 January 2005 - 288 917 4,885 5,802 6,090
ERER Exchange difference - 4 24 119 143 147
LENBAR/ EEHE Relating to disposal of subsidiaries/
business - () @) (26) (29) (34)
REENE Charge for the year - 55 197 1,090 1,287 1,342
HERE Written back on disposals - (11) (47) (233) (280) (291)
BRRZAEER Impairment loss recognised - - 37 37 74 74
Ekipag] Reclassifications - - 5 () - -
RZEERF—F—H(E5) At 1 January 2006 (As restated) - 331 1,130 5,867 6,997 7,328
ERER Exchange difference - 7 48 231 279 286
HERBAR,/ £HKEL Relating to disposal of subsidiaries/
business - (19) (52) (295) (347) (366)
REENE Charge for the year - 54 241 1,232 1,473 1,527
HERE Written back on disposals - (1) (58) (451) (509) (510)
BRRZAEER Impairment loss recognised - - 9 15 24 24
Ekipag] Reclassifications - 2) 1) - (1) (3)
RZEE E+-A=1-H At 31 December 2006 - 370 1,317 6,599 7916 8,286
REFE Net book values
RZEE FTZRA=1-H At 31 December 2006 5,899 1,950 5,346 9,845 15,191 23,040
RZEZRE+-A=1—H(E}) At 31 December 2005 (Restated) 5,402 2,060 4,550 9,424 13,974 21,436
BTALAGIR A - Representing assets stated:
A At cost - 2,320 6,663 16,444 23,107 25,427
RIEENFEERAE At 2006 professional valuation 5,899 = = = = 5,899

5,899 2,320 6,663 16,444 23,107 31,326
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REYE
Investment
properties
BERET
HK$ million
AAF The Company
KA (E Cost or valuation
RZEZRF—A—H At 1 January 2005 51
NE Additions -
HE Disposals =
RZFZRFTZA=+—HR At 31 December 2005 and
—TT F-R-H 1 January 2006 51
NE Additions -
HE Disposals =
RZZER ETZA=1T—H At 31 December 2006 51
ZEMERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
R-ZEERF—A—H At 1 January 2005 =
KEEHE Charge for the year =
HERR Written back on disposals =
A ZETRETZA=1—H At 31 December 2005
RZZZ F-A—-H and 1 January 2006 =
REEHE Charge for the year =
HERR Written back on disposals -
RZEERFTZRA=1—H At 31 December 2006 =
EEFE Net book values
RZZER ETZA=1T—H At 31 December 2006 51
RZEERET-A=+—H At 31 December 2005 51
BRIk B Representing assets stated:
B At cost =
R-ZE A FEEMAE At 2006 professional valuation 51
51
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Rtk - BB RRE

Other property, plant and equipment

£
Buildings
BEEET
HK$ million

HibEE
Other
assets
BEEET
HK$ million

20

20

It
Sub-total
BERET
HKS million

21

14

22

22

B

Total
BERET
HK$ million

72

56

56

22
51

73



WEERREERR

F5E

F4
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Carrying amounts of the property
interests comprise:

The Group
Hong Kong
Properties held on long lease
Properties held on medium-term lease
Properties held on short lease

Chinese Mainland
Properties held on long lease
Properties held on medium-term lease
Properties held on short lease

Overseas
Properties held on medium-term lease
Properties held on short lease

The Company
Hong Kong
Properties held on medium-term lease

Chinese Mainland
Properties held on medium-term lease
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AEEET
HK$ million

—TTRE
2005
BERET
HK$ million
(&751)
(Restated)

3,676
2,260
22

955
4,966
71

25
37

12,012

51

53
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TERFET_A=T—HZREVEEHE
BEXHEMBBRITERIAELMAE -

K1

AEERBERORAZBEEEER _—TTX
FH-A=tRZEmAEZEHK1BEL(CT
THE : BRTAET °

REEBEASEIS3EET(ZETRF « K
228B &) 2 EEBEECEMERB 2068
ETZEHRER(CTTRF  BHK238FE
D) MEHSEB L (CETHF  B¥10EE
T 2 REAE R Z G

HiBEEEET BREMMN  HEWMERE
RERME - HaRE - RANERE  TERE
BIRE-

REFR—IEEEEBRBLERS - FIMIE
THETRF  BRELRESE -

The investment properties have been valued at 31 December 2006
by Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent professional
valuers.

The carrying amounts of fixed assets held under finance leases of
the Group at 31 December 2006 amounted to HK$1 million (2005:
HKS$7 million).

Fixed assets with carrying amounts of HK$153 million (2005: HK$228
million) are pledged for short term loans in the sum of HK$206 million
(2005: HK$238 million) and long term loans in the sum of HK$8
million (2005: HK$10 million).

Other fixed assets mainly comprise vessels, leasehold improvements,
cold storage facilities, plant and machinery, furniture and equipment,
motor vehicles and construction in progress.

Impairment loss was made as a result of the outsourcing of certain
production processes in connection with the change of production
plan relating to one of the manufacturing businesses.
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8175545 i ¥ Notes to the Financial Statements

BEBEET
HK$ million
The Group
Cost
At 1 January 2005 2,530
Exchange difference 1
Acquisition of subsidiaries/business 247
Increase in equity interests in subsidiaries 306
At 31 December 2005 and
1 January 2006 3,084
Exchange difference 6
Acquisition of subsidiaries/business 348
Goodwill adjustments (note) 69
Increase in equity interests in subsidiaries 8
Disposal of subsidiaries/business (34)
At 31 December 2006 3,481
Carrying values
At 31 December 2006 3,481
At 31 December 2005 3,084

Note: The goodwill adjustments mainly represent the adjustment on the
carrying amounts and fair values of fixed assets of subsidiaries acquired
during the year ended 31 December 2005.
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FEREESEERSELSM ([CGU)) - it
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=
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(RARBREBZEB S B2 B ERR) BIKIE o

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the cash generating
unit (“CGU”) representing an operating entity within the business
segments identified by the Group for the purpose of segment
reporting. A segment level summary of the goodwill allocation is
presented below:

—TTHEF

2005

BEBEET AERET

HK$ million HK$ million

Retail 1,114

Beverage 1,505

Food Processing and Distribution 342

Textile 68
Petroleum and Related Products

Distribution 55

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined based on a
value in use calculation. These calculations use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a
three-year period. Cash flows beyond the three-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates and all cash flows
are discounted at the discount rates stated below.

Key assumptions used for the value in use calculations:

BHREERE
Nefhatz
BEERE

Nominal
growth rate

beyond

the initial

i cash flow

Discount rate projections

(%) (%)

Retail 7.2 9.0
Beverage 6.4 7.0
Food Processing and Distribution 7.0 5.0
Textile 5.7 5.0

The discount rates used is based on the respective CGUs’ weighted
average costs of capital which reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant segments.
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The Group
Cost
At 1 January 2005
Exchange difference
Acquisition of subsidiaries/
business

At 1 January 2006 (As restated)

Exchange difference

Disposal of subsidiaries/
business

At 31 December 2006

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment
At 1 January 2005
Exchange difference
Charge for the year
Impairment loss recognised

At 1 January 2006 (As restated)

Exchange difference

Charge for the year

Impairment loss recognised

Disposal of subsidiaries/
business

At 31 December 2006

Net book values
At 31 December 2006

At 31 December 2005 (Restated)
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Brand
names
BEBRET
HK$ million

204

42

250

(44)

214

67

26

97

16

(17)

101

113

153

E L
ERE
Patent
royalty
BERET
HKS million

75

430

507

(509)

28

30

15

(45)

477

&t

Total
BERET
HK$ million

279

472

757
10

(553)

214

69

54

127

31

(62)

101

113

630
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“ETHF
2005
EEEET BEEET
HK$ million HK$ million
AAT The Company
FE MR - KAE Unlisted shares, at cost 12,377
NGO Amount due from subsidiaries,
NREE at fair value 3,417
15,794
JEUH B A R B I K e FB4E o The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, and bear interest
rate at 4% p.a.
R-EERNF+-_A=+—AZETEHBAF Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2006 are
FHIETEHNE161EEE 1698 o set out on pages 161 to 169.
T8 ARALLAEHEARZ NEE R The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s jointly
=H B MO ER controlled entities which are accounted for using the proportionate
consolidation method is set out below:
“ETHF
2005
EEEET BEEET
HK$ million HK$ million
MBEE Current assets 1,366
ERBDEE Non-current assets 1,372
nEaf Current liabilities (491)
FERBEE Non-current liabilities (681)
WA Income 847
i Expenses 811)
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The Group
Unlisted
Share of net liabilities

Amounts due from associates,

at fair value

BEEET
HK$ million

ZEERF

2005
BERET
HK$ million

(465)

1,535

1,070

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest bearing

at prevailing market rate and are not repayable within the twelve

months from the balance sheet date.

Particulars of the principal associates at 31 December 2006 are set

out on pages 161 to 169.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

associates is set out below:

Total assets
Total liabilities

Net liabilities

Group’s share of net liabilities
of associates

Revenue

Profit for the year

Group’s share of net results of
associates for the year

BEEET
HK$ million

“EERF

2005
BERET
HK$ million

32,210
(38,629)

(6,419)

(465)

13,595

3,546

354
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—ZThF
2005
BERET AEAET
HK$ million HK$ million
(&%)
(Restated)
*5HE The Group
FnEIRE Non-current investments
BAEFELEMRD - KAE Unlisted shares in Hong Kong, at cost 10
PR A IE ET R Unlisted shares in Chinese Mainland,
KA B EEE at cost less impairment loss 66
FEUFTIZ & IR Amounts due from investee
companies 1
77
M EFERIE ETRG - REARRE The above investments mainly represent investments in unlisted
HEHEBZRERE - ARWEAEREMISA] equity shares and are measured at costs less impairment at each
HEBEZERD  WEEASBETEAAR balance sheet date. As there is no active market for trading, their
BlE - fair values cannot be ascertained reliably.
—ZThF
2005
BERET AEAET
HK$ million HK$ million
*x5E The Group
AN EHREE-R—HF—H Tank storage service fees prepaid -
at 1 January 346
W RERTER A Less: Amount recognised during
the year (22)
324
Helke B Rental deposits 118
RTZRA=+—Bz#&#% Balance at 31 December 442
R —EREA 2 &7 Portion to be utilised within one year 31
BR—FEEA 2% Portion to be utilised after one year 411
RTZRA=+—Bz#&#% Balance at 31 December 442
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RRE— R AT R A REE 2 —FM Pursuant to the tank storage agreements (the “Agreement”) entered
BRRIPEI 2 e ([&ih]) - B into with a holding company and a fellow subsidiary, the recognised
R IAA] AEEHERIBEZ R AN T A amount can be applied to set off portion of the total tank storage

[z 8D h RIS E service fees payable during the year under the Agreement.
“EERF
2005
AEEET AEEET
HKS$ million HK$ million
(&%)
(Restated)

*x5E The Group
HFEME Properties held for sale 151
FRIHE Raw materials 937
SR B EME Consumables and packing materials 1,095
R Work-in-progress 276
BUPK o Finished goods 4,031
6,490
X£H XAT
The Group The Company

“TERE “ETHE
2005 2005

AEEErT A¥EET A¥EEn  AKEER
HK$ milion  HK$ million  HKS$ million  HK$ million

(&31)
(Restated)
e 2R Trade receivables 3,000 -
HipEUEIE e Rk Other receivables,
BB deposits and
prepayments 2,570 45
NS b Amounts due from
subsidiaries - 236
FERER RS EMEARTIE Amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries 18 =
MRS N RIFR Amounts due from
associates 28 -
5,616 281
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REE—MRETREPUTZEER The Group normally trades with its customers under the following

credit terms:

) EBIF: & (@)  cash upon delivery; and
() NTRERIE (o)  open credit within 60 days
REZEAREWE SRR ZRER AT The following is the aging analysis of trade receivables at the balance
sheet date:
“ETHF
2005
BEEET BERET
HK$ million HK$ million
(&%)
(Restated)
*5HE The Group
0—30K 0 - 30 days 2,335
31—60K 31 -60 days 338
61—90K 61 -90 days 164
>90K >90 days 163
3,000
AEERGEEBRNE S RAMERRIBAR The fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s trade and other
BEAERAEERS receivables at balance sheet date was approximate to the

corresponding carrying amount.
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8175545 i ¥ Notes to the Financial Statements

55 XEE
The Group The Group
—ZTHF _ZThF
2005 2005
BE B BE B
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

BEEET A¥EET  AYEET  AKEER
HK$ milion  HK$ milion  HK$ million  HK$ million

Derivatives under hedge
accounting

Cash flow hedge:
Qil futures contracts 59 70
Foreign currency
forwards contracts - -

59 70
Other derivatives
QOil futures contracts 11 8
Foreign currency
forwards contracts - -
Interest rate swaps - 12
Total - current portion 70 85

Cash flow hedge - Oil futures contracts

In 2006, some group companies which engage in oil products trading
business had commaodity futures contracts designated as effective
hedging instruments of managing price and timing risks in connection
with forecast purchases and sales.

As at 31 December 2006, fair value loss of HK$14 million (2005:
gain of HK$1 million) has been recognised in hedge reserve and is
expected to be transferred to the profit and loss account at various
dates in the coming six months after the balance sheet date, the
period in which forecast purchases and sales are expected to occur.

At 31 December 2006, the Group had long and short oil futures
contracts with notional contract amounts of US$143 million (2005:
US$138 million) and US$96 million (2005: US$108 million)
respectively and maturities of less than one year after the balance
sheet date.
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HfTETE-HHmeas
RZTERNE+-_A=1+—8  A&EEHAH
EEEEREEE650002M (ZZEZRF ¢
200,000 1F) & i &465,000 M (ZZTZ H
£ : 200,0002MF) FbERZ BHE R « #5
LABR BB E R B TSR Bk - WEBES
WeEBESRAINEEEL(CETRE
58ABE) RI7TEBEL(CETRHF
50B8BXET)  c REEBZE—BARE
H o R LG HTRFEERAE R EEHE
B - AR BEESMEL 2 BRHEL
BIBRRER -

HinfiTE THE—FIREH
REBMA AR EEH - FEABBRITRZE
8 ([HIBOR]) # &EF| 28 2 ERREH30%E
50% HHIBOR®E AfmARITAEF S
(TLIBORJ) °

RIBEEXF+-_A=+—HB ~&EBEE
HEEAE1, 50088 T (ZSTRE B
1,5008 &7T) 2 FIEIZHEL - RARE—F
BE - ECAMEEERZEIEA -

BROTAETARNSEERRAAE
ERINERDMAMPBEENZAAEETS
BhHSRESE L RERERETS o FFisH
ZAREBEZEZESREERBUSR T AN
R TSN EINAEET -

Other derivatives - Oil futures contracts

At 31 December 2006, the Group had oil futures contracts to buy
665,000 metric tonnes (2005: 200,000 metric tonnes) and to sell
465,000 metric tonnes (2005: 200,000 metric tonnes) of oil product
at fixed prices to limit the risks arising from the fluctuations in oil
prices. The notional amounts of these buy and sell contracts were
US$191 million (2005: US$58 million) and US$137 million (2005:
US$59 million), respectively, with maturities of one month after the
balance sheet date. As the aforesaid contracts did not qualify for
hedge accounting and as a result, gains or losses arising from a
change in fair value are recognised in consolidated profit and loss
account.

Other derivatives - Interest rate swaps

The Group uses interest rate swaps to improve its risk profile by
swapping 30% to 50% of its Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offer Rate
(“HIBOR”) based borrowing from HIBOR to London Inter-Bank Offer
Rate (“LIBOR”).

At 31 December 2006, the Group had interest rate swaps with
notional contract amounts of HK$1,500 million (2005: HK$1,500
million) and mature in next year matching the maturity of the related
borrowings.

The above derivatives are measured at fair values at each balance
sheet date. The fair values of forward foreign exchange contracts
and commodity futures contract are either marked to market using
listed market prices or broker quotes. The fair value of interest rate
swaps is estimated by referring to the prevailing market interest rate
for similar financial instruments quoted by financial institutions.

140 #MAI% AR AT China Resources Enterprise, Limited  Annual Report 2006 4F i



ReRRTREFEE MLENBHEESE
EMEM 2 RE BB REM 2R -

IRITIF R BTN F2.25%%5.35% (=
ZZTRF : 0.09%£4.30%) N5 - FH1FH]
BI0KR(ZZZRF : 30K) °

ENESER
Ei BN ERER

B (E =+
B ARFE

ARESNTIES= YN E¢

FETRE A RISV

8175545 i ¥ Notes to the Financial Statements

Included in cash and bank balances are the following amounts

denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of

the operations to which they relate.

X5
The Group
—ZTIHEF
2005
BEEET AY%BER
HK$ million  HK$ million
US Dollar
(HK Dollar equivalent) 1,590

K47
The Company
“ZThF
2005
BERET
HK$ million

AEHETL
HK$ million

450

The effective interest rate on bank deposits ranged from 2.25% to
5.35% (2005: 0.09% to 4.30%), with an average maturity of 30 days

(2005: 30 days).

X5
The Group
“TERE
2005
BEREL  B¥RER
HKS$ million  HK$ million
(E5)
(Restated)
Trade payables 5,905
Other payables and
accruals 5516
Provisions (note 28) 57
Amounts due to
subsidiaries —
Amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries 54
Amounts due to
associates 18
11,550
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2005
AXBET AY%AET
HKS$ million  HK$ million
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238
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REEANENE SRR Z Rk DTN

*5H
0—30K
31—60K
61—90K
>90K

REENEEANE S REMENFIEAR
BEEEREERS

XEH
R-ZZERF—HA—H
FREHEE

R-ZFTRF—A—H
FAB BRI

RoTEAE+-A=+-A
BT AN RN RT T EE

e o L EBERRBWBZEEBEZ
EHEFEImBA -

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the balance

sheet date:

The Group
0 - 30 days
31 - 60 days
61 -90 days
>90 days

BEEET
HK$ million

—TTHEF
2005
BERET
HK$ million
(&71)
(Restated)

3,983
948
540
434

5,905

The fair value of the Group’s and the Company’s trade and other

payables at balance sheet date was approximate to the

corresponding carrying amount.

The Group
At 1 January 2005
Utilisation during the year

At 1 January 2006
Utilisation during the year

At 31 December 2006

BEAET
HK$ million

The amounts represent provisions for restructuring activities for

operations acquired in previous years. These provisions were utilised

in accordance with the restructuring plans adopted when such

operations were acquired.
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—ZThF
2005
AEEET AEEET
HKS$ million HK$ million
*x5E The Group
BIERER(A Current portion
—BHERRITER - secured bank loans 3
—EERRITER - unsecured bank loans 241
—H IR ER - other unsecured loans =
—RERMEBEL AR - of long term obligations under
finance leases 7
RHRITER - iR Short term bank loans, trust receipts
RiFEx and overdrafts
—BER - secured 238
— R - unsecured 2,546
H A I E Other unsecured loans 2,134
5,169
—ZThF
2005
AEEET AEEET
HK$ million HK$ million
(&%)
(Restated)
*5HE The Group
ARAFAEEZBER Secured bank loans repayable within
RITER 5 years 10
ARAFAEE EER Unsecured bank loans repayable
RITER within 5 years 4,952
BARAFANBHEEL Unsecured bank loans not wholly
EHPRTER repayable within 5 years 6
ERAENERZEM Other unsecured loans repayable
EEFER within 5 years 88
ERAENERZRBE Obligations under finance leases
TRHARIE repayable within 5 years 11
BERAFNEHEEREL Other unsecured loans not wholly
HAmE R SR repayable within 5 years 224
5,291
SIR B & & 2 BN SR 1 Current portion included in current
liabilities (251)
5,040
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20
R B2 R
TEHEE

SRITER
—FUEEMER
WMEAEERFR
hFE

H %
—FUEEMER
MELEZRFR
AFE
RIERNRIE
—FEULEEMFR
MELEZRFR

REAKEANDFRNEER 2 BEPRTE
R RSN - R AR EE (EE) ARA
A([FEEEE) AT AESHEERNAFR
D35 F AR RNEZ RN B EERAR
AE-RABRRZH0 (TR AEEIER
HiEARFEESHEERER)

REBE B EXRARBAENZF
BER - BX5FILEHIBOR * LIBORKN A H
ARIBITIRE Z BRI R o

AEEZBERZEBRFNEEEHI3.90%
F4.95% (ZZZTRF : 0.72%E5.55%) T

o

dh

“ETHF
2005
BEBEET AERET
HK$ million HK$ million
(&7
(Restated)
The Group
The non-current portion of long term
liabilities are repayable as follows:
Bank Loans
After 1 year but within 2 years 44
After 2 years, but within 5 years 4,676
After 5 years 4
Other Loans
After 1 year, but within 2 years 111
After 2 years, but within 5 years 85
After 5 years 116
Obligations under finance leases
After 1 year, but within 2 years 4
After 2 years, but within 5 years =
5,040

Under the terms of the agreements of the Group’s unsecured bank
loans repayable within five years, China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited (“CRH”), a holding company, is required to remain
as a beneficial owner of at least 35% of the voting shares of the
Company or remain as a single largest shareholder (whether directly
or indirectly through its subsidiaries) of the Company.

The Group has floating rate borrowings denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars, US Dollars and Renminbi with interest rates linked to HIBOR,
LIBOR and the lending rate stipulated by the People’s Bank of China
respectively.

The effective annual interest rates on the Group’s floating rate
borrowings range from mainly 3.90% to 4.95%. (2005: from 0.72%
to 5.55%).
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At 31 December 2006, the Group has a syndicated loan of HK$3,000
million (2005: HK$3,000 million) of which HK$1,700 million has been

3,000E87m) ZIREER - EFaEEE
1,700BBTEBAEE + BEAHBORM
28fEZE T - BN ——FHAFIH - Hh
BRER-_ZENF+A=+—H5
FAEB2IPHEDRK ©

drawn down that bears interest rate at HIBOR plus 28 basis point
and will mature in May 2011. Other borrowings are repayable wholly
or partly within 5 years from 31 December 2006.

T RAEEWIEAEHEER SRR The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies other

BRLZ G than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set
out below:
F£E XAT
The Group The Company
—ZThE —ZTHF
2005 2005
B¥EET A%RgEr A¥%esEr  A%BEER
HK$ milion ~ HK$ milion ~ HK$ milion  HK$ million
EEE US Dollar borrowings
(ERNEE) (HK Dollar equivalent) 3,833 =

FRRIERE R E R A 2 B8 (A
BHHE 2 A AIE RN I T

The movement in deferred taxation assets and liabilities (prior to
offsetting of balance within the same taxation jurisdiction) recognised
during the year is as follows:

Hits Hfp &it
Tax losses Others Total
—ZTThF “TERE —TTRE
2005 2005 2005

BEEET A¥EEr B¥EER AYEEn AYEERT BEEER
HK$ million  HKS$ million  HK$ million HK$ million  HKS$ million  HKS$ million

F5E The Group
BIEHARE Deferred taxation assets
R—A—H At 1 January 17 50 167
TEiReEEER (Charged)/credited to
(k) /LR consolidated profit and
loss account (43) 5) (38)
1IN Acquisition of subsidiaries - 9 9
Bk Exchange rate adjustment 2 = 2
W+=ZA=+—R At 31 December 76 64 140
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EIERI I & B AR MBS FER A TE Al e R
RERMAEFER A LR - ARBEIEEE
MmiER c RZEERF+=A=+—H &
EERER BBEEEEB02EE T (=
TERF 6188 - MASEERE
T e Al B B) A 2 E RUE B R A JE R B U
¥I8 - &t@%ﬁ@*ﬁﬁéﬁﬁW%iﬁZ%ﬁ%@Z
MG EIEESE480E 8T (CETREF ¢

e —

¥3ATHEETD) ©

N T REEGAEEABRTER IELEN
BAEARED MNFER 2 EE)

$§
R-ZETRF—-A-H
GABRRNR/ GIA)

FRHE—HBAR
RZEERFE+_A=1+-HE
“2Z%-F—H

BiRABERNG,/ GIA)

RZEERF+-A=+-H

ARBZBEERBREREIREYE - Lib
RBFIAREMEEN IR IRITE

Deferred taxation assets are recognised for tax losses carry forwards
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through the
future taxable profits is probable. At 31 December 2006, the Group
has unrecognised tax losses of HK$902 million (2005: HK$661
million) arising from tax losses which is uncertain as to whether it
can be utilised to set off against future taxable income. Out of this
amount, the unrecognised tax loss of HK$480 million (2005: HK$347
million) will expire within 5 years.

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the years
are as follows:

EftiRam% NEHERE

Revaluation  Accelerated

tax 8
property depreciation Total

BEEELT  BERER  BNAEST

HK$ milion ~ HK$ milion ~ HK$ million

of investment

The Group
At 1 January 2005 705 232 937
Charged/(credited) to consolidated profit

and loss account 86 (7) 79
Relating to disposal of a subsidiary (65) - (65)
At 31 December 2005 and

1 January 2006 726 225 951
Charged/(credited) to consolidated profit

and loss account 9 (23) 72
At 31 December 2006 821 202 1,023

The Company’s deferred taxation liabilities relates to the accelerated
tax depreciation of its investment property, land and building and
other assets.
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“TERE
2005
kB8 E i1 BRHEE HE
Number of Nominal ~ Number of Nominal
shares Value shares Value
BER BNBER BER BEAER
million  HK$ million million  HK$ million
Authorised
Ordinary shares
of HK$1 each 3,000 3,000
Issued and fully paid
At 1 January 2,123 2,123
Exercise of share
options 52 52
Allotment of shares 58 58
At 31 December 2,233 2,233

The Company operates a share options scheme for the purpose of
promoting additional commitment and dedication to the objectives
of the Company by the participants (the “New scheme”). In addition,
certain outstanding share options were still held under a share option
scheme which subsisted until 31 January 2002 and was terminated
on 31 January 2002 (the “Old Scheme”).

The New Scheme was approved by the shareholders in general
meeting on 31 January 2002 and shall expire on 31 January 2012.
The board of directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
participants including executive or non-executive directors of the
Group, any discretionary object of a discretionary trust established
by any employee, executive or non-executive directors of the Group,
any executives and employees of consultants, professional and other
advisors to the Group, chief executive, substantial shareholder of
the Company, associated companies of the Group, associates of
director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company;,
and employees of substantial shareholder.

Share options are generally either fully vested and exercisable within
a period of 10 years immediately after the date of grant or are vested
over a period of time up to maximum of four years after the
acceptance of a grant.
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RIBM BT 8%z B E

LU
TiE®
Rt A Exercise
Date of grant Price
BET
HK$
Eital
Old Scheme
20/6/2000 7.190
21/11/2000 7.080
EHE]
New Scheme
07/02/2002 7170
05/03/2002 7.350
08/03/2002 7.500
19/04/2002 7.400
23/05/2002 8.900
02/08/2002 8.320
07/11/2002 7.700
24/01/2003 7.250
14/04/2003 6.290
01/08/2003 7.100
08/10/2003 8.900
02/12/2003 9.000
14/01/2004 9.720
20/04/2004 9.890
25/05/2004 9.150
02/06/2004 9.550
22/07/2004 9.800
04/10/2004 10.350
17/01/2005 11.400
22/07/2005 12.500
ARERITE
Exercisable at the
end of the year
METHTREE (%)
Weighted average
exercise price (HK$)

BRAERB AT

Eital

Old Scheme
E= Directors
{EE Employees

EHE]
New Scheme
£ Directors
{EE Employees
HBEZE Other participants

FHE L

R=FERE
—A—B

i ARATE
Outstanding at
1/1/2006

7,945,000
3,399,000

11,344,000

14,514,000
11,486,000
780,000
3,660,000
44,000
3,834,000
1,752,000
578,000
4,216,000
660,000
1,661,000
1,070,000
38,963,000
5,216,000
24,443,000
5,022,000
1,690,000
45,464,000
1,580,000
960,000

167,483,000
178,827,000

9.23

5,986,000
5,368,000

24,266,000
131,453,000
11,764,000

REEE
i
Granted
during
the year

Details of the movements of the share options granted under both
share option schemes are summarised as follows:

RN E

Number of share options

REEE REEE
frfE" i
Exercised Cancelled
during during
the year! the year

7,470,000 =
2,454,000 =

9,924,000 =

13,880,000 =
8,121,000 =
780,000 =
3,366,000 =
44,000 =
2,454,000 =
1,752,000 =
528,000 =
3,822,000 =
580,000 =
1,220,000 =
1,070,000 =
20,868,000 =
2,296,000 =
20,289,000 =
4,422,000 =
1,252,000 =
27,614,000 =
580,000 =
240,000 =

115,078,000 =
125,002,000

8.29 =

REEE
KH
Lapsed
during
the year

660,000

89,000

2,982,000
28,000

178,000
328,000
880,000

5,145,000
5,145,000

9.86

R=FERE
+=A=+-H
ERATE
Outstanding at
31/12/2006

475,000
945,000

1,420,000

634,000
3,365,000

284,000
720,000

50,000
394,000
80,000
352,000

15,113,000
2,892,000
4,154,000

600,000
160,000
17,622,000
120,000
720,000

47,260,000
48,680,000

30,722,000

9.40

Holders of the share options are analysed as follows:

5,986,000 =
3,938,000 =

23,666,000 =
83,133,000 =
8,279,000 =
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5,145,000

1,420,000

600,000
43,175,000
3,485,000

CREREZ
fEEtAREE?
Estimated
fair value of
the share
option
granted?
BT
HK$



it B

Date of grant

EitEl

Old Scheme
20/6/2000
21/11/2000

EHE]
New Scheme
07/02/2002
05/03/2002
08/03/2002
19/04/2002
23/05/2002
02/08/2002
07/11/2002
24/01/2003
14/04/2003
01/08/2003
08/10/2003
02/12/2003
14/01/2004
20/04/2004
25/05/2004
02/06/2004
22/07/2004
04/10/2004
17/01/2005
22/07/2005

ARERITE
Exercisable at the
end of the year

IETHTER
Weighted average
exercise price

T

Exercise

Price
BT
HK$

7.190
7.080

7.170
7.350
7.500
7.400
8.900
8.320
7.700
7.250
6.290
7.100
8.900
9.000
9.720
9.890
9.150
9.550
9.800
10.350
11.400
12.500

(E%)

(HKS)

Outstanding at

RZEFLE REEE
-A-H R
e RATHE Granted
during

1/1/2005 the year

11,861,000 =
4,153,000 =

16,014,000 =

19,638,000 =
19,624,000 =
980,000 =
7,204,000 =
136,000 =
5,870,000 =
1,790,000 =
1,182,000 =
7,428,000 =
1,070,000 =
2,888,000 =
1,360,000 =
46,441,000 =
5,600,000 =
35,856,000 =
5,022,000 =
3,100,000 =
49,680,000 =
= 1,750,000
= 960,000
214,869,000 2,710,000

230,883,000 2,710,000

9.04 11.79

EROBEETESHNBRE - FHEOT

Eital

Old Scheme
EZ Directors
{EE Employees

e
New Scheme
£ Directors
{EE Employees
Hi 2 8% Other participants

10,486,000
5,528,000 =

24,466,000 =
169,829,000 2,710,000
20,574,000 =

8175545 i ¥ Notes to the Financial Statements

RiRiEYE

Number of share options

REEE REEE
frfE" Eid
Exercised Cancelled
during during
the year! the year

3,916,000 =
754,000 =

4,670,000 =

5,124,000 =
7,816,000 =
200,000 =
3,654,000 =
92,000 =
1,936,000 =
38,000 =
576,000 =
3,162,000 =
410,000 =
945,000 =
290,000 =
6,520,000 =
384,000 =
11,251,000 =

1,610,000 =
3,900,000 =
70,000 =

47,778,000 =
52,448,000 =

8.51 =

4,500,000 =
170,000 =

200,000 =
39,090,000 =
8,488,000 =

REEE
KH
Lapsed
during
the year

322,000

100,000

28,000
50,000

282,000
958,000

162,000

316,000
100,000

2,318,000
2,318,000

8.93

1,996,000
322,000

R=FT1F
+=A=+-H
ERATE
Outstanding at
31/12/2005

7,945,000
3,399,000

11,344,000

14,514,000
11,486,000
780,000
3,650,000
44,000
3,834,000
1,752,000
578,000
4,216,000
660,000
1,661,000
1,070,000
38,963,000
5,216,000
24,443,000
5,022,000
1,590,000
45,464,000
1,580,000
960,000

167,483,000
178,827,000

137,027,000

9.23

5,986,000
5,358,000

24,266,000
131,453,000
11,764,000

CREREZ
fEEtAREE?
Estimated
fair value of
the share
option
granted?
BT
HK$

Details of the share options held by the directors included in the
above table are as follows:
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1. FARNBITEBRENTEB S Z METH
BEAEE16.80 L (ZETRFE : B
12.247T) °

2. ERBREZAABERTRITERZE
Bz i FIa R A fEME -

IER A EE TR =B F 25 (Trinomial
Lattice) ARETE «c U RAMARER Z
AR

TEERLER)

IREF B
FRETR IR
BIEHR
BRI 2 F %
FRETACE M=

HEDRIBTYRAAR ARBABE —F 2K
BET - ERERAA LB RERAE
EERTAERES | ERARTAEE
SHSIEN 2 BEE(H TR -

AEEREBEE ST FE+-_A=+—H1t
FERAQRAMBRBRERRET HBK
28AEL (ZETRHF - BES3EED) ©

Notes:

1. The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share
options exercised during the year was HK$16.80 (2005: HK$12.24).

2. The fair value of the share option granted represents the weighted
average of the fair value of the share options with different exercisable
period.

These fair values were calculated using the Trinomial Lattice model.
The inputs into the model were as follows:

ZEERF
2005

Exercise price (as set out in the

above table)

Weighted average share price HK$11.95
Expected volatility 24.3%
Option life 10 years
Risk-free rate 41%
Expected dividend yield 2.7%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the Company’s share price over the previous 1 year. The expected
life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s
best estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise
restrictions and behavioral considerations.

The Group recognised the total expenses of HK$23 million for the
year ended 31 December 2006 (2005: HK$53 million) in relation to
the share options granted by the Company.
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The Group

Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 91 to 92.

The retained profits of the Group include approximately HK$92 million
(2005: HK$100 million) and approximately HK$5 million (2005: HK$7
million) retained by associates and jointly controlled entities of the

Group, respectively.

A48 The Company
RZZEERE—A-A At 1 January 2005
BIRHEE Premium on share issued
EERRERR Employees share option benefits
REERT Profit for the year
RE Dividends
R=ZEZRF+-A=+t—H  At31 December 2005 and
k=TE F-A-H 1 January 2006
BIRHEE Premium on share issued
BIRHER Share issue expenses
EERERERERN Employees share option bengfits

REERAERIAREH

AER
B2 G2

RZZE ET-A=1—H

Release upon repayment of
Compound financial instruments

Profit for the year

Dividends (Note 13)

At 31 December 2006

ANAR AR TR 2 FEiEHEES,229
BETL(CZTRF : B3 361HETT) °

EERH

HEGE

Employee

fth it (E share-based SRR REH

Share  compensation Warrant Retained Bt
premium reserve reserve profits Total
BERET AEAET AEAET AEAET BERET
HK$ million HK$ milion HK$ milion HK$ milion HK$ million
10,637 92 168 3,176 14,073
987 - - - 987
- 53 - - 53
- - - 825 825
- - - (640) (640)
11,624 145 168 3,361 15,298
983 - - - 983
) - - - (1)
- 23 - - 23
- - (168) 168 -
- - - 2,965 2,965
- - - (3,265) (3,265)
12,606 168 - 3,229 16,003

Reserves of the Company available for distribution to the
shareholders amounted to HK$3,229 million (2005: HK$3,361
million).
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G BEFHZHERE

BRI AR

s
i YNGIE S
HEMB LR,/ EBMEHRH

HEREE DN R PSRRI
HER ERBAFEN

ITEERTALABERR(8%)
FEMAIERERS KA
FBHA

MBXH
HERTRERE (a7
EHRZEEEERERE
BRI ERBRERE
BHER A BT EERERR
EREH

EBVEESRH

ERRBAZ WEE
EEA 2 FRREE

RENXELES
DA g R 2 B A R

REETESRIAMEE M HEBE L

EEBEC BB KR
FENEZEY
HitrE 2%
HHRAMERTIEZZS
THEEB TR #

HHRAMENTFEZZS

REmBRE

Cash flows from operating activities

BEEET
HK$ million

Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:

Share of net results of associates

Profit on disposal of subsidiaries/
business

Profit on disposal of associates

Profit on disposal of available for
sale investments

Fair value losses/(gains) on derivative
financial instruments

Dividend income from unlisted
available for sale investments

Interest income

Interest expenses

Net loss/(profit) on disposal of
fixed assets

Impairment loss recognised on
fixed assets

Impairment loss recognised on available
for sale investments

Impairment loss recognised on other
intangible assets

Depreciation and amortisation

Amortisation of intangible assets

Discount on acquisition recognised
as income

Tank storage service fee utilised

Valuation gain on investment properties

Share based payment charged
against equity

Release of hedge reserve upon
settlement of derivative financial
instruments

Operating profit before working
capital changes

Changes in properties held for sale

Changes in other stocks

Changes in trade and
other receivables

Changes in derivative financial
instruments

Changes in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations
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—ETRE
2005
BEAET
HK$ million
(&%)
(Restated)

3,175
(354)

(138)
(64)

(94)

49
1,342
56

(46)
0

(489)

53

3,587
(1,325)

(670)

2,360

3,951
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B Disposal of subsidiaries/business

—TTREF
2005
ABBET AEBET
HKS$ million HK$ million
Net assets disposed of:
Fixed assets 466
Goodwill -
Other intangible assets -
Interests in associates -
Available for sale investments =
Stocks -
Trade and other receivables 6
Cash and bank balances 15
Trade and other payables 6)
Taxation payable -
Short term loans =
Long term loans -
Deferred taxation liabilities (65)
Minority interests (33)
383
Reserves released -
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries/
business 138
521
Satisfied by
Cash consideration 512
Deferred consideration 9
521
Analysis of the net inflow of cash
and cash equivalents in respect of
disposal of subsidiaries/business
Cash considerations received 512
Cash and bank balances disposed of (15)
497
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] WEMB AR, EH C  Acquisition of subsidiaries/business
—TTHEF
2005
BERET AERET
HK$ million HK$ million
WHEMSHEE CREE The carrying amounts and fair values
RRAEE : of the net assets acquired:
EE&E Fixed assets 792
Him&E Other intangible assets 472
AERE Available for sale investments 19
7E Stocks 102
B 5 K H At A Trade and other receivables 59
ERERIARE Deferred taxation assets 9
Re RIRTHER Cash and bank balances 385
25 RHEMENFIR Trade and other payables (437)
FER IR Taxation payable @)
HHIER Short term loans 3)
RHIER Long term loans (229)
DR R S Minority interests @)
WHERE S 2 TR Discount on acquisition (46)
WENEE 2 HE Goodwill on acquisition 247
1,361
ATBIAASA - Discharged by:
e Cash 685
[ER BB Balance of consideration payable 94
BITRIE Prepaid consideration 582
1,361
WEMBAT EBZHER Analysis of the net outflow of cash
BeZERNBEST and cash equivalents in respect of
acquisition of subsidiaries/business’s
undertaking
ReRkE Cash consideration (685)
WS R & RIRTTHETF Cash and bank balances acquired 385
(300)
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X5 K4
The Group The Company
—ZTIHEF —ZTHF
2005 2005
A¥EET A%BEr A¥%BERT BEKEER
HK$ milion  HK$ million ~ HK$ million  HK$ million

REE B RRTTHRZ Capital commitments
BARENT : outstanding at the

balance sheet date
are as follows:

DENEMAEE Contracted but not
provided for 374 -
BEERERED Authorised but not
contracted for 866 -
1,240 -
(F) ERARBEAN (@) Aslessee
XE£E F4F
The Group The Company
“ETHE “TTRF
2005 2005
AEGBET RAMEET AB¥EET  B¥%EER
HK$ milion  HK$ million  HKS$ million  HK$ million
REER - REFIHEEERD At the balance sheet
AR TR 2 &E date, the total future
HEREEE minimum lease

payments under
non-cancellable
operating leases are
payable as follows:

—E—FR - Within one year 791 =
-HE_FEERF - In the second to
(BEEEME) fifth year
inclusive 2,318 =
-hF 2k — After five years 4,642 =
7,751 -
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() 1ER%EBEA@® (a) As lessee (continued)
EEHEFRBEAESEEAETEEMMMU Operating lease payment represents rental payable by the Group
EYESZNzEE - HNEER—ZE=1%F for certain of its retail outlets and properties. Leases are negotiated
2 HEFHEE - for lease terms principally ranged from 1 to 30 years.
(Z) 1EBRHBEA (b) As lessor
X5 XAT
The Group The Company
“ZTHF “TTERF
2005 2005

AEGET AYEEr BYEEL  BEEER
HK$ milion  HK$ milion ~ HK$ million  HK$ million

REEH - REFIFHEEERBOTRN TR At the balance sheet
WLz S{EAE SRR R date, the total future
minimum lease

payments under
non-cancellable
operating leases are
receivable as follows:

—-E—FR — Within one year 391 =

- CEFEERF - In the second to

(BEERMF) fifth year
inclusive 563 =
ALy - After five years 279 -
1,233 -
WWEME AT FHEAFHNT1E1Q These properties have committed tenants for an average term from
Fo 1 to 10 years.
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X5 K4
The Group The Company
—ZTIHEF —ZTHF
2005 2005
A¥EET A%BEr A¥%BERT BEKEER
HK$ milion  HK$ million  HK$ million  HK$ million

At the balance sheet
date, there were
contingent liabilities in
respect of guarantees
for banks and other
loans provided to

- subsidiaries - 7,054
- an associate 500 500
500 7,554

On 18 October, 2006, Preparis Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into an agreement with China Resources
Petrochems Gas Group Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of CRH
(the controlling shareholder of the Company), for the disposal of its
100% equity interest in China Resources Petrochems Holdings
Limited (“CRPH?) for a cash consideration of HK$2,780 million. CRPH
was the holding company of the Company’s piped gas businesses,
cheminals distribution businesses and other petroleum related
businesses in Chinese Mainland. This transaction was completed in
November 2006.
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Z, RABIREKEAR (BRAARZBEA B Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are

T EITZRSEREGRERE R - WE related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on
FEARWFREE - RAMBRESITHEZ consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. In addition to the
RPREERIN - RNREBEIT TS IHEKRE transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial
BRG e statements, the Group entered into the following material related

party transactions.

B NRIEAER Purchase of goods from associates
BE T A RRME 2 R/ Receiving of services from
—FEERAA] A holding company
(SYNGIESE ) =YNE] Fellow subsidiaries
kYN Associates
RT3 ARIHEER Sales of goods to
—EER AR A holding company
(SYNGIESE ) =YNE] Fellow subsidiaries
kYN Associates
AR RIS E 2 M E A IR RS Rendering of services to fellow
subsidiaries
HEMBAFIE Operating lease payment
—FEERAA] A holding company
(SYNGIESE ) =YNE] Fellow subsidiaries
/NG| Associates
RS2 Tank storage service fees
—FEERAA] A holding company
(SYNGIESE ) =YNE] Fellow subsidiaries
FHOHEREE TRE MR T AR Management fee received for provision
WHERE of certain services at oil depot
—EER AT A holding company
(SYNGIESE ) =YNE] Fellow subsidiaries
BRI RERRENRREE R S Transaction under godown management
BTG agreement and facilities management
BRI GIEE S = Receipt of service fee from
—EER AT A holding company
(SYNGIESE ) =YNE] Fellow subsidiaries
m—EERARZNAE Payment of monthly fee to a holding
company
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—TTRF

2005

BEHET BEEET
HK$ million HK$ million

408

128
25

18

113

47

140

131
79

33
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(continued)

The Group had the following material related party balances:

“EERF
2005
AERET AERET
HK$ million HK$ million

Amount due from:
Fellow subsidiaries 18
Associates 28

Amount due to:

Fellow subsidiaries 54
Associates 18

Transactions/balances with other state-controlled entities in Chinese
Mainland.

The Group itself is a part of a larger group of companies under CRNC
which is controlled by the PRC government. Apart from the
transactions with CRNC group and the associates of the Group, it
also conducts businesses with entities directly or indirectly owned
or controlled by the PRC government in the ordinary course of
business. The Directors are of the opinion that those entities other
than the CRNC group do not have the power to govern or participate
in the financial and operating policies of the Group. The transactions
including sales and purchases of goods and services, with these
entities are conducted in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.
The Group believes that it has provided, at the best of its knowledge,
adequate and appropriate disclosure of related party transactions
as summarised above.

Compensation of key management personnel

Remuneration paid for key management personnel include solely
the directors of the Company as determined with reference to
remuneration committee, is disclosed in note 9.
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RARRZEE+F= A+ A AFEAH The Company entered into a framework agreement with China
(IR ERLR ([REAL]) B EZEH Petroleum & Chemical Corporation (“Sinopec”) on 14 March 2007
AtEREBRAR ([EHALKRE) S regarding the disposal of the Company’s petroleum distribution
LB AME M HERE 7 —IBER business, which was held by China Resources Petrochems
Wk - RIRIER D - BURNEBREEE Investments Limited (“CRPI”). Under the framework agreement,
Az - ARelIRERERALREI00% subject to the signing of a formal agreement, the Company agreed
EEITRANER @REBEWBETHERF to dispose 100% of the issued share capital of CRPI to Sinopec for
BA{t - EXNBEBEFE ST LFMNAH a cash consideration of HK$4,000 million. The formal agreement is
GIE i expected to be signed in mid-April 2007.

FOSEEF1OEMECMBMECEES The financial statements set out on pages 85 to 169 were approved
ERZZEZLFMAMBRE - by the Board of Directors on 4 April 2007.
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=l

ERTEaARKRAEE

H#HEF

Nominal value of issued
HEBAS REEAT
Subsidiaries and associates

ordinary share capital/
registered capital

(- BE
(1) Retail

REEEM L
Incorporated in Hong Kong

FE(FE) ARAT 5,000,000/ FREE

Chinese Arts & Crafts (H.K.) B0 2 Bk
Limited 5,000,000 ordinary shares of

HK$10 each

EHER (BB BRLAT 90,000,000/ FRE(E

China Resources Vanguard BT LRk
(Hong Kong) Company 90,000,000 ordinary shares of
Limited HK$1 each

A Rt A% 5T

Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland

* RMYIEBEERETSERAR  £%226,200,0007T
HK$226,200,000

* EBERGM)BTERAT 8,000,000% 7T
US$8,000,000

* RRRPREREZRATS
BRRT

AR #1,000,0007T
RMB1,000,000

Y BREMARAR
(Suguo Supermarket Co., Ltd.)

AR#253,820,0007T
RMB253,820,000

AK#1,400,000,0007T
RMB1,400,000,000

* EHERERAR
(China Resources Vanguard

Co., Ltd.)
*OMIEERFEETARAF  AR100,000,0007T
(China Resources Cikelong RMB100,000,000

(Zhejiang) Supermarket
Co., Ltd.)

REESL

Percentage of capital

FEEREE FATRHE WELIRF
attributable  held by the heldby B
to the Group Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
100.0 - 100.0 ZEEH
Retail business
100.0 - 100.0 EMES  REERKER
HE
Supermarket operations,
investment holding and
wholesale of merchandise
100.0 = 100.0 HEWEH
Supermarket operations
100.0 = 100.0 HBWEH
Supermarket operations
100.0 = 100.0 HEWEH
Supermarket operations
85.0 - 85.0 HMEH
Supermarket operations
100.0 65.0 35.0 HMEH
Supermarket operations
100.0 = 100.0 HBWEH

Supermarket operations
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F ZHIE 2 7] &E#t 2 A 7] Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

ERfTERKRFEE

HMEE

Nominal value of issued

MBASREEAT
Subsidiaries and associates

- EE®
(1) Retail (continued)

R pE AR (%)

Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland (continued)

L EBERLERED (BN

(China Resources Vanguard
(Guangzhou) Superstore
Co., Ltd.)

REBRE LB S MA L
Incorporated in British Virgin Islands

@ Tactical Solutions Incorporated ~ 10037T
US$100

(Z) BRed
(2) Beverage

REMRE LB S WAL
Incorporated in British Virgin Islands

EHEEEHEERAR
China Resources Snow
Breweries Limited

WP E o st AR SL
Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland

ERSHEERE) ARAF

(China Resources Snow
Breweries (Liaoning)
Company Limited)

EREREE(KE) ERAH
(China Resources Snow
Brewery (Dalian) Co., Ltd.)

ordinary share capital/
registered capital

AR #30,000,0007
BRAF RMB30,000,000

42,800,100% 7T
US$42,800,100

60,814,189 7T
US$60,814,189

21,200,000% 7T
US$21,200,000

REESL

Percentage of capital

FEEREE FATRE WELIRF
attributable held by the held by
to the Group Company  subsidiaries
100.0 - 100.0

51.0 - 51.0

51.0 51.0 -

51.0 - 100.0

51.0 - 100.0

A% AR 2 7 China Resources Enterprise, Limited ® Annual Report 2006 %

EEER

Principal activities

(eSS
Supermarket operations

RERK
Investment holding

RERK
Investment holding

SEND HERER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products

BUEMDHEBER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products



MBATREZEAT
Subsidiaries and associates

(Z) BRa (@)
(2) Beverage (continued)

WATPE Pt AR L (42)

ERfTTERKRFEE

HMEE

Nominal value of issued
ordinary share capital/

registered capital

Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland (continued)

ERSHLE (ZH) ARAF
(China Resources Snow
Breweries (Anhui) Co., Ltd.)

* ERSIEEE NI R
ARAR
(China Resources Snow
Brewery (Zhejiang) Stock
Co., Ltd)

* WERENRBEERETAT
(China Resources (Sichuan)
Blue Sword Breweries
Co., Ltd.)

© o EEER () WE
BREFAT
(China Resources Blue Sword
(Chengdu) Brewery Co., Ltd.)

© o EEEG (BL) R
BREFAR
(China Resources Blue Sword
(Leshan) Brewery Co., Ltd.)

© EEER (RE) WE
ARBERE
(China Resources Blue Sword
(Mianyang) Brewery Co., Ltd.)

* o EREEWE(ES) BRAF
(China Resources Snow
Breweries (Shenyang) Co.,
Ltd.)

AK#246,000,0007T
RMB246,000,000

AK#120,000,0007T
RMB120,000,000

AE#113,792,5017T
RMB113,792,501

AR#124,143,8537T
RMB124,143,853

AK#35,000,0007C
RMB35,000,000

AR 100,000,000t
RMB100,000,000

AR#116,240,0007T
RMB116,240,000

T EH B 7] K% A 7] Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

BREESE
Percentage of capital
AATHE  MEBASRH
held by the held by
Company  subsidiaries

FEEREE
attributable
to the Group

EEER

Principal activities

51.0 1000 REMDEREER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products

35.7 - 700 HEAHHBREER

Manufacturing and

distribution of beer

products

31.6 = 62.0 BEMDEEEER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products

31.6 = 62.0 BEMDEEEER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products

31.6 - 620 HEMDHERBER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products

31.6 = 62.0 HEMDEEEER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products

45.9 = 90.0 HEMDEEEER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products
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F ZHIE 2 7] &E#t 2 A 7] Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

MBASREEAT
Subsidiaries and associates

(=

) BR& ()

(2) Beverage (continued)

*k

HRepE AR ()

BRTEERRATE
&R

Nominal value of issued FEEE
attributable

to the Group

ordinary share capital/
registered capital

Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland (continued)

ERSEWE UE) ARAR

(China Resources Snow

Brewery (Wuhan) Co., Ltd.)

ERSLE (FE) A
BRARE

(China Resources Snow
Breweries (China)
Investment Co., Ltd.)

l

(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.)

(Z) REMIREH

(3) Food Processing and Distribution

RE#EMA L

Incorporated in Hong Kong

Ng Fung Hong Limited

A RMAKEFRRA

Ng Fung Frozen Meats &

Aquatic Products Co. Limited

FEMA EREAR AR

Chung Kong Luen Livestock
Company Limited

RERMHAH (R BRAF
(C'estbon Food and Beverage

AK#570,000,0007T 45.9
RMB570,000,000

386,000,000% 7T 51.0

US$386,000,000

AK#12,000,0007C 51.0
RMB12,000,000

1,046,258,0000 & R E B A1
0.1 &k
1,046,258,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each

100.0

5,000,0008 FIREEBE1T 94.0
2L

5,000,000 ordinary shares of

HK$1 each

60,0008% & X B &7 #1,0007C 35.7
o3 il

60,000 ordinary shares of

HK$1,000 each
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BREESE
Percentage of capital
AATHE  HMEBASRH
held by the

held by

Company  subsidiaries

= 90.0

100.0

100.0

= 100.0

- 94.0

- 51.0

EEER

Principal activities

SENS HRRER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products

RERK

Investment holding

SENS HRRER
Manufacturing and
distribution of beer
products

HERRRRIMEHE - BAK
% RmRERREER
Distribution of fresh, live
and frozen foodstuff,
abattoir operation, acting
as food agent and
investment holding

EHRA RIKE

Trading of frozen meats
and aquatic products

R B

Wholesale of live pigs



T EH B 7] K% A 7] Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

ERTEaARKRAEE BREES

&R Percentage of capital

Nominal value of issued FEEE FAERE MWELATIRH
MEBASRBEAT ordinary share capital/ attributable  held by the heldby EE£%H
Subsidiaries and associates registered capital to the Group Company subsidiaries  Principal activities

(Z) RRMIREH 7
(3) Food Processing and Distribution (continued)

RREHEEMRI
Incorporated in Cayman Islands

@ (TEEREZEAR) 60,864 B EE 15T 51.0 = 51.0 RBERK
PaE T
China International Fisheries 60,864 ordinary shares of Investment holding
Corp US$1 each
REBRL SR IL

Incorporated in British Virgin Islands

@ Victory Return Corporation 1REREEIET TRk 51.0 = 100.0 MHEERRHEWERT
RasatE
1 ordinary share of US$1 each Marine fishing and the

provision of ship stores and
fishing supplies

HAPE Py Ak 3L

Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland

* BERH (BRI ERAF AR #543,000,0007T 70.0 = 700 BEEE BHLE WA
MIRFBH#E
(Ng Fung Foods (Shenzhen) RMB543,000,000 Livestock raising, abattoir
Co., Ltd.) operation, meat products
processing and poultry
wholesaling
RESEFMAIL
Incorporated in the Panama
@ JinFeng SA. 200 BREEI R EBR 51.0 = 100.0 #B%  WEHERREHR
RIRGUE R R
%
200 ordinary shares of Marine fishing, vessel
US$1 each chartering and the provision

of ship stores, fishing
supplies and bunker oil
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F ZHIE 2 7] &E#t 2 A 7] Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

ERTEaARKRAEE BREES
&R Percentage of capital
Nominal value of issued FEEE FAERE MWELATIRH
MBASREEAT ordinary share capital/ attributable  held by the heldby FE£H
Subsidiaries and associates registered capital to the Group Company subsidiaries  Principal activities
(M) &4
(4) Textile
AEEEM L
Incorporated in Hong Kong
EBH% (KE) BRAF 100,000,0008% S E(E 100.0 = 1000  REER
ATz AR
China Resources Textiles 100,000,000 ordinary shares Investment holding

(Holdings) Company Limited of HK$1 each

ERHBMERRA 5,000,000 &R E 100.0 = 1000 Ak H IR EER
BT BRR

China Resources Textiles 5,000,000 ordinary shares of Trading of textiles and

Company Limited HK$1 each investment holding

oL mAAR AT 2,000,000/ @M@ E 100.0 - 1000  FREZHIIREER
ATz LAk

Hsin Hung Textiles Limited 2,000,000 ordinary shares of Trading of apparel and
HK$1 each investment holding

T e g et A

Incorporated in the Chinese Mainland

EHNBRERRARAF 73,200,000 7T 100.0 = 1000  REEBREARIELH
(China Resources Textiles US$73,200,000 Investment holding and
Investment & Development trading of cotton
Company Limited)
@ ERRERNHARRA AEH129,665,7187C 51.0 - 510 HWEEREHERRERR
(China Resources Jinhua RMB129,665,718 Manufacture and trading of
Co., Ltd.) textile products and

investment holding
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MBASREEAT
Subsidiaries and associates

(B) ERGR
(5) Property and Logistics

RE#EEMA L

Incorporated in Hong Kong

Z8M% (BE) BRAR
CRE Properties
(Hong Kong) Limited

CRE Property
(Silvercord) Limited

CRE Property
(Argyle Centre) Limited

CRE Property (Nan Fung Centre)

Limited

BERBERAF

Yuen Fat Wharf & Godown
Company Limited

(%) bR AR R

ERfTLERRFEE
HAMEF

Nominal value of issued
ordinary share capital/
registered capital

2REREEBE T TRk
2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

2REREEBE T SRR
2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

R EBREEEE 1 T2 LBk
2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

R EREESE T LBk
2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

1,000,000 R EEE 17T
PaE T

1,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

(6) Petroleum and Related Products Distribution

RE#EMA L

Incorporated in Hong Kong

ZRA(EE)ARAR
China Resources Petrochems
(Group) Company Limited

Callany Limited

EHRMERLA

China Resources Petroleum
Company Limited

2REREEBE T SRR
2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

40,000,000/ B AR EEAEE1 T
2 Bk

40,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

30,000,000/ BREEEH 1T
PaE T

30,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

T EH B 7] K% A 7] Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

REESL

Percentage of capital

FEEREE
attributable
to the Group

FATHE
held by the
Company

100.0 -

100.0 -

100.0 -

100.0 -

100.0 -

100.0 -

100.0 -

100.0 -

MEBASRE
held by
subsidiaries

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

EEER

Principal activities

REEREYEER
Investment holding and
property management

NERE

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

BB R A AR

Wharf & godown services

RERK

Investment holding

LhERREIES

Transportation services and
trading of petroleum

EHAMER

Trading of petroleum
products
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F ZHIE 2 7] &E#t 2 A 7] Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

MBASREEAT
Subsidiaries and associates

(R B R EREREH @)

ERfTTERRFEE
HAMEF

Nominal value of issued
ordinary share capital/
registered capital

(6) Petroleum and Related Products Distribution (continued)

REBFMAL @

Incorporated in Hong Kong (continued)

ERMEERAA

CRC Petrol Filling Station
Company Limited

EEREEBRRNA

Ting Key Investment
Limited

(t) RERR

(7) Investments and Others

RE#EMA L

Incorporated in Hong Kong

EHEIXNB (BE) BRRF

5,000,0008 FIREEBE1 T
2L

5,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

10,0000 & B EEE ¥ 1T
2 EER

10,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

REREEEBI T2 EBR

CRE Finance (Hong Kong) Limited 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

RES SRR

Incorporated in Cayman Islands

Purple Finance Limited

REBEL B BRI

R EREEIE T AR
2 ordinary shares of US$1 each

Incorporated in British Virgin Islands

@#AHIT Investments Limited

@# A Hutchison Ports Yantian
Investments Limited

A% AR 2 7 China Resources Enterprise, Limited ® Annual Report 2006 %

200f A (E1 T2 BRAK
200 ordinary “A” shares of
US$1 each

200/R G AR E 15T, LAk
200 ordinary shares of
US$1 each

REESL

Percentage of capital

AATHE  HMEBASRH
held by the held by
Company  subsidiaries

- 100.0
- 100.0
100.0 -
100.0 -
- 10.0
- 10.0

EEER

Principal activities

ECd il

Petrol filling station
operation

ECd i N

Petrol filling station
operation

Eipy

Financing

Eipy

Financing

EEBRECRIERLE
Investment in container
terminal operations

in Hong Kong

RN E ERIEE
HiE

Investment in container
terminal operations

in the Chinese Mainland



T EH B 7] K% A 7] Principal Subsidiaries and Associates

b

Notes:

BERR 2EIFIFEMBREEATFEGERERBNILE M EREFIHAEEXENEEASATZE N HBRRIR
NS - R

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of all subsidiaries and associates will be of excessive length
and therefore the above list contains only the particulars of the subsidiaries and associates which materially affect the results or
assets of the Group.

REEHAEIN  BRR 2 ERLEMEBRKIRENE G ML P, -

Unless otherwise stated, the principal country of operation of each company is the same as its place of incorporation.

FERBEAMEMKZZ AR EDRIRAEE 2 RXATE -

For companies incorporated in the Chinese Mainland with an English name, such name has been adopted by each company.

FR - AEBNEREEKCSAETBAL TERBLRRZRE - HhBKE983BETER _ZETREXN « REBRFEiHH R
HEAFE Lz EEFERETREFEMRRKRDBE2H8T

During the year, the Group acquired equity interests in certain brewery companies for an aggregate consideration of HK$653
million of which HK$593 million was paid in 2006. As a result of the acquisitions, the Group's profit for the year and the net assets
at the year end have both been decreased by HK$22 million.

A BERF

/A Associates

* BEBRNRE
* Equity Joint Venture
> OINERE

Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise
o FmaBhE
***  Listed Joint Stock Company

# BATHSEZBMENRZEZRGRMITIEERTEN

#  Significant influence is exercised through the participation of regular board meeting of the associates
@ WIEMEE « BERT SEMITERZIAF
@

Companies not audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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TEVEHE

2006412 H31 HAt 31 December 2006

ARE

FRibHEzs

VA= Group’s
Location Interest

el EYZE
Properties held for investment

&
Hong Kong

HE A O —H

HEAED - M IR — 448 - BT A - 51

Ko BB (A1 S R K 30 B MV AMFE I B S AR

JLEERT A TR B GE 6885 ok B Z #1655k 100%
Argyle Centre, Phase |

Portion A on Basement, Portion of G/F,

1/F, 2/F, 3/F, 4/F and Flat Roof,

5/F and Part of External Walls and the Sign board of
Portion A of Argyle Centre facing Sai Yeung Choi Street
South and Argyle Street and scavenging lane,

688 Nathan Road

65 Argyle Street

Mongkok

Kowloon

FAEHL

Ho 31 R 57 5 E B L

A034-A041 - A044 ~ A128 »

A4201 * A4301 * A4502 X A4602F ]

M1 =3EBE EFA)
RIEFNMBRREZR R KA RKRIER 2 2=
MARZETILAER264—29858 100%
Nan Fung Centre

Lorry parking space Nos. 31 and 57 on Basement
Units AO34-A041, A044, A128, A4201, A4301,
A4502 and A4602 and portion on 1/F-3/F with
Flat Roof and the space between the floor ceiling
and the original concrete ceiling over portion of 3/F
264-298 Castle Peak Road

Tsuen Wan, New Territories

BH1T
HNOBSRAR « 10ANRAE KX —12BES
B EAR B FE35R 100%
Star House
Shop 9B, 10A on G/F & Shop B on 1/F
3 Salisbury Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

A% AR 2 7 China Resources Enterprise, Limited ® Annual Report 2006 %

BEEHE
(FEFXK)
Floor
Area

(sg.m.)

7,216

7,075

1,309

Type
A&

O

N
C/CP

O o

Lease term

H#FH

=
Long

R HA
Medium

£
Long



F ZY XM E Schedule of Principal Properties

HBEEE

AEH (EFHXK)

PRkt Floor
VA= Group’s Area Type Lease term
Location Interest (sq.m.) A& HHEH

FHEREmE ®)
Properties held for investment (continued)

- 3E)
Hong Kong (continued)

BB,

HT~5—8%% * 20A * 20B K% 20C5R 4L -

BAEAL (AAB)BHAABARD) -

1E3EERAERETA

EERBEEME19—- 315 RIEEH2 — 85 100% 8,982
Lok Sing Centre

Shop Nos. 5-18, 20A, 20B and 20C on G/F

Entrance at Yee Wo Street (Entrance A)

=H
Long

O o

Entrance at Sugar Street (Entrance B)

the whole of 1/F to 3/F

and the whole Flat Roof on 4/F Level
19-31 Yee Wo Street and 2-8 Sugar Street
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

AR

Hb N 3855 Al

1123957 #H [ 21841 5548

HE13, 14, 15, 16 R 178REBAL

FLEER ) IH BE SR 3B 305R 100% 7,849 /1 R
Silvercord C/CP Long
Shop No. 38 on the G/F

Shop No. 39 on 1/F and Shop No. 41 on 2/F

Tower 1 and Car Park

Nos. 13, 14, 15, 16 and 17 on Basement

30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

hERE

NEEBE /BB E 1665k 100% 13,900 T FRHA
CAC Tower | Medium
165 Hoi Bun Road

Kwun Tong, Kowloon
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FEZYEME Schedule of Principal Properties

ARE

FRibHEzs

VA= Group’s
Location Interest

B EYE @)
Properties held for investment (continued)

EiE@®
Hong Kong (continued)

RREERE

W79 1148 1562202 E (BIEXE)

Kb ™1 —235R B (7

NERDEEME 1155 100%
Chung Dah Godown Building

Ground floor, 7/F, 9/F to 11/F,

15/F to 20/F (including Main Roof)

and car park Nos. 1 to 23 on Ground Floor

115 King Lam Street,

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

ER O

11015 = - 2 RSBEEF S -

ABA01EE - 6EE R

21-245 BT -t MEELSSREBAL -
B{7P1-P103 » L1-L7 * L9-L15 * L17-L43

R ER IR IE B8R 100%
Riley House

Unit 101 on 1/F, The whole of 2/F, 3/F & Roof Flat,
Unit 401 on 4/F, Godown on 6/F,

Cargo Lift Nos. 21-24,

Car Parking Spaces No. L8 on Lower G/F,
P1-P103, L1-L7, L9-L15, L17-L43,

88 Lei Muk Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories

172 #BAI% AR A 7 China Resources Enterprise, Limited  Annual Report 2006 4F i

BEEHE
(FEFXK)
Floor
Area

(sg.m.)

8,822

33,485

Type
A&

I/f&
|/CP

T/
//CP

Lease term

H#FH

FRHA
Medium

HRHA
Medium



F ZY XM E Schedule of Principal Properties

HBEEE

AEH (EFHXK)

PRkt Floor
VA= Group’s Area Type Lease term
Location Interest (sq.m.) A& HHEH

FHEREmE ®)
Properties held for investment (continued)

- 3E)
Hong Kong (continued)

B TEMBREET7 - 8ROBTIHER

HEL39 » L40 © L45  L46 » L47 K485 B ]

NBERIERIBETHR 100% 9,702 I/ 51
Yau Tong Industrial City I/CP Medium
Workshop on 7/F, 8/F and 9/F of Block B and

Lorry Parking Space

Nos. L39, L40, L45, L46, L47 and

L48 on Basement

17 Ko Fai Road

Yau Tong

Kowloon

FHEFAE

R E41E

BB EET B 58488 —4905% 100% 3,125
Hennessy Apartments

G/F-4/F

488-490 Hennessy Road

Causeway Bay

£
Long

O o

Hong Kong

o A 3t
Chinese Mainland

BRAIFIMERERENBER 100% 62,915
TP REE1965%

R B
Medium

O o

TS R S AR R — B30%% 100% 43,566 A

Medium

O o

BRAEFY TR IRPIE 100% 16,212 Vg 1 H
RMAEREMARER C/O Medium

Htat - S [GES (ES F=£ = =85 oE WAE aC ¢ T
Note: C: Commercial R: Residential CP: Car Park O: Office B Industrial
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AFEPHBENEE

IR AR

BREREH

BRBE
b
R

Bl

GRAERRAR
BE&E

mE
HEVEE
RHRE
BRNRR
BERRAE
RBEEFE

ESER

A
C1C

RS
DEBRES
RHAE
BREHERE

“ZT-F “ET=F “ETNE —ZThAE
BEEET AERET BEEET BEEET
(&31)? (&31)? (&31)?
2002 2003 2004 2005
HK$ million  HK$ milion  HK$ milion  HK$ million
(Restated) > (Restated) > (Restated) 2
Consolidated results
Turnover 28,822 34,671 47,078 53,891
Profit attributable to
shareholders 1,378 1,429 1,480 2,220
Basic earnings per share HK$0.67 HK$0.69 HK$0.70 HK$1.02
Dividend per share
Interim HK$0.09 HK$0.10 HK$0.11 HK$0.13
Final HK$0.13 HK$0.14 HK$0.16 HK$0.25
HK$0.22 HK$0.24 HK$0.27 HK$0.38
Special interim HK$0.25 1 Note 1 - -
Consolidated balance sheet
Fixed assets 13,420 14,820 19,215 21,436
Goodwill 1,025 1,346 2,319 3,084
Other intangible assets 138 204 211 630
Long term investments 2,262 1,976 1,659 1,147
Prepayments 367 458 960 411
Deferred taxation assets 90 141 167 140
Net current assets 2,554 2,928 3,140 2,086
Employment of capital 19,856 21,873 27,671 28,934
Share capital 2,080 2,090 2,123 2,233
Reserves 10,432 10,910 13,002 15,963
Shareholders’ funds 12,512 13,000 15,125 18,196
Minority interests 3,290 3,859 4,811 4,747
Long term liabilities 3,151 4,184 6,797 5,040
Deferred taxation liabilities 903 830 938 951
Capital employed 19,856 21,873 27,671 28,934

Notes:

“ZR=FRHPHRETERE TRARRRMNE
IRE — B EORIE AR 2R Z B 1E AR IR
g o

BN

AEBA =TT NF— A— AR BRI R
R EENSHERERBLLHIEHE - FTEFTEER
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1.

The 2003 special interim dividend represented a special distribution in
specie of one share in China Resources Cement Holdings Limited for
every ten shares of the Company was distributed.

The Group has changed its accounting policy on jointly controlled entities
to proportionate consolidation for the financial period commencing from
1 January 2006. The new accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively and certain 2003, 2004 and 2005 comparative figures
are restated accordingly. However, the change in accounting policy
would not have any impact on the consolidated net assets as at 31
December 2003, 31 December 2004 and 31 December 2005 and the
consolidated net profit for the year ended 31 December 2003, 2004
and 2005.
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Set out below is a summary of the notice of the annual general meeting,
the full version of which is set out in the circular to be dispatched to
shareholders separately.

An Annual General Meeting of China Resources Enterprise, Limited will

be held at 50th Floor, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong on Thursday, 31 May 2007 at 3:30 p.m. for the

following purposes:

Ordinary Resolutions

1. To receive and consider the audited Financial Statements and the
Reports of the Directors and Auditors for the year ended 31
December 2006.

2. To declare a final dividend.

3.  To re-elect retiring Directors and to fix the fees for all Directors.

4.  To re-appoint Auditors and authorise the Directors to fix their
remuneration.

5. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to repurchase shares
not exceeding 10% of the issued share capital.

6. To grant a general mandate to the Directors to issue additional shares
not exceeding 20% of the issued share capital.

7. To extend the general mandate under item 6 hereof by increasing

the number of shares permitted to be issued equivalent to the number
of shares repurchased under item 5 hereof.
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Corporate Information

Chairman

Song Lin

Managing Director
Chen Shulin

Deputy Managing Directors

Keung Chi Wang, Ralph
Wang Qun

Lau Pak Shing

Kwong Man Him

Non-Executive Directors

Qiao Shibo

Yan Biao

Jiang Wei
Wang Shuaiting
Xie Shengxi

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Chan Po Fun, Peter
Houang Tai Ninh

Li Ka Cheung, Eric
Cheng Mo Chi

Chan Bernard Charnwut
Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon

Company Secretary
Lee Yip Wah, Peter

Auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Registered Office

39/F, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Principal Bankers
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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The Bank of New York

Investor Services

Church Street Station, PO Box 11258
New York, NY10286-1258, USA
#B11E : http:/Avww.stockbny.com
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1E 291 HK
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CUSIP : 16940R109

REERE

FH : ir@cre.com.hk

Information for Investors

Financial Calendar

Announcement of annual results
4 April 2007

Last day of dealings in shares with entitlement to final dividend

22 May 2007

Closure of register period

28 May 2007 to 31 May 2007
(both days inclusive)

Payment of final dividend

On or about 15 June 2007

Share Registrars

Standard Registrars Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Depositary

The Bank of New York

Investor Services

Church Street Station, PO Box 11258
New York, NY10286-1258, USA
Website: http://www.stockbny.com

Stock Codes

Hong Kong Stock Exchange : 0291
Bloomberg : 291 HK

Reuters : 0291.HK

ADR symbol : CHNRY

CUSIP : 16940R109

Investor Relations

Email: ir@cre.com.hk
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